
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

*PLEASE NOTE STARTING TIME 

Cabinet (Special Meeting) 

 
THURSDAY, 18TH AUGUST, 2011 at *14:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Kober (Chair), Reith (Vice Chair), Bevan, Canver, Dogus, 

Goldberg, Strickland and Vanier. 
 

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    

 

 (if any) 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

3. DECISION OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ON 15 AUGUST 

2011 REGARDING MINUTE CAB.20 - PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THREE OLDER 

PEOPLE'S RESIDENTIAL CARE HOMES AND ONE LEARNING DISABILITIES 

RESIDENTIAL AND RESPITE HOME    

 



 

2 

 Head of Local Democracy and Member Services to report that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee of 15 August 2011 on consideration of a Call In of the Cabinet’s 
decision of 19 July 2011 vide Minute CAB.20 relating to the Proposed Closure of 
Three Older People’s Residential Care Homes and One Learning Disabilities 
Residential and Respite Home resolved as follows –  
 

RESOLVED 
 
2a. That CAB20 – Proposed Closure of three older people’s residential care 

homes and one learning disabilities residential and respite care homes be 
referred back to the Cabinet as the decision taker for reconsideration of the 
decision before taking a final decision. 

 
2b. That in reconsidering the decision the Cabinet pay particular attention  to: 
  

i. The points raised within the written submission from Bindmans 
(Solicitors) and satisfy itself that the Council had fulfilled all legal 
requirements and had not acted outside of the requirements for 
consultation and human rights. 

 
ii. Financial transparency: the Cabinet should consider the full financial 

implications of the closures; not simply in terms of budget strands for 
residential care homes but also for Whitehall Street but also take into 
account the aggregated impact that increased alternative 
service provision will have on other budgets within the Council. 

 
iii. Consultation and engagement: the Cabinet should develop a model of 

services intended to replace the current provision of respite and 
residential care. It should be based on a comprehensive programme of 
engagement with service users, their carers and families and other 
stakeholders. 

 
Part Four Section H (Call In Procedure Rules) Paragraph 10 (b) of the Constitution 
requires that when the Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides to refer a decision 
back to a decision maker then the decision taker has 5 working days to reconsider the 
decision before taking a final decision. 
 
The following documents are attached –  
 

a. Report of the Monitoring Officer; 
b. Report of the Director of Adult and Housing Services; 
c. Written Submission made by Bindmans (Solicitors) to which resolution 2b i 

above refers. 
 
Additional documents for information – 
 

d. Copy of the ‘Call In’; 
e. Extract from published minutes of the Cabinet meeting of 19 July 2011; 
f. Report of the Director of Adult and Housing Services considered by the 

Cabinet on 19 July 2011 
 



 

3 

 
NOTE BY HEAD OF LOCAL DEMOCRACY AND MEMBER SERVICES  

 
In accordance with Part Four Section B Paragraph 17 of the Constitution only the items set 
out in this notice may be considered at the special meeting, and no other business shall be 
considered. 
 
 
 
 
David McNulty  
Head of Local Democracy 
and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Richard Burbidge 
Cabinet Committees Manager 
Tel: 020-8489 2923 
Fax: 020-8881 5218 
Email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
16 August 2011 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



  Page 1 of 6 

Appendix 1 
 
Mencap Advocacy Report of Whitehall Street Consultation 
 
Resident A 
Permanent resident at Whitehall St.(WHS). 22-02-11 one on one meeting with 
MH. 
 
Resident A likes having his own room at WHS and he likes having a lock on 
his door, he tells me that he gets on very well with staff members M and C 
and he likes that fact that they or other members of staff take him to church on 
a Sunday when he wants to go. 
 
He told me that he does not like the way Whitehall street is decorated and that 
he does not feel it is well maintained. He points to where paint has been 
scratched away on the wall of the front room door. 
 
He also tells me that at WHS there are set meal times and he does not like 
this, he would like to eat when he wants to and not when he is told to. 
 
The thought of WHS closing and Resident A having to move does worry him a 
little bit, he says that he gets on well with two other permanent residents 
called G and J and Resident G said it would be a shame if he never saw them 
again once he moved. He has no real attachment to the building, it is more 
the relationships that he has formed whilst there. 
 
Not knowing where he might go causes him concern though, if he would have 
a chance to look at re-housing options than this might make him and others 
feel less unsure and anxious. Responses such as “ I don’t want to be by 
myself “, “Will there be staff I can trust.” Come really from not knowing what 
the next step looks like and could be easily resolved. This I would suggest 
needs to be addressed asap.   
 
He talks to me about banners reading “save Whitehall street”, I was not sure 
whether this was an incident in the past or whether this was something being 
planned for the future, but Resident A said he was not interested in getting 
involved. I get the feeling that he not that upset about WHS closing at all but 
as previously said what happens next. 
 
He ends by saying that if he had the choice he would move to 
Buckinghamshire where he has friends or family or family friends, I could not 
quite get this out of him as he has told me that he has had enough of talking 
to me now and has gone outside for a smoke. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



  Page 2 of 6 

 
Resident B 
Permanent resident at Whitehall street. 02-02-11 one on one meeting with 
MH. 
 
Resident B was pleased to see me and was fine for me to sit down with her 
and have a chat. I told her that I was here to talk about the possibility of 
Whitehall street closing and that she with support might have to find another 
home to live. Before even having the chance to ask her how she felt she 
immediately said that she liked Whitehall street and did not want to move. It 
seemed a little bit rehearsed initially so I diverted from this topic for a bit 
before then coming back to it. 
 
I asked her what she like about Whitehall street and she told me that she liked 
colouring in and listening to music, this she does in her room at the moment 
because the Hi Fi in the main socialising area on the first floors Hi Fi is 
broken, she went on to tell me that she really likes talking with other residents 
also and especially she likes playing cards with another resident. 
 
Much like my discussions with Resident A, it seems there is quite a bond 
between the residents at Whitehall, Resident B goes on to say that she would 
not like to be separated from Resident C or Resident D if they moved from 
Whitehall street.   
 
Resident B likes the staff at Whitehall street, especially staff X and Y. 
 
When I ask her if there is anything that she does not like about Whitehall 
street, she tells me that she keeps on telling the staff that they are giving the 
residents too much for dinner and that they do not listen, she tells me about 
the hi fi that has been broken for a long time, but apart from that, she has 
nothing but good words to say about the staff and the building. She tells me 
she likes her room and she thinks that resident C has a nice room also. 
 
I ask her if the thought of moving from Whitehall street is something which is 
worrying her to which she initially replies no, but then she quickly says that 
she would miss playing cards with Resident C, this is a topic which she 
mentions several more times whilst I am with her. The bond is something 
which I think would be clearly missed if she had to move to a separate 
environment. 
 
Given the choice if Resident B had to move, what would make it manageable 
for her was if she could basically relocate the Whitehall street environment 
somewhere else. 

Page 16



  Page 3 of 6 

 
Resident C  
Permanent resident at Whitehall Street, meeting with MH and brother on the 
08-03-11. 
 
When I ask Resident C how she feels about the possibility of moving from 
Whitehall Street, she tells me sad, and then she tells me happy and then she 
tells me sad again. Too inconclusive to get a definite feeling from her. I ask 
her what she likes about Whitehall street to which she replies that she likes W  
(staff member) and she also really likes Residents B and D (other residents). 
She also really like Father …who is a clergyman who comes to visit the 
residents at Whitehall street and they sometimes go to his church. 
 
When I ask her what she does not like about Whitehall Street she replies that 
she does not like her room, details of why it is hard to ascertain as Resident C 
does not give any clearer answers than this. 
 
Resident C has been living at Whitehall Street for over 5 years and it is clear 
that the constantly appearing theme of friend and staff being in a homelike 
family environment keeps cropping up, it is important that staff of the high 
quality that there is at Whitehall Street  are sourced in any future 
accommodations that are looked for, once again, whilst there is no real love 
for Whitehall home as a building it is clear that the residents have built up 
really strong relationships and this is something which should be attempted to 
keep together in any future possible moves. 
 
I ask Resident C  if the thought of moving worry’s her to which she replies 
“what is Whitehall Street  going to do, where am I going to live, will I move to 
L” Resident C starts to show signs of getting emotional and anxious, once 
again, the idea of uncertainty over the future is causing an increase in 
negative emotions. I ask her what help to make her feel less worried about 
moving, to which she says again “what is Whitehall Street going to do”. 
 
R (her brother) tells me that this is part of the problem, there is no what is 
going to happen next information, there are multiple questions that are not 
being answered and so how you not expect people to be worried, anxious and 
unsure. Resident C is clearly getting a bit stressed with my presence so I 
asked her permission to talk to her brother R about Whitehall Street to which 
she says that I can. In circumstances like this where you cannot be sure the 
client fully understands your questions, as in a best interest meeting you 
speak to those closely involved with the client, I ask R for his thoughts. 
 
His thoughts are that he feels there has been no choice given to the clients 
about whether they want to move from WHS, there has been no information 
on what might accommodation and services will be available when WHS 
closes, he thinks it has been handled very badly. The lack of information is 
extremely frustrating for him and he does not live at WHS, so how frustrating 
must it be for the residents. 
 

Page 17



  Page 4 of 6 

R thinks that WHS is Brilliant, he tells me that Resident C was formerly at 
Linden Rd and Talbot Rd and that out of the three places she has lived WHS 
in his opinion was clearly the best provider, he thinks that WHS has a brilliant 
staff team and that the WHS environment has improved greatly since the 
redevelopment it had. 
 
He thinks that the nature of the local area means that the service users do not 
go out much in the evening and that they tend not to use local shops which he 
feels is a shame, but understands that Tottenham is not the greatest 
environment in which one would feel safe. He is worried about were Resident 
C might move to, he would like it if at all possible that an environment that 
looks nice should be considered. R is a council driver and picks clients up 
from multiple care homes in the borough and he does not see anything that 
makes him think that yes, I would be happy if Resident C moved to that home. 
He says that in an ideal world, Resident C has holidays with a company called 
Break before in Norfolk, to which she really liked he says. A beautiful 
environment like that would be ideal. 
 
He also tells me that he believes that Resident C’s needs should be 
reassessed at this moment in time and that any move should be grounded in 
the conclusions found in that assessment so that any move can be up to date 
and correct for her needs. 
 
Respite user E 
Respite user at Whitehall street. Meeting with MH and brother F on evening of 
second consultation, 10-03-11 
 
Respite user E says that he likes WHS, but in all honesty it would not bother 
him that much were he went for respite, he is not worried about WHS closing 
down, he just wants there to be a respite option. Respite user E does look 
forward to his breaks, it is a chance to get away and have a change of 
scenery, it is very good for him family to have a little break as well. 
 
F tells me that since his mum died in 2009 he suffers from depression, he 
feels that Respite user E could benefit from having a holiday somewhere 
peaceful and nice rather that having his respite in a residential home. 
 
Resident F 
Permanent resident at WHS. Meeting with MH and Ermine road support 
worker      15-03-11 
 
I start by explaining why I am there, Resident F is going through a period of 
being non verbal at the moment so I use my yes and no and good and bad 
cards for Resident F to point at. Resident F also has paper and a pencil with 
her and has decided that she can use this to give answers as well. 
 
I ask her how she feels about the possible idea that WHS will close and that 
she might have to move, I ask her this 3 times in total throughout the whole 
meeting to which she answers twice that she is happy about the thought of 

Page 18



  Page 5 of 6 

moving from WHS and once she say that she is unhappy about the idea of 
moving from WHS. I would gauge this to be inconclusive.  
 
I ask her what she likes about WHS to which she writes down that she likes 
the food, I ask her what she thinks about the staff to which she says she likes 
them. I ask her what else she likes to which she does not expend on. 
 
I then start to talk to her about what she does not like about WHS, she writes 
that she does not like the building and that she does not like her room. A, her 
support worker who is also present tell me that she has seen Residents F’s 
room and that it is extremely bare, A says that this is because Resident F  
very often breaks things, she tells me that she believes there are not enough 
residents that are on the same communication levels as Resident F  and feels 
that this is a negative thing for her, she can obviously communicate quite well 
and I am impressed by the quality of her writing skills, I can see how A’s 
opinion could very well be true having met with quite a few of the residents 
myself. 
 
Others have told me that it is not the most stimulating environment in the 
world and this could very well be something which is stifling Resident  F’s own 
personal development. I ask her whether she is worried about moving, she 
gives me both yes and no answers. I ask her if she would like to know more 
about other places to live which she writes yes to. 
 
I ask her what she would like to do more of to which she writes she would like 
to do more stuff at home, like reading joke books, table tennis and swimming 
and going outside more. This has been something which I have picked up 
upon before during this consultation that people feel that the residents do not 
go outside of the building a great deal.  
 
Resident F then makes it clear that she has had enough of me and we decide 
to end the meeting there. 
 
Resident G  
Permanent resident at WHS. One on one discussion with her on the 2nd 
consultation evening and then a discussion with her mother at Ermine Rd on 
the 16-03-11. 
 
I tried to talk to Resident G about WHS on the evening of the second 
consultation but she  was unable to display to me that she could understand 
the questions that I was asking her, she very much wanted to talk to me about 
cups of tea and she kept on asking me who I was but it seemed highly 
unlikely to me that I would be able to get her to focus on the issue of WHS 
without a considerable period of time. As is common in these cases and in 
best interest meetings I arranged to speak to her mother who is still active in 
Resident G’s  life. 
 

Page 19



  Page 6 of 6 

Mother’s comments are as follows: 
 
“They should not move Resident G. Resident G is someone that likes to have 
a settled routine, if her routine is broken or changed this is very stressful for 
her and will make her very unhappy, I think it is evil to move her from her calm 
situation, from her home. As usual, the council are thinking about the financial 
consequences of WHS and not the emotional side of how this will affect 
human beings.” 
 
“It is Tottenham people and their council tax money that pay for these 
services, they should let Tottenham people decide what happens to their 
council tax money.” 
 
“I think WHS should be kept open, they should also tell people what the 
options and alternatives are, stop talking to us about money and start talking 
to us about how peoples lives are going to be effected. This is their home, I 
think it would be unfair to break people up from their friendship groups and 
unfair to break up their routine.” 
 
“WHS has been Resident G’s home for a good few years and this will be a 
major distraction to her, I am really worried as are a lot of other people as to 
what might happen to her and where she will go, I hope that it is not L road, I 
am too old to look after her now, I wish I could, I am too old for all of this 
worry, I thought that WHS would be somewhere that Resident G could settle 
for life and now I am really worried.” 
 
“Change is extremely disruptive – they have not chosen to have a disability 
and the only comfort they have is their home. “ 
 
 
 
 
Mark Heath 
Mencap Advocacy  

Page 20



 

www.haringey.gov.uk 

Appendix 2 
 

 
 

 

GUIDANCE  

 

FOR  

 

CLOSURE  

&   

TRANSFER 

OF  

VULNERABLE/FRAIL RESIDENTS 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE HOMES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document 
Reference: 

 

Author(s): Len Weir and Beverley Tarka 

Issue No: One  Issue Date: 1/08/11 

Version No: V0.1. Authorised By: Lisa Redfern 

Review Date: 1/04/12   

 

Page 21



 

 2 

CONTENTS             PAGE 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION   
 

3 

2.0 PRINCIPLES AND RIGHTS 
      2.1 COMMUNICATION WITH RELATIVES, FRIENDS AND      
      CARERS 
 

4-5 

3.0 OVERALL MANAGEMENT OF THE CLOSURE AND 
TRANSFER 
 

6 

4.0 CONSULTATION 
 

8 

5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

11 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RISK MANAGEMENT 
6.1 SOCIAL AND HEALTH CARE ASSESSMENT OF 
INDIVIDUAL RESIDENTS 
6.2 ARRANGEMENTS FOR RESIDENTS TO TRANSFER 
6.3 TRANSFER OF HEALTH CARE 
6.4 ADVOCACY 
6.5  FACILITIES MANAGEMENT 
6.6 FOLLOW UP 
 

13-26 
16 
 
19 
22 
23 
24 
26 

7.0 DEBRIEF, FEEDBACK AND LESSONS IDENTIFED 
 

26 

8.0 CONCLUSION 
 

27 

Appendix 1 – Other Useful Sources of Information 27 
Appendix 2 - Good Practice Checklists and Action Plans 28 
  
Table 1 – Illustrative time line for key activities 7 
Table 2 – Mitigation of Risks 15 
Table 3 – Facilities management and actions for closure 24 
  
  
  
 

Page 22



 

 3 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
The primary aim of this Best Practice guidance is to ensure that when a 
decision has been made to close a care home, the needs of residents, their 
relatives and others are met as far as possible, and that efficient and effective 
actions are taken in response to their individual circumstances and needs. 
 
Underpinning this guidance are local and national experience, ‘best practice’, 
research, government circulars, statue, regulations and case law.  Several 
sources of useful information are listed at Appendix 1 to this Guidance. 
 
A coordinated response and effective partnership working can ensure the 
well-being of residents, their representatives and staff. 
 
This guidance is between London Borough of Haringey, NHS, voluntary and 
independent sector partners and colleagues and the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC).  Throughout the document these are referred to as the 
Local Authority, NHS, the voluntary and independent sector and CQC. 
 
This guidance is provided to support the transition process which follows any 
decision to close or decommission a residential home for vulnerable people in 
or cared for by the Borough. 
 
The process of closing a care home is complex, protracted and one which 
can potentially cause anxiety and stress for residents, relatives and staff 
alike. It therefore needs to be approached with care and sensitivity and 
undertaken in a dignified and a humane way.  This guidance aims to provide 
a mechanism to support people through the closure and transfer process. 
 
It also aims to ensure the protection of vulnerable adults at all times and that 
people are treated humanely and with dignity and respect (Dignity Guidance).  
 

Page 23



 

 4 

2.0 PRINCIPLES AND RIGHTS 
 
The well-being, needs and rights of vulnerable adults are paramount.  This 
cannot be assured without appropriate communication and consultation with 
users of services, next-of-kin, carers and other formal and informal 
representatives of people who use our services.   

 
Appropriate communication must take into account the language and 
communication mode appropriate to the individuals involved (language, 
sensory and other impairment needs etc).  Where possible, information 
should also be made available in accessible formats. 
 
Consistent and timely communication with all involved parties is necessary, 
as are comprehensive records and notes of what has taken place. 
 
Consultation with others about them is subject to obtaining informed consent 
from service users.  Where an adult is unable to consent or make important 
decisions because of mental incapacity, the Mental Capacity Act 2005, its 
code of practice and regulations should apply to financial, serious health 
treatment and accommodation decisions.   
 
Self-funders should be entitled to the same advice and assistance as other 
adults funded by statutory and voluntary organisations. 
 
Agencies should work together cooperatively and take account of the 
following principles when relocating vulnerable adults and be mindful of the 
relevant key principles and objectives of the Haringey Compact in terms of 
effective working with statutory, voluntary and private agencies: 
 

• Safety  

• Safeguarding 

• Minimising distress and disruption of services 

• Dignity 

• Choice 

• Least restrictive options 

• Respect for family life 

• Equality and Diversity 

• Privacy 

• Realising Potential 
It is acknowledged that multiple moves can be disruptive for individuals and 
their families and these should therefore be avoided unless there are 
extenuating circumstances that make them unavoidable.  

Page 24



 

 5 

 
The importance of protecting friendship groups when planning and actioning 
new placements for residents should  be recognised and individual and group 
preferences accommodated wherever practical. 
 
All agencies operate within the boundaries of resource constraints.  Realistic 
expectations and planning should make best use of available resources. 
 
2.1 COMMUNICATION WITH RELATIVES, FRIENDS AND CARERS 
 

• Communications with relatives, friends and carers should be conducted 
on an individual resident by resident basis [correspondence, updates 
and, face-to-face once the decision to close a residential care home 
has been made]. 

 

• Residents’ personal histories should form part of the information 
transferred when they move from the originating home to any new 
setting and where possible, relatives should be involved in providing 
this information – this is also to include likes and dislikes/preferred 
names etc. 

 

• Generally, relatives, friends, carers and advocates (where identified as 
required) are to be involved throughout the managed closure period. 

 
Prior to decisions being made, consideration should be given to the impact 
upon carers and vulnerable people (and be a part of the consultation, 
equalities and other impact assessments that form part of the decision-
making) 
Monitoring and review of the well-being of vulnerable adults should be 
undertaken at appropriate intervals, and should  underpin the identification of 
good practice and lessons to be applied in up-dating of this Guidance and our 
procedures.  
 

Page 25



 

 6 

3.0 OVERALL MANAGEMENT OF THE CLOSURE AND TRANSFER  
 
Any closure and transfer should be treated as a project and adopt ‘project 
management principles’ and be overseen at the appropriate senior 
management, Board level (e.g. Divisional Management Board).  The group 
should meet fortnightly (monthly at the outside) and other members should 
include the appropriate service and specialists (Director/Deputy Director, 
Heads of Service, HR, Business Support, Finance, Press & Communications, 
Consultation, Equalities, Legal etc) in order to discuss relevant matters (risks 
and issues) and review progress leading up to, during and after any closure 
and transfer. 
   
The appropriate Board should take all key decisions, including agreement 
that this Guidance has been fully adhered to before any transfers take place. 
 
A ‘named person or persons’ should be responsible for overseeing the project 
on a day to day basis from conception to completion – reporting to the Board 
and supported along the pathway by individuals with identified roles within the 
various work streams as appropriate to the stage or stages of the project. 
 
The Board shall ensure oversight of the project/programme throughout the 
closure and transfer and a formal evaluation/review should take place 6 
weeks after the transfer of the final residents. 
 
There should be a designated individual for the home(s) in question to whom  
staff and others can turn with their concerns if they believe that the process is 
not being handled sensitively or appropriately. 
 
An overall project plan including key milestones should be produced. 
 
A risk register and issues log should be produced and updated as required. 
 
A project initiation document (PID) should scope the range, outcomes and 
outline business case as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

 7 

Table 1 – Illustrative time line for key activities. 
 

Activities (month) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 etc 

Communication          

Project planning          

Consultation with 
residents/families 

         

Consultation with 
workforce 

         

Risk assessment 
 

         

Equalities impact 
assessment 

         

Identification of jobs at 
risk and issuing 
redundancy notices 

         

Individual support 
planning meetings/ 
exploring options 

         

Individual meetings 
with staff: relocation/ 
redundancy 

         

Staff skills 
development/time off 
for job seeking 

         

Medical/nursing 
assessments 

         

Visits to potential new 
homes/staff visits 

         

Decisions about moves          

Closure events –  
party, memory books 
etc. 

         

Identification and 
securing of property 

         

Coordinating moves 
 

         

Staff leaving 
 

         

Facilities/property 
security and closure 

         

Monitoring and follow 
up of process 

         

Lessons learned 
from process 

         

 

 

Page 27



 

 8 

4.0 CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation and decision-making should be as open and transparent as 
possible. See the Council’s Consultation Charter  Residents and relatives and 
others stakeholder/stakeholder groups directly affected must be involved 
throughout. 
 
Neither should be rushed and must be genuinely entered into,  with face-to-
face contact explaining the reasons for closure among the means of effective 
consultation employed.  Residents should be offered an advocacy service 
(and access to legal advice) where they have no friend, relative or carer to 
speak on their behalf. 
 
The timing and manner of breaking the news to residents is also critical.  
Using the analogy of bereavement, people should be allowed to go through 
the various stages such as shock, denial, anger and finally acceptance with 
skilled staff and others on hand to assist individuals through this.  Residents’ 
families or close friends may also have feelings of guilt and anxiety and may 
need special attention.  Building in enough time through the stages is crucial.  
The local authority should keep people well informed every step of the way, 
making sure the residents, relatives, advocates and staff are among the first 
to know of any developments.  They need to be told the facts in a 
straightforward way, without bad news being couched in language intended to 
soften the blow, if this could be perceived as patronising. 
 
Consultation is a partnership in the decision-making process.  In having their 
say, those involved can share in how and what decision is made and the 
shaping of any future or alternative provision. 
 

“In any context the essence of consultation is the communication of a 
genuine invitation to give advice and a genuine receipt of that advice” 

 

There are four minimum requirements of consultation 

• It must be when proposals are still at a formative stage 

• Sufficient information must be given to permit informed consideration 
and response 

• Adequate time must be allowed for the consultation 

• Consultation must be meaningful and conscientiously taken into 
consideration in reaching decisions. 

 

Page 28



 

 9 

Even when there is no statutory requirement to consult, there is likely to be an 
expectation of doing so, either because of a promise/past practice and/or 
because of the interests involved (at any rate in the case of residents and 
staff). 
 
Consultation can be on a preferred or ‘in principal’ option.  If there is an 
amended proposal arising from responses to the consultation, there is no 
need to start the consultation process again (i.e. views have been listened 
to).  If however, it is a ‘new’ proposal, then there will be a requirement for 
further consultation.  Whether a proposal is an ‘amended’ one or a ‘new’ one 
requires advice from the Local Authority’s legal and consultation experts 
before any action is taken. 
 
Residents of homes or people who use our service have a right to be 
consulted about proposals which affect their support and care service, even 
where it may cause them distress to do so.  This is relevant particularly for 
people with learning disabilities where carers have argued that residents 
should not be informed about options because it would ‘upset them 
considerably’. The argument has also been made about the residents of 
homes for older people. 

 
What is important to consider is the timing of the consultation, how it is 
communicated and handled so that distress is minimised and support is given 
to residents and people who use our services throughout. 
 
Consultation is not a ‘process’.  A 12-week period of formal consultation 
should be used to include residents and carers, general public, stakeholders 
and staff and Trade Unions. 
 
A detailed account should  be maintained for analysis and reported to inform 
decision-making and should be made available to relevant stakeholders. 
 
A dedicated team of experienced, and specially trained social care staff 
should be established to support and offer advice to residents and their 
families throughout the entire period. 
 
The dedicated social care worker would complete the consultation with 
residents and their family members on the proposals relating to home 
closures. The purpose of the consultation is to give residents, relatives and 
carers, the opportunity to contribute their views/suggestions on the proposals. 
 
Throughout the consultation, consultees should be advised of the timescales 
involved and it should  be stressed that no decision has yet been made. 

Page 29



 

 10 

 
Consultation with others about an individual is subject to obtaining informed 
consent from people who use our service. Where an adult is unable to 
consent or make important decisions because of mental incapacity, the 
Mental Capacity Act 2005, its code of practice and regulations, should apply. 
 
IMCA services should be accessed to support residents without mental 
capacity and who have no next of kin or advocates. Advocacy support would 
be available. 
 

Page 30



 

 11 

5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
Risk assessments in relation to the transfers should be completed on an 
individual basis as part of the assessment process in the run up to the 
transfer to another home and should involve relevant professionals, including 
health staff. Consultants in Old People’s Medical and Old People’s Mental 
Health to provide appropriate clinical assessment and oversight to support 
residents and staff during the transition planning process. However, there are 
some general risks which can be foreseen and actions taken to minimise the 
impact of any transfer on older people. 
 

(i) There is likely to be greater risk for people with severe 
dementia/confusion and in particular for those people who are 
extremely frail and have co-existing medical illnesses. As an 
example (but not exclusively) these would include heart and lung 
disease, Parkinsons, previous breakdown, great age, male gender, 
liability to falls/reduced mobility, incontinence, impaired 
vision/hearing, anxiety/depression/paranoid thoughts, obesity, 
multiple medication and a history of chest infection (and/or 
combinations of the above). 

 
Action required: medical examination initial assessment and also 
immediately prior to any proposed transfer (if indicated) will be important as 
part of the individual risk assessment and should  indicate whether a resident 
is fit to transfer and any additional precautions which may need to be taken. 
 

(ii) Residents who need particular pieces of equipment (e.g. special 
mattresses in order to have adequate care) may be at an increased 
risk. 

 
Action required: a review of the equipment needs of any residents 
transferring to a new home should be undertaken and no resident should be 
moved until the receiving home has in place the required equipment and 
where necessary staff have received training in its use. 
 

(iii) Residents with special dietary needs, particularly those who may 
need assistance with feeding (for whatever reason) may also be at 
increased risk. 

 
Action required: that these individuals are identified and their support plans 
fully reflect any assistance which may be required in this area. In addition, 
named care staff from the receiving home should be fully briefed and trained 
on any particular skills which may be required. A transition form/checklist 

Page 31



 

 12 

should accompany the resident to the receiving home to ensure all identified 
information requirements are in place. This may be effected by staff from the 
current home “in-reaching” to discuss matters with the receiving homes staff. 
 
(It is not possible for London Borough of Haringey staff to move with residents 
to private care homes except to transfer and offer support on arrival to settle 
in.) 
 

(iv) Generally, the up-to-date knowledge of an individual’s medical 
condition and their fitness to transfer is key, as is the handover 
between one medical practitioner and another. 

 
Action required: up to date medical and nursing evaluation (see below). 
 

(v) The impact of a move is greatest immediately after relocation and 
during the first 3 months in the new environment, but may also be 
evident in the period of consultation and preparation for a 
forthcoming move. 

 
Action required: all relevant staff involved should be briefed on the 
stress/anxiety likely to be experienced by the residents and how best to help. 
The receiving home should be asked to identify a key worker and if possible a 
resident to assist the new resident to become familiar with the home. 
 

Page 32



 

 13 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RISK MANAGEMENT: PRE-
TRANSFERS 
 

• It should not be a ‘rushed’ approach.  Careful, sensitive planning should 
be the watchword to any individual transfer. A suitable period of 
planning for transition should be available – this is likely to be 
approximately 6 months and avoiding winter months if at all possible. 
(However if users/relatives wish a move to take place earlier, this 
should be accommodated and a risk management plan identified to 
minimise the risks associated with a move undertaken in those 
circumstances.) 

 

• Usually a maximum of 1 resident on any one day should move from the 
originating home between Monday and Friday. However, if groups of 
friends express a wish to move together and suitable staffing 
arrangements including travelling support can be arranged, then this 
should be explored as it may be beneficial to the residents for them to 
move and travel together. This may be a particular issue towards the 
end of the managed closure when the worry of being one of only a few 
residents left at the originating home may outweigh their concerns 
about transfer.  In addition, if family members with to move their relative 
and providing suitable transfer arrangements can be made, this can be 
outside the maximum number transferring in a week. A risk 
management plan should be identified to minimise the risks associated 
with a move undertaken in these circumstances. 

 

• Careful planning should demonstrate the following: adequacy  of the 
assessment and examination of the residents in the immediate period 
before transfer; adequacy of the documentation; quality of transfer 
arrangements (particularly for residents requiring special equipment e.g. 
mattresses); relevant documents travelling with the resident on transfer 
and the need to adequately communicate care staff to care staff, nurse 
to nurse and doctor to doctor so that care/medical/nursing needs are 
fully understood by the receiving home.  

 

• There should be flexibility and a willingness to delay a move if 
additional hazards are identified whilst appropriate control measures 
are put in place to reduce the identified risks. 

 

• The emphasis should be on meeting the individual’s needs rather than 
looking at the resettlement of a wider group of people as a whole. This 
may include a need for particular individuals to move in friendship 

Page 33



 

 14 

groups. However, individual programmes should be looked at in the 
context of a need to have some overall coordination.  

 

• Visits to alternative care settings for residents and their carers should 
be facilitated, with appropriate transport provided where required. 

 

• Additional staffing resources should be identified if required during the 
transitional period and appropriate resources  identified and deployed to 
lead on the assessment processes, to offer additional support to the 
residents at the originating home. Advocacy resources should be 
identified where this is indicated to support individual residents. 

 

• The residents’ co-worker or nominated care worker should have 
oversight of the resident in the week up to their planned move. Staff 
should look for any changes in physical or mental well-being which may 
indicate a higher risk on transfer e.g. loss of appetite, onset of 
confusion, changes to regular toilet habits etc. If required, medical 
advice should  be sought. 

 

• Resident’s views should be sought throughout regarding their new 
placement i.e. if the resident is moving to a newly constructed 
home/extra care unit where possible they should have involvement in 
decoration choices, day of transfer, staff involvement in transfer etc. 

 

• Where supported housing/extra care is an option, social care staff 
should apply for relevant grants and assist in the setting up 
arrangements for flats/tenancies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

 15 

 
 
 
Table 2 – Mitigation of Risks 
 

Risk Mitigation 

Higher levels of risk for people with 
dementia and confusion, particularly 
where there is frailty or an underlying 
illness 

Good social care practice requires 
explanation, support, reassurance and 
more explanation.  This may need to 
be repeated. 
 
Medical examinations on initial 
assessment and prior to move.  
Additional medical interventions if 
necessary at point of move. 
 
Face to face handover between 
medical and health practitioners if 
required. 

Risks relating to residents requiring 
specific equipment, such as mattress, 
ceiling track host, hi-lo bath 

Review of equipment needs prior to 
move.  Equipment provision to be 
checked at new home before moving. 
 
What equipment can be transferred 
with the resident. 

Risks to residents with special dietary 
needs and those who require support to 
eat or artificial feeding (such as PEG) 

Support plans to be reviewed to 
ensure full information is included.  
Briefing and training of staff of 
receiving home by current staff.  
Current staff working alongside those 
in receiving homes if necessary short 
term. 

Risks of impact of move through stress 
and anxiety over changes during 
preparation period and in first 3 months 
following move. 

Full briefings on effects of stress and 
anxiety to all involved in supporting 
residents.  Receiving home to allocate 
key worker and ‘buddy’ if possible to 
support people prior, during and 
following the move. 

Risks of moving without adequate 
planning and preparation for each 
individual. 

Planning and transition process 
should be scheduled for a maximum 
of approximately 6 months.  
Consideration should be given to not 
moving people in inclement weather.  
Where friendship groups are moving 
together, they should  be moved at the 
same time.  Focus on each individual 
each day for moving. 

 
 

Page 35



 

 16 

 
 
6.1 SOCIAL AND HEALTH CARE ASSESSMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL 
RESIDENTS 
 

• An up-to-date needs-led assessment should be completed for each 
resident as the main way of identifying a suitable care setting/supported 
housing option as an alternative to the originating home. The nominated 
care manager should ensure that all relevant professionals, including 
health professionals, contribute to this. Where supported housing is an 
option an Occupational Therapist should contribute to the assessment 
process. The views of family/next of kin should also be sought. The 
resulting support plan should address all aspects of care, but should 
also include information such as dietary needs and “likes/dislikes”, 
spiritual and/or cultural needs and other specific requirements which 
may be particularly important to the individual resident. As identified 
elsewhere in this Guidance this information should be shared with the 
receiving home. 

 

• Issues relating to the safeguarding and protection of Vulnerable Adults 
should be referred to the host team for a Risk Assessment prior to 
transfer. Factors that should be taken into consideration are Capacity 
issues, Transfer of information to the new placement and Risk factors in 
relation to other residents. Therefore, guidance should be taken from 
the Adult Protection Team and/or Legal Services as appropriate in 
relation to planning the transfer.  

 

• The completed assessment should be considered against the NHS 
Continuing Health Care criteria.  

 

• Each resident should be individually assessed for their suitability to 
transfer and to ensure that any new provider agrees that their needs 
can be fully met in the receiving care home or supported housing 
option. A support plan should be developed jointly between the social 
care worker, their existing home and any new provider which should be 
reviewed a few days immediately before transfer to ensure that it is 
completely up to date. 

 

• Incapacity - Where we are caring for an incapacitated individual, the 
following factors should be built into the assessment and decision 
making process: 

 

Page 36



 

 17 

• The ascertainable past and present wishes and feelings of the person  
     concerned and the factors the person would consider if able to do so. 
 

• The need to permit and encourage the person to participate or  
     improve his/her ability to participate as fully as possible in anything  
     done for and any decision affecting him or her. 
 

•  The views of other people whom it is appropriate and practical to  
    consult about the person’s wishes and feelings and what would be in  
    his/her best interests; and 
 

•  Whether the purpose for which any action or decision is required can  
    be as effectively achieved in a manner less restrictive of the person’s  
    freedom of action. 
 

•   Whether there is a reasonable expectation of the person recovering  
    capacity to make the decision in the reasonably foreseeable future. 
 

•  The need to be satisfied that the wishes of the person without capacity  
    were not the result of undue influence. 

 

• Where appropriate residents should have a full physical examination no 
more than 3 months prior to transfer, with a further examination and a 
medical discharge summary (dated) within 1 week of their arrival at the 
new home and with more assertive medical/nursing follow up (within 24 
hours) for those clients who are particularly frail and/or have dementia. 
In the event of a medical examination being identified and not 
undertaken due to time restriction or referral this should be recorded 
and the new provider informed. The pre-transfer assessment should 
specifically address fitness of the resident to move and any special 
precautions which may need to be taken in each case (medical risk 
assessment). 

 

• Clear arrangements for the medical transfer of each resident should be 
made prior to any relocation. 

 

• Where applicable, a nursing transfer letter should be sent with the 
resident which identifies the critical issues relating to their nursing care 
needs. The Lead local Nurse and the relevant General Practitioners 
should l be involved in assisting Adult Services with this exercise, also a 
therapy plan as required. 

 

Page 37



 

 18 

• If friends or groups of friends wish to move to the same home, then 
where possible this should be accommodated and planned for 
accordingly. 

 

• At the conclusion of this process an Operational Manager (or more 
senior officer) should authorise the assessment and if appropriate 
agree that the resident may be transferred to an available placement. 
They should  retain oversight of the arrangements to ensure that it 
remained appropriate for the client to transfer and that their needs 
continue to be met. 

 

Page 38



 

 19 

6.2 ARRANGEMENTS FOR RESIDENTS TO TRANSFER 
 

• An identified social care worker should be available for each resident 
and their relatives/carers to provide advice and support on vacancies, 
preferred area and choice of accommodation. 

 

• Consultation should take place between the homes management team, 
service users and their families regarding the best way to transfer from 
one home to another. The management team should ensure that 
sufficient staff are available to support the transition. This should not 
normally mean more than one resident moving per day. 

 

• No transfer should take place at the weekend – unless family or service 
user specifically request it and suitable arrangements can be assured. 
The exception should  be if groups of friends express a wish to move 
together, relatives support the request and suitable staffing 
arrangements including travelling support can be arranged. This may 
be a particular issues towards the end of the managed closure when 
the worry of being one of only a few residents left as the originating 
home may outweigh resident’s and relatives concerns about transfer. 

 

• Following assessment including the appropriate risk assessments, the 
individual support plan should be reviewed and updated within 1 week 
prior to transfer. A formal review of each resident should be conducted 
at approximately 4 weeks, evaluation at 3 months and 6 months, and a 
12-month review by the Social Care Worker after transfer. As is 
standard practice for formal reviews, all relevant parties should be 
invited to be involved and adjustments should be made to the support 
plan if required. A representative from the care home or Local Authority 
should visit the resident in their new accommodation within 1 month of 
transfer wherever feasible. 

 

• Appropriate arrangements should be made for any new providers’ staff 
to become familiar with the resident and their support plan prior to 
transfer – including familiarity with dietary and other relevant needs. 

 

• Staff from the new residential/nursing home should be assisted to 
become familiar with the residents and their support plan prior to 
transfer. 

 

• A visit/several visits to a prospective home, supported living 
environment should be arranged.  Having a meal, overnight stay would 

Page 39



 

 20 

be preferable.  In the case of people with a learning disability a 
handover over several days should be arranged.  Haringey staff 
members should spend time with the individual resident in their new 
environment.  This is very important as part of the settling in period.  

 

• The Homes Manager should take responsibility for ensuring that any 
documentation for individual residents is fully developed and accurate, 
for transfer with that resident to their new accommodation. 

 

• It should  be made clear to the Registered Manager of any receiving 
care home or nursing home that they are empowered to refuse the 
transfer of a resident if they are not happy that all suitable 
arrangements have been put in place and that the support plans etc are 
absolutely clear. 

 

• A member of the originating home’s management team should contact 
each of the receiving homes/housing providers in the 24 hours before 
the date of the planned transfer of any individual as a final check to 
ensure they are fully prepared to accept the older person the following 
day. 

 

• Ongoing contact should  be maintained with the receiving home to 
make the transfer and this would be maintained for an appropriate 
period. 

 

• Transport arrangements should be made to ensure  that the vehicle is 
suitably equipped to accommodate the needs of the individual resident 
who should be accompanied by a carer who knows them and can offer 
support during the journey. 

 

• Any client who is considered not to be physically well enough to move 
should have their transfer date put back until well enough to transfer to 
the new home. Appropriate medical involvement should  be sought and 
appropriate staff involved in the assessment and treatment of the 
person. 

 

• Where there is no representative/friend or family member available or 
on request, a care worker with the individual older person should travel 
with that resident from the originating home to any new accommodation 
in order to ensure a smooth handover to a named worker in the new 
unit. Negotiations should  take place between the originating home and 
new providers to ensure that staff familiar with the residents can support 

Page 40



 

 21 

the resident who is transferred for a suitable period of time (during the 
first week) to ensure smooth transfer. 

 

• The clothing, possessions and furniture of residents should go with 
them to the new establishment so that their new environment is as 
familiar as possible. 

 

• The Manager (or identified member of the home(s) management team) 
on duty at the originating home on the day of transfer should have the 
authority to cancel or postpone the move of a resident if they have any 
doubts as all that it is appropriate or safe on that day.  They should  
know that they have the support of senior managers to take this 
decision. 

 
 

Page 41



 

 22 

6.3 TRANSFER OF HEALTH CARE 
 

• The residents’ own GP should be asked if they have any medical 
advice to give concerning the transfer and where possible should be 
asked to continue the care of the person after the move. 

 

• Arrangements should be initiated for a GP to be appointed at least one 
month prior to the transfer of any resident to a new care home/nursing 
home. Both the GPs at the originating home and the receiving GP 
should be asked to be involved in the planning of the transfer to 
individual residents. 

 

• Residents should  have a full physical examination no more that 3 
months prior to transfer and this report should  be made available to the 
receiving home. 

 

• A transfer letter should be sent with the resident, identifying any critical 
issues relating to their nursing of care needs. 

 

Page 42



 

 23 

6.4 ADVOCACY 
 

• Independent advocacy, similar to that made available during the 
consultation period, should continue to be offered throughout any 
managed closure process for residents of homes with no friends or 
family to assist them. 

 
 

Page 43



 

 24 

6.5    FACILITIES MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Table 3 – Facilities management and actions for closure 

 
WHAT ACTION REQUIRED LEAD 

PERSON 
TIME 
SCALE 

PROGRESS UPDATE 

Gather all relevant 
stakeholders 
information 

Contact/write to 

• Day Centres 

• PCT/LCC 

• SW/GPs 

• Agencies 

• Utilities 

• Community nurses 

• Transport 

• Trade directories 

• Neighbours 

   

Keys Collect keys from any 
key holder 

   

Signage Remove all signage 
 

   

Credit cards Cancel all credit cards 
 

   

IT Inform any IT  
department 

• Remove access to 
network 

• Phones to be 
diverted 

• Computers to be 
removed 

   

Insurance • Inform building and 
contents insurers if 
building is to be 
empty 

• Liability and 
indemnity 
insurance 
cancelled 

   

Vacancy rates Apply for vacancy rates    
 

Utilities Take a reading of 
gas/water and electric.  
Ask for final phone bill 
and broad band bill 

   

Portable and 
electrical 
equipment 

Remove all small 
electrical equipment, 
i.e. TVs music 
systems, microwaves 

   

Inventory Check inventory 
against any checklists 

   

Fridges/Cupboards Empty cupboards and 
fridges, leave fridge 
doors open 

   

Mail • Inform bands and 
other 
correspondents 

   

Page 44



 

 25 

• Inform Royal Mail 
and have mail 
diverted to 
appropriate 
address 

Medicines  Remove all medicines 
and record disposal 
accordingly 

   

Confidential files Remove all confidential 
files and archive 
according to current 
legislation 

   

Stationery Remove all stationery 
 

   

Contractors Consult services 
contracts.  Inform 
contractors of 
termination.  Serve 
notice if required 

   

Minibus/cars Cancel 
insurance/contract 

   

Rubbish Remove all rubbish 
from site/unit 

   

Cleaning of unit Cleaners to action    
 

Petty cash To be signed off 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

 26 

6.6 FOLLOW-UP 
 

• Personalisation and Assessment staff should complete a review 4-6 
weeks after transfer, to which friends, relatives, carers and advocates 
should be invited to attend.  

 

• A further evaluation should be scheduled for 3 and 6 months post-
transfer. 

 

• Following that, the usual 12 monthly (annual) review should apply, 
unless there is a request for a re-assessment. 

 
7.0 DEBRIEF, FEEDBACK AND LESSONS IDENTIFIED 
 

• It is recommended that this Guidance is formally reviewed annually but 
within 6 months in the first year. 

 

• To facilitate a continuous approach to learning and improvement it is 
recommended that each time the Guidance is issued, the Lead Officer, 
following debriefings from residents, their representatives and staff 
should complete a learning report and make any necessary 
amendments to this document. 

 

• The above to be completed within 3 months of a closure. 
 

Page 46



 

 27 

8.0 CONCLUSION 
 
A number of factors influence the outcomes for vulnerable adults in transition 
from one care setting to another including the individuals’ physical and mental 
frailty, the adequacy of social and health care assessment prior to transfer, 
timescales and arrangements for transfer, support systems and effective 
partnership, consultation and communication. 
 
Understanding that some frail people will be particularly vulnerable to the 
stress of relocation, the Guidance outlined above is proposed as a way of 
ensuring that these issues are planned for and robustly addressed in a timely 
fashion.  It is intended for use by lead officers to ensure the closure and 
transfers are handled sensitively and responsibly are employed and to 
provide confidence to residents, relatives and others that individuals should 
be treated with dignity, humanity and respect and the ongoing well-being of 
the individual paramount. 
 
 
Appendix 1  Other Useful Sources of Information 
 
Personal Social Services Research Unit: Guidelines for the closure of care 
homes for older people, October 2003. 
 
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services: Achieving Closure, Good 
practice in supporting older people during residential care closures, Undated. 
 
Social Care Association, Managing Care Home Closure, 2011. 
 
 

Page 47



 

 28 

Appendix 2 - Good Practice Checklists and Action Plans 
 
A. Checklist for Senior Management, Registered Manager or Project Manager (Immediate Actions) 
 

Actions 
 

Yes/No Named 
Person 

Comments 

1. ON ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSURE 
Have all residents and staff involved been given a 
written statement: 

   

 
ü Detailing the actual facts? 
 

   

 
ü Stating the reasons for the decision? 
 

   

 
ü Giving any secondary decision making process? 
 

   

 
ü Ensuring that the future is clear? 
 

   

 
ü Ensuring that they know where they stand? 
 

   

 
ü Describing the communications plan? 
 

   

2. HAS IMMEDIATE CONSULTATION WITH 
TRADE UNION AND PROFESSIONAL 
ASSOCIATIONS COMMENCED? 
Will these ensure: 

   

 
ü Adequate measures for redundancy? 

   

P
a

g
e
 4

8



 

 29 

 

 
ü Or: continuity of employment? 
 

   

 
ü That the staff group are retained intact for the 
whole of the closure and subsequent settling down 
period? 
 

   

 
ü Full agreement with all staff on personnel 
issues? 
 

   

3. HAS A NAMED PERSON OUTSIDE THE 
HOME BEEN APPOINTED TO ACT AS AN 
EXTERNAL ADVISOR FOR THE RESIDENTS 
AND STAFF ACROSS THE WHOLE CLOSURE 
PERIOD? 

   

 
ü Have they been adequately prepared and 
briefed? 
 

   

 
ü Including the nature of their possible “contact” 
with the staff team and understanding of 
supervision as a tool? 
 

   

 
ü Are they able to operate independently? 
 

   

 
ü Do they have access to personal support and 
supervision? 

   

P
a
g
e
 4

9



 

 30 

 

 
ü Do they have access to resources, e.g. special 
training for staff? 
 

   

4. WILL YOU ENSURE THE INVOLVEMENT OF 
RESIDENTS AND STAFF IN THE PLANNING 
PROCESS? 
How will your approach to project management 
ensure: 

   

 
ü Maintenance of professional standards 
 

   

 
ü They have a clear sense of requirements? 
 

   

 
ü Variations in user numbers over the transition 
period are handled professionally? 
 

   

 
ü Risks are assessed and the possible harmful 
impact on residents is minimised? 
 

   

5. HAVE CQC, COMMISSIONERS AND OTHER 
LAs BEEN INFORMED OF THE CLOSURE 
PLANS? 

   

 
ü Plans for closure and timescales 
 

   

 
Alterations required to Registration status 
 

   

P
a

g
e
 5

0



 

 31 

 
ü Commissioners notified of relevant residents 
 

   

6. HOW DO YOU PLAN TO WORK WITH 
RESIDENTS AND THEIR FAMILIES? 

   

 
ü Is your key worker system effective? 
 

   

 
ü Are reviews up-to-date including for self-
funders? 
 

   

 
ü Do you have access to advocates? 
 

   

 
ü What is your approach to people with dementia? 
 

   

 

B. Checklist for a designated person outside the home appointed to act as an external advisor for residents and staff 
 

Actions 
 

Yes/No Named 
Person 

Comments 

1. IN NEGOTIATING YOUR BRIEF WITH THE 
MANAGEMENT FOR THE AGENCY, HAVE YOU 
OBTAINED THEIR AGREEMENT ON YOUR 
VIEW OF: 

   

 
ü The nature of their possible “contract” with the 
staff team? 
 

   

 
ü Being able to operate independently? 

   

P
a
g
e
 5

1



 

 32 

 

 
ü Having access to personal support and 
supervision? 
 

   

 
ü Access to resources, e.g. special training for 
staff? 
 

   

2. HAVE YOU:    

 
ü Enabled residents and staff to move from a state 
of shock to one of being able to plan for the future? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled a supportive environment and 
relationship? 
 

   

 
Agreed the “contractual parameters of working 
including: 
 

   

 
ü Timescale? 
 

   

 
ü Amount of inputs including number and 
duration? 
 

   

 
ü  Limits of authority? 
 

   

    

P
a

g
e
 5

2



 

 33 

ü The goals and basis of the sessions? 
 

 
ü The relationship with third parties including line 
management? 
 

   

 
ü The setting up of participative structures? 
 

   

 
ü The basis of renegotiation of the “contract”? 
 

   

 
Enabled residents and staff to: 
 

   

 
ü Ventilate their feelings? 
 

   

 
ü Understand what is happening to them? 
 

   

 
ü Face reality and acknowledge the changes? 
 

   

 
ü Avoid resisting the change? 
 

   

 
ü Face the challenge ahead? 
 

   

3. HAVE YOU:    

 
Enabled staff to work through and develop 

   

P
a
g
e
 5

3



 

 34 

strategies to meet issues facing them 
 

 
ü Low morale? 
 

   

 
ü Limited options? 
 

   

 
ü Lack of information? 
 

   

 
ü Fear/anxiety? 
 

   

 
ü Lack of encouragement? 
 

   

 
ü  Conflicting interests? 
 

   

 
ü Tiredness? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled the acknowledgement of satisfying 
experiences which can be built upon? 
 

   

 
ü Fostered a spirit in which reactions staff are 
going through are seen as natural to the situation? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled staff to look to needs beyond the stress 

   

P
a

g
e
 5

4



 

 35 

of immediate problems and issues? 
 

 
ü Enabled the establishment of a new sense of 
structure? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled sharing within the staff team? 
 

   

 
ü Fostered a spirit of working on common 
problems? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled planning together to work upon 
requirements? 
 

   

 
ü Fostered the creation and maintenance of 
positive experiences? 
 

   

 
Enabled the staff team to: 
 

   

 
ü Obtain a sense of realism? 
 

   

 
ü Be honest with each other? 
 

   

 
ü Plan priorities? 
 

   

P
a
g
e
 5

5



 

 36 

 
ü Support each other 
 

   

 
ü Commence realistic planning? 
 

   

 
ü Think positively? 
 

   

 
ü Consider options available? 
 

   

 
ü Consider and work with the requirements for 
good practice? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled any anger, resentment or complaints to 
be formally expressed by all? 
 

   

4. HAVE YOU: 
Enabled the staff team to: 

   

 
ü Establish and maintain professionalism? 
 

   

 
ü Look to their own and their service user’s future 
destiny? 
 

   

 
ü Maintain professional standards? 
 

   

    

P
a

g
e
 5

6



 

 37 

ü Examine factors which will/are preventing good 
practice? 
 

 
ü Work through implications of any projected 
variation in service user numbers over the 
transition period? 
 

   

 
ü Give guidance, advice or reassurance to 
residents and their relatives? 
 

   

 

C. Checklist for members of the care staff team 
 

Actions 
 

Yes/No Named 
Person 

Comments 

1. IN RELATION TO COLLEAGUES, ARE YOU:    

 
ü Providing a supportive environment? 
 

   

 
ü Helping them to be able to adapt to change? 
 

   

 
ü Helping them to retain a sense of personal 
worth? 
 

   

 
ü Helping them to participate in establishing a new 
sense of structure? 
 

   

    

P
a
g
e
 5

7



 

 38 

ü Helping them to look to needs beyond the stress 
of immediate problems? 
 

 
ü Examining and sharing common problems? 
 

   

 
ü Planning to work through new requirements? 
 

   

 
ü Discussing issues in open staff forums? 
 

   

 
ü Endeavouring to create and maintain positive 
experiences? 
 

   

 
ü Promoting a sense of realism? 
 

   

 
ü Being honest? 
 

   

 
ü Supporting each other? 
 

   

 
ü Thinking positively? 
 

   

 
ü Considering requirements for good practice? 
 

   

 
ü Endeavouring to establish/maintain 

   

P
a

g
e
 5

8



 

 39 

professionalism? 
 

 
ü Examining factors which will/are preventing good 
practice? 
 

   

 
Endeavouring to minimise the damaging effect 
of: 
 

   

 
ü Low morale? 
 

   

 
ü Limited options? 
 

   

 
ü Lack of information? 
 

   

 
ü Fear/anxiety? 
 

   

 
ü Lack of encouragement? 
 

   

 
ü Conflicting interests? 
 

   

 
ü Insensitivity/tiredness? 
 

   

2. AS SOON AS THE RESIDENTS ARE FIRST 
TOLD ABOUT A CLOSURE DECISION HAVE 

   

P
a
g
e
 5

9



 

 40 

YOU ESTABLISHED: 

 
ü A network of support for the service user? 
 

   

 
ü Involved significant others? 
 

   

 
ü Relatives? 
 

   

 
ü Friends? 
 

   

 
ü Field social workers? 
 

   

 
ü Any others involved? 
 

   

3. 48 HOURS AFTER THE INITIAL 
ANNOUNCEMENT HAVE YOU: 

   

 
ü Enabled residents to show their emotions freely? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled residents to draw mutual comfort from 
each other? 
 

   

 
Discussed with relatives their fears and 
uncertainties about their family members’ 
circumstances - for example: 

   

    

P
a

g
e
 6

0



 

 41 

ü Fears about moving? 
 

 
ü Fears about changing key workers? 
 

   

 
ü Concerns about personal finance? 
 

   

 
ü Set up any sessions required for counselling 
residents and others? 
 

   

 
ü Set up procedures/sessions for formal “reviews”? 
 

   

 
ü Made provision for the continuity of care of 
residents? 
 

   

4. IN RELATION TO FUTURE NEEDS OF 
RESIDENTS HAVE YOU: 

   

 
ü Developed a strategy to deal with any projected 
variation in service user numbers over the 
transition period? 
 

   

 
ü Planned necessary group experiences and 
events? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled residents to assess options and choices 
available to them e.g. by arranging visits to 

   

P
a
g
e
 6

1



 

 42 

possible new establishments? 
 

 
ü Enabled personal financial advice where 
required? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled residents to keep in touch with any who 
may have already left? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled residents and their relatives to talk 
freely to each other and to staff about their 
experiences? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled continuity of experience for all 
residents? 
 

   

 
ü Enabled residents to maintain contact with 
significant adults so as to maintain guidance or 
reassurance? 
 

   

 
COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

P
a

g
e
 6

2



 

 43 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Acknowledgements:  ADASS, PSSRU, SCA and Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 L
is
t 
o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
ru
n
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
T
y
p
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 

T
y
p
e
 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

a
s
 a
t 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
0
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 

A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
rk
 H
o
m
e
  

1
5
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 +
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

5
 

B
ro
w
n
lo
w
 H
o
u
s
e
  

2
4
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 

a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

5
 

F
e
r 
V
ie
w
, 
T
h
e
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 

a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
* 

0
 

2
 

M
a
ry
 F
e
ild
in
g
 G
u
ild
  

4
3
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
**
* 

0
 

3
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
, 
T
h
e
  

4
0
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
**
 

0
 

2
 

N
ig
h
ti
n
g
a
le
 H
o
u
s
e
  

9
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 

a
g
e
 +
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

3
 

2
 

S
ti
rl
in
g
 P
a
rk
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

2
 

Page 65



  R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
T
y
p
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 

T
y
p
e
 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

a
s
 a
t 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
0
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 

A
c
a
s
h
 L
o
d
g
e
 I
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

A
ll
 

B
e
d
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
 7
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

6
 

B
u
rg
h
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 7
7
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
* 

0
 

4
 

C
a
rl
in
g
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
, 

1
8
1
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

C
h
a
ri
ty
 
**
* 

0
 

1
 

C
a
s
s
in
i 
H
o
u
s
e
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 a

t 
n
o
 1
3
 

1
 a

t 
n
o
 1
5
 
3
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

b
o
th
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 

C
h
e
ls
e
a
 H
o
u
s
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
le
ra
in
e
 R
o
a
d
 3
0
 &
 

3
7
  

8
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
* 

3
 

5
 

E
n
d
y
m
io
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
2
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

5
 

E
v
e
ly
n
 H
o
u
s
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 

**
 

0
 

 

G
ra
n
v
ill
e
 R
o
a
d
 7
5
-7
7
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

A
ll
 

Page 66



G
re
a
t 
N
o
rt
h
 R
o
a
d
 6
8
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

5
 

G
re
e
n
 L
a
n
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
ts
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
G
ro
u
n
d
 

fl
r 
e
n
 s
u
it
e
 

2
 

G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld
 R
o
a
d
 9
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

 
 

H
ill
g
re
e
n
 C
a
re
 

L
im
it
e
d
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

(M
y
d
d
le
to
n
 

R
d
) 
 

4
 (E

n
fi
e
ld
) 

2
 

K
it
c
h
e
n
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 8
3
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
* 

0
 

3
 

L
a
n
s
d
o
w
n
e
 C
a
re
 

H
o
m
e
 

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

4
 

M
e
ri
d
ia
n
 W
a
lk
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
**
 

0
 

6
 

M
I 
C
A
S
A
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 a

t 
n
o
 1
3
 

1
 a

t 
n
o
 1
5
 
3
 a

c
ro
s
s
 

b
o
th
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 

P
a
rk
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 4
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
**
* 

0
 

4
 

R
o
s
e
b
e
rr
y
 G
a
rd
e
n
s
 

3
6
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

5
  

S
h
e
rr
in
g
h
a
m
 L
o
d
g
e
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

1
 

1
 

S
t 
R
a
p
h
a
e
l`
s
 I
n
te
g
ri
ty
 

C
a
re
 H
o
m
e
  

8
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

8
 

Page 67



V
a
rt
ry
 R
o
a
d
, 
1
8
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
**
 

1
 

A
ll
 

W
h
it
e
 M
o
o
n
 L
o
d
g
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
**
 

0
 

3
 

 

Page 68



Appendix 4  
 
 
Bed- Based Respite currently utilised in Learning Disabilities Service 
 

Home Cost/week Location Respite bed 
capacity  

Sidney Avenue 
Lodge 

550 N13 1 

Apollo Care 1200 N4 1 

Green Lanes 
project 

1000 N4 1 

Millennium Care 805 N13 1 

Person centred 
Care home 

1200 Enfield 2 

Overzest 1200 Enfield 2 

Red Ridge Activity 
Centre 

574 Wales Residential short 
break 

Pendaren holiday 
Centre  

 Wales Residential short 
break  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Whitehall Street Care Home for residents with profound 
learning difficulties and complex needs and regular essential 
specialist respite provision for thirty five families1  
 
Proposed closure – Haringey Council decision made on 19 July 
2011  
 
Legal Framework – discussion points for Scrutiny Committee 
meeting on Monday 15 August 2011  
 
Duty to Consult 
 
We understand that a consultation was carried out in December 2010 and 
approximately four meetings were held around residents’ dinner time. Attendees 
were not necessarily reflective of all those affected. It is not clear whether the 
consultation document was circulated widely enough or put in a format to which 
those affected could respond in a meaningful way. The information contained 
therein appears to have been insufficient in quality and quantity to allow those 
who did reply to challenge the assertions underpinning the decision, nor to 
properly analyse whether the business case for closure was properly made out, or 
to assess whether alternatives would actually materialise or be suitable for the 
residents and those in need of respite.  Finally, although those who responded 
were overwhelmingly against closure, the decision makers went ahead and 
approved the decision to shut down the home. It remains to be seen whether they 
conscientiously took into account the responses. It is hoped that the Scrutiny 
Committee will give this, and the issues raised below, due consideration as is their 
role as part of a democratically elected local government.  
 
Normal public law principles as regards consultation were summarised as follows in 
the key case of R v London Borough of Brent ex parte Gunning (1985) 84 LGR 168 
by Mr Justice Hodgson:  
 

“Consultation must be at a time when proposals are still at a formative 
stage….The proposer must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to 
permit of intelligent consideration and response. …adequate time must be 
given for consideration and response ….. the product of the consultation 
must be conscientiously taken into account in finalising …. any proposals.” 
  

In such a case as this, given the potential impact on so many vulnerable disabled 
people with highly complex needs, their carers and families and staff, one would 
have expected a lawful consultation process to have taken place whilst plans were at 
a formative stage. Sufficient information should also have been provided to enable 
the consultees to make a meaningful targeted response. The Council should have 
posed the right questions to enable the exercise of any discretionary powers and 
gather adequate information to make a sound decision.  

                                            
1 http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-14353541?print=true 
http://www.haringeyindependent.co.uk/news/9170713.Lib_Dems_refer_care_home_closure_to_scrut
iny_panel/  
http://www.guardian.co.uk/society/2011/jul/18/residential-care-homes-closure  
http://www.bestcarehome.co.uk/services/view/100-whitehall-street  (CQC 2009 - Good rating) 

Page 71



 
 
Finally, the results of the consultation must be conscientiously taken into account 
when finalising any proposals.  If any of these criteria are not followed, a decision 
made on the basis of the flawed consultation process could potentially be open to 
challenge by way of a judicial review in the High Court.  
 
We hope that in the Council’s response it will either provide sufficient evidence that 
the criteria above have been complied with or set about putting in place a lawful 
consultation process before the Cabinet proceeds with any irrevocable plans to shut 
down the care home.  
 
Consultation with the NHS 
 
It is unclear whether the Council has conducted a lawful consultation with the local 
NHS who may well be affected in light of the proposed closure and adverse impact 
this may well have on the residents and their carers, who may require additional 
healthcare services or hospital admission potentially. Please provide evidence of 
any consultation and minutes of meetings with the local NHS organisations 
affected.  
 
Failure to conduct lawful community care assessments? 
 
Before considering closing Whitehall Street care home, under section 47 of the NHS 
and Community Care Act 1990 and section 2(1) of the Chronically Sick and Disabled 
Persons Act 1970, the Council should have carried out a lawful community care 
assessment of residents’ needs to inform its decision. This should also include 
robust multidisciplinary risk assessments regarding the impact of a move. 
 
The assessment should follow both Haringey Council’s own policy on assessments 
and the Department of Health’s ‘Putting People First’ Guidance on Eligibility 
Criteria for Adult Social Care (April 2010), which dictates annual care reviews as a 
minimum requirement. If lawful community care assessments have not been 
carried out then the decision-making process thus far will have been carried out 
without the benefit of this crucial information.  
 
The process thus far appears to have been mainly focussed on how to make savings 
from the social care budget rather than how to continue to meet residents’ needs 
and minimise the risk posed to them by such a turbulent change of home. Overall, 
these risks may increase the costs and will have to be factored into the business 
case. 
 
Have Whitehall Street carers’ needs received adequate consideration? 
 
Under the Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000, carers aged 16 or over who 
provide a regular and substantial amount of care for someone aged 18 or over have 
the right to an assessment of their needs as a carer.  Under the Carers (Equal 
Opportunities) Act 2004 local authorities must ensure that all carers know that they 
are entitled to an assessment of their needs, and to consider a carer's outside 
interests - work, study or leisure - when carrying out an assessment.  
 
Respite should be considered as part of these assessments especially given that the 
availability of adequate quality respite for those with complex needs and profound 
learning disabilities will impact hugely on the sustainability of the caring role and 
their health. What long-term sustainable respite alternatives to Whitehall Street 

Page 72



 
exist? What assessments have been done to ensure they will actually meet exisiting 
needs and increasing demand in the future as carers age?  
 
Failure to factor in closure of local alternative respite provision? 
  
In order to make a lawful, rational decision, the Council should have specifically 
factored into its decision-making the parallel closure of Edwards Drive respite 
facility, which provides ten beds for those with profound learning disabilities – five 
for those with severe psychiatric problems and five for those with severe physical 
problems.  
 
Has the Council complied with its Positive Equality Duties under the Equality 
Act?  
 
In a service reconfiguration of this magnitude, it is especially important for the 
Council to comply with its positive equality duties under s 149 Equality Act 2010.  
 
This duty applies to all aspects of the functions of public bodies, including 
decisions on individual cases (see R (JL) v Islington LBC and, most recently, Pieretti 
v Enfield [2010] EWCA Civ 1104), but it is most frequently considered by the courts 
in relation to general decisions of public bodies. The proposed closure of Whitehall 
Street would certainly engage the duty. What this should actually entail is detailed 
below.  
 
The duty on public bodies under s 149 is to ‘have due regard’ to a range of 
specified ‘needs’ when carrying out their functions. The duty is a continuing one - 
R (Baker) v Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government [2008] EWCA 
Civ 141.  

 
Section 149(1) requires a public authority, in the exercise of its functions, to have 
due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
Disability, age and race are relevant protected characteristics in this case. This 
obligation is further explained in section 149(3) and (4) as follows:   

“(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to— 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not 
share it; 

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by 
such persons is disproportionately low. 

(4)The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are 
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in 
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities.    [..] 
 

Page 73



 
(6)Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some 
persons more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting 
conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act..” 

 
The following key principles which have emerged from recent case law are relevant 
here: 
 

• the amount of regard needed depends on likely impact and the requirement 
for due regard to the specific equality duties is all the higher where 
severely disabled people are concerned - R (on the application of Hajrula) v 
London Councils [2011] EWHC 448 (Admin) (clearly, the potential impact on 
Whitehall Street residents with profound and multiple disabilities at risk of 
losing their home and familial environment and their aged carers is severe. 
In this economic climate it seems optimistic to consider that the voluntary 
and community sector or private care home market will step into the 
breach); 

• the duty must be performed with vigour and with an open mind when the 
relevant decision is being taken - R (Brown) v Secretary of State for Work 
and Pensions [2008] EWHC 3158 (Admin) [92]; 

• ‘due’ regard, as opposed to a duty merely to ‘have regard’, requires 
‘specific regard, by way of conscious approach, to the statutory criteria’ - R 
(Sanders) v Harlow District Council [2009] EWHC 559 (Admin) and see 
Birmingham decisions above;  

• the test of whether a decision maker has had due regard is a test of the 
substance of the matter, not of mere form or box-ticking;  

• there should normally be some form of ‘audit trail’ or documentation to 
show that the duty was given due consideration at the appropriate time; R 
(JL) v Islington [2009] EWHC 458 (Admin) at [121]; and 

• Active steps are required to be taken to promote equality of opportunity 
when relevant decisions are made; R(E) v Governing Body of the Jews Free 
School [2008] ELR 445 at [213] (in the context of the equivalent provision in 
the Race Relations Act 1976). 

 
What this means in practice is that in proposing to close the care home, the 
Council should be able to demonstrate that it has had specific regard to the needs 
in s. 149 Equality Act 2010. Thus far, we have seen no evidence whatsoever that 
the Council has had specific regard to the needs set out above. We would be 
grateful for the Council’s response on this point and a copy of the Council’s 
equality scheme and any impact assessment carried out (and supporting 
documentation) in relation to the proposed changes.  
 
Did the Council ask the right questions before deciding to close Whitehall St? 
 
If the Council has failed to adequate factor in the issues raised by Ms Hessel, 
Vulnerable Groups Officer, and Mencap amongst others, the Council will have 
failed to gather sufficient information to reach an adequate decision on any 
adverse impact and properly understand it.   
 
Although the positive equality duties do not require a particular outcome, there 
can be no lawful exercise of discretion to proceed with a policy notwithstanding an 
adverse impact if the decision maker does not properly understand “the problem, 
its degree and extent”: see R(Lunt) v Liverpool City Council [2009] EWHC 2356 
(Admin) at [43] and [44]. The focus is on the “seriousness of the detriment to the 
disadvantaged group”: see R (E) v JFS [2009] UKSC 15 at [100].  A failure to gather 

Page 74



 
adequate information to that end will breach the duty to ensure that conclusions of 
fact are supported by adequate material of probative value: see Secretary of State 
v Tameside MBC [1977] AC 1014, Reid v Secretary of State for Scotland [1999] 2 AC 
512 at 541 and R v Inner London Crown Court, ex p. Provis [2000] COD 481. A 
failure to understand the information that has been gathered will be an error of 
fundamental fact: see E v Secretary of State [2004] QB 1044, [2004] EWCA Civ 49 
at 61.  
 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 
Under the Human Rights Act, every decision or action which the Council takes must 
comply with most of the articles of the European Convention of Human Rights 
(‘ECHR’). Of particular relevance to this case are Article 8 ECHR, discussed below, 
and potentially Article 3 (freedom from inhumane treatment) (this issue may need 
to be investigated in due course). Section 6 of the Act makes clear that compliance 
means not only not interfering with those rights in most circumstances but also 
taking positive steps to ensure that people can effectively enjoy these rights.  
 
Now that the Council has proposed to close the home, it would potentially be in 
breach of the Human Rights Act if, before reaching a final decision, it failed to 
conduct an assessment of the residents’ and potentially the carers’ needs, or the 
potential risk to the residents of having to move home, or ensuring that a suitable 
alternative home is actually available within a reasonable distance of families.  
 

 Article 8 says that: 
(1) Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his 
home and his correspondence. 
(2) There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise 
of this right except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary 
in a democratic society in the interests of national security, public safety 
or the economic well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder 
or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the protection of 
the rights and freedoms of others. 
 

Given that the residents have been living at the home continuously for several 
years, the right to respect for ‘home’ is engaged. This must be taken into account 
in the decision making, as must relationships built up with other residents at the 
home.  
 
Although Article 8 is a ‘qualified right’, interference with the right is only lawful if 
it is done in pursuance of a legitimate aim and it is actually necessary and lawful. 
Although Article 8(2) allows interference for economic reasons, any interference 
with the right also has to be proportionate to the objective being pursued. In 
assessing whether the Council has struck a fair balance between the competing 
interests of the individual and the community as a whole (or budgetary pressures in 
this case), the court may assess not only the substantive merits of the decision but 
also the decision-making process to ensure that due weight has been accorded to 
the interests of the individual - see Hatton v United Kingdom [2003] 37 EHRR 611.  
 
In this context the fair balance between the competing interests will not be struck 
if:  
 

• the decision is procedurally unfair;  

• fails adequately to take into account the views of those affected; 

Page 75



 
• involves unjustified discrimination; 

• fails to give due weight to competing considerations; 

• involves inadequate investigation; or 

• because it is in breach of an undertaking given by a public authority that is 
sufficient to give rise to a substantive legitimate expectation that they will 
be treated in a particular way. 

 
We would be grateful if the Council could explain how it considers that it has met 
its obligations under the Human Rights Act as set out above.  
 

Page 76



 
http://www.guardian.co.uk/society/2011/jul/18/residential-care-homes-closure 

  

Care home closures will create an uncertain future for many 

Parents and relatives reveal fears for their children should one 
London centre close its doors. 

Amelia Gentleman  - guardian.co.uk, Monday 18 July 2011 21.00 BST All photographs by Kayte Brimacombe 

Some time tomorrow evening, councillors in Haringey will decide whether to close a 

number of residential homes, as part of its efforts to make cuts of £41m over the next 

year, and £84m by 2015. On the list of centres likely to shut is Whitehall Street, a 

home for adults with learning disabilities and a respite centre, where disabled people 

can come for a short break, to give their carers a rest. 

Many of the residents have been living here for more than a decade. Most are now 

entering middle age; they have formed friendships and strong relationships have 

grown between staff, residents and their families. 

For the parents, many of whom are growing elderly, the prospect of trying to find new 

homes for their children presents a huge worry. In April, campaigners requested that 

David Cameron intervene to stop the closures, but most are now resigned to the centre 

closing within the next six months. 

Betty Sillery 

and her son John. Photograph: Kayte Brimacombe  

Betty Sillery, 87, lives with her son John Sillery, 52, who was born prematurely, 

is blind and has severe learning difficulties. Recently, when she has been too ill to 

care for him, he has stayed at Whitehall Street. 

"He is all right there, as long as he doesn't hear my voice, because then he cries quite 

a lot. Because he's blind, it's much harder for him to fit in with people; he is quite 

vulnerable. But the staff there are very, very kind. 

Page 77



 
"He didn't speak until he was 12, he just made funny noises. It took him quite a while 

to put sentences together; now you can never stop him talking. The paediatrician said 

when he was three years old that he was of dull mind, and that he would never make a 

college education. I laid into him – how can you tell at the age of three years? If that 

paediatrician was alive now, he would be amazed. 

"When they are young, they get all the support in the world, but once they become 

adult they become written off. There aren't many centres that can cope with him, 

because of his blindness. 

"I would have loved him to end up in Whitehall Street. He knows everybody there. 

For the moment, I feel while I can I've just got to look after John. They have meetings 

once in a while to decide what to do with him, and they have decided that he would be 

best living with another family. He did that once for eight months, but it didn't work 

out, so I brought him home again. 

"His father used to live in a dream land; he always thought he would wake up and 

John would be OK. He died 11 years ago. We haven't got anybody else. 

"I talk to John a lot about what will happen later. I say to him: 'John, you know I'm 

not going to last for ever. You may have to go to Whitehall Street.' He says: 'I know, 

Mum.' I don't know what he'll do if it closes. What's going to happen to all those 

people who live there?" 

Pat Wright 

and daughter Joanne. Photograph: Kayte Brimacombe  

Joanne Wright, 41, has lived in Whitehall Street for five years, since her mother 

Pat, who's in her 70s, became too unwell to care for her full-time at home. Her 

condition has never been clearly diagnosed, but Pat thinks she has autism and 

severe learning difficulties. Joanne visits her mother every other weekend. 

"I thought I could die happy knowing that she was being looked after in a stable place. 

Now I don't know where she will go if Whitehall Street closes. It took her an awfully 

long time to settle in. If something upsets her she goes off her food and for a whole 

month she didn't eat anything. 

Page 78



 
"I never thought these last years would be like this; I always thought she would end 

up with me. But now I don't know what will happen to her if anything happens to me. 

Where will she go? I worry what if something happens to me before she is settled 

somewhere. That's my main concern. They haven't said anything about what will 

happen when it closes. It is stressful. There aren't any other places like this in 

Haringey. If she has to move further away, how is she going to be able to visit me? 

"People like Joanne don't take kindly to change; they find it very upsetting. She isn't a 

lot of trouble, but she couldn't cope on her own. She needs 24-hour care. She needs to 

be dressed, undressed, she needs help going to the toilet. She couldn't bath herself, 

wash her hair. If she is unsettled or unhappy, she will do a lot of screaming and 

shouting. 

"We'd like her to end up in the same place as some of the other residents so there are 

friendly faces. She can't have a conversation with you, but she listens and she is 

taking it all in. At the back of her mind, she knows something is going on. 

"It may be selfish, but I wonder why aren't they closing the libraries or the play 

centres? Instead, they're closing services for the ones who need them the most, the 

ones that can't get up to fight for themselves. I am shocked at David Cameron. He had 

a child who needed help; he must surely have some understanding as to what is 

needed." 

Anna 

Wakeford and her daughter Oriel. Photograph: Kayte Brimacombe  

Anna Wakeford, 66, lives with her daughter, Oriel, 39, who has Angelman 

syndrome, a rare genetic condition that comes with physical disabilities and 

severe learning difficulties. Oriel has regular short stays in Whitehall Street. 

"Oriel's needs are fairly severe. She is non-verbal (although she does understand quite 

a lot); she can't walk for a long time; she is at the age of a two- or three-year-old. I 

have to get up every night to change her wet sheets, which I am happy to do, but 

sometimes I need a break. It's good to know that there's somewhere she can go if 

something goes wrong. 

Page 79



 
"The long-stay people really regard the staff as their families, and if the centre was 

closed they would be transferred to homes with different staff. I think the council 

wants them to go into supported living arrangements, which means that agency staff 

would look after them. There wouldn't be any consistency. The staff at Whitehall 

Street are very consistent and they are highly trained. The fact that these people have 

been in their jobs for such a long time fills us with confidence. As parents, we feel 

safe with our children there. As carers, it's really important to know that sometimes 

we can have a break. Without this respite period, I wouldn't be able to see my family 

who live a long way away. Oriel finds it very difficult to travel, and it's no break for 

me if she's there. 

"I try not to think of the future too much. I think we may be offered respite care with a 

family. I tried this for a while, but no one was prepared to take on my daughter. There 

is this ridiculous idea about offering outward-bound holidays. I don't think that Oriel 

would enjoy it; it would really distress her. The trend is to have carers to come and 

take them out for activities. For some people, especially the more able, that works. 

For others, the more needy, it wouldn't work. 

"I feel very upset because I don't think the council will be able to provide such a good 

resource again. From past experience I know when they close somewhere down, we 

have to wait a very long time before they make other arrangements. They think they 

are going to save a lot of money. I'm not sure they will." 

Zehra Boyaci 

and her sons, Ibrahim and Seyhan. Photograph: Kayte Brimacombe  

Zehra Boyaci, 51, has a son, Ibrahim, 26, who has severe autism and goes to 

Whitehall Street for a week every month. Her older son, Seyhan, 30, who is 

severely mentally and physically disabled, goes to another centre for a few days 

every six weeks. The rest of the time they live at home with her and their 

younger brother, who is 13 years old. 

"I am really devastated. Ibrahim loves going to Whitehall Street; it's like a second 

home for him. They get him involved in things and they're able to take him out a lot, 

which I'm not able to do because I have my other boy in a wheelchair. They really 

understand his needs and they get on with him. They're very nice, caring people. They 

Page 80



 
could lose their jobs as well. I think they're closing both respite centres. I have to do 

everything for Seyhan, and Ibrahim can't be left alone. He doesn't understand danger; 

he's too friendly. He can speak, but you have to really listen to him to understand, and 

he repeats himself a lot. He can't go out on his own anywhere. He hits himself every 

now and again, so I have to be very careful. 

"If there's nowhere for them to go, they will have to stay at home, which will make 

life very difficult for them and for me. There is nowhere else they can go, apart from 

the day centres, and there's been some talk about them closing too; they're already 

letting off a lot of staff. When the older boys are away at respite, I can visit my mum, 

who lives in south-east London and spend time with my 13-year-old because the rest 

of the time, I've got the older boys indoors, and don't have time to be with him; he's 

missing out. 

"If there's nowhere for them to go, what are they going to do with these people? There 

are going to be more vulnerable people on the streets." 

Yvonne Heath 

and niece Jane Sanders. Photograph: Kayte Brimacombe  

Yvonne Heath, 74, has been helping care for her niece, Jane Sanders, 46, all her 

life. Jane's mother died when she was 13, and she moved in to Whitehall Street 

18 years ago. For decades, Yvonne has been taking Jane, who has Down's 

syndrome, out to the cinema at the weekend, or on other trips around town; she 

is the only member of her family who visits her regularly. 

"I feel that there is other expenditure in the borough that they could lose before they 

close these homes. I know why they are doing it — closing them could save a lot of 

money in one go. But I do feel it is unfair. They are the weakest people in the 

borough, or society. 

"Jane is really settled in Whitehall Street. They are very, very caring. I've never heard 

them raise their voice to anyone. There's no plan as to what will happen to them next. 

There's been some talk about putting the residents into fostering arrangements, where 

they go and live with a family. I am not happy about that. I'm sure that these people 

would be properly vetted, but she would be more secure in the kind of unit where she 

Page 81



 
is now. She's in a communal place now, in a family unit. They paint her nails, they 

play lots of games, they watch the same television shows. The fostering arrangement 

feels very vague. Fostering small children and babies is very rewarding; fostering 

Jane might not be very rewarding. She is hard work, and she's getting older. If any 

routine changes, she becomes very difficult, uncooperative, throws things. 

"Her father is still her next of kin, but he's in a home now. I'm not formally 

responsible for her, I'm just a caring aunt, but because I'm the only member of the 

family who has regular contact with her I feel responsible. It is a huge worry. I think 

about it every day. I've heard awful stories of what happens to elderly people whose 

homes are moved – they often don't last long. 

"Jane needs supervision 24/7. Her mother taught her how to read and write, and she 

can bathe herself with supervision, but she couldn't go on a bus on her own. If she was 

moved out of the borough, I don't know how often I'd be able to see her. I'm not well 

– I have lung problems, and arthritis – so we only meet once a month now." 

 

Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTE EXTRACT OF THE CABINET MEETING OF 19TH JULY 2011 
 

CAB20 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THREE OLDER PEOPLE’S RESIDENTIAL 
CARE HOMES AND LEARNING DISABILITIES RESIDENTIAL AND RESPITE 

CARE HOMES 
 

CAB20 

PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THREE OLDER PEOPLE'S RESIDENTIAL CARE 

HOMES AND LEARNING DISABILITIES RESIDENTIAL AND RESPITE CARE 

HOMES (Report of the Director of Adult and Housing Services - Agenda Item 9) 
 

We noted that the purpose of the report was to inform us of the outcome of a 
process of consultation in relation to the future of four separate service areas, all 
of which are directly provided by the Council, and to give us sufficient information 
to enable an informed decision to be made about all four services. 
 
We also noted that the Red House, Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood were 
residential care homes for older people, while Whitehall Street provided 
residential and respite care services for people with learning difficulties.  The 
decisions now being recommended were being taken in the context of decisions 
in principle to close these services, subject to full consultation with service users 
and all other interested parties, taken at our meeting on 21 December 2010 and 
in the wider context of the Haringey Efficiency Savings Programme.   
 
In response to a question about whether the local market for people with multiple 
disabilities had been assessed officers confirmed that homes with capacity had 
been mapped out and that they would provide Councillor Weber with further 
details outside the meeting. 
 

RESOLVED: 

 

1. That approval be granted to the closure of Broadwater Lodge, Cranwood, 
The Redhouse Council-run residential care homes for older people 
producing a gross savings of £2.805 million and a net savings of £1.813 
million per annum from 2013/14.  

 
2. That approval be granted to the closure of Whitehall Street, a Council-run 

residential and respite care home for people with learning disabilities 
producing a gross savings of £918,000 net savings of £237,000 per 
annum from 20/12/13.  

 
3. That the proposed dates of closure should be no later than 31 March 

2012, for Whitehall Street, and no later than 31 March 2013 for the three 
older people’s residential care homes.   

 
4. That it be noted that Whitehall Street was a residential care home for 

people with learning disabilities, offering permanent places for 10 people, 
and a respite service utilising 5 beds. 

 

Page 87



MINUTE EXTRACT OF THE CABINET MEETING OF 19TH JULY 2011 
 

CAB20 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THREE OLDER PEOPLE’S RESIDENTIAL 
CARE HOMES AND LEARNING DISABILITIES RESIDENTIAL AND RESPITE 

CARE HOMES 
 
 
 
 

5. That it be noted that Cranwood, The Redhouse and Broadwater Lodge 
were all residential care homes for older people, offering services for very 
frail older people with and dementia care.  

 
6. That it be noted that all the residential care homes were registered with 

the Care Quality Commission (CQC), and were seen by them as being 
compliant with regulations made under Section 20 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 and that all the services provided were assessed as 
‘Good’ by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  

 
7. That the in principle decision to close these four services taken at our 

meeting on 21 December 2010 (vide Minute CAB.91 – 2010/11) to close 
these four services, having taken into account the outcome of the 
consultation process (Appendix 1), including the outcome of the 
consultation with trade unions and staff (Appendix 6) and the attached 
Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix 2) be confirmed.  

 

Page 88



 

 
 

Agenda item:  
 

 

   Cabinet                       On 19th July 2011 
 
 

 

 
Report Title: Proposed closure of three Older People’s Residential Care Homes and 

one Learning Disabilities Residential and Respite Home 
 

Report of:   Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult and Housing Services 
 
 

Signed: 
 

Contact Officer: Lisa Redfern, Deputy Director of Adult and Community Services 

Email: Lisa.redfern@haringey.gov.uk 

Telephone: 020 84892326 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key 

 

1. Purpose of the report  

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the outcome of a process of 
consultation in relation to the future of four separate service areas, all of which are 
directly provided by the Council. It is also to give Cabinet sufficient information to 
enable it to make an informed decision about all four services; The Red House, 
Broadwater Lodge, Cranwood and Whitehall Street. The first three services are 
residential care homes for older people, the latter provides residential and respite 
care services for people with learning difficulties.  These decisions are being taken 
in the context of decisions in principle to close these services, subject to full 
consultation with service users and all other interested parties, taken on 21st 
December 2010 at Cabinet and the wider context of the Haringey Efficiency 
Savings Programme.   

 
The proposals to be considered by the Cabinet are as follows:  
 
a) To close three residential care homes for older people, The Red House, 

Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood 
  

[No.] 

Page 89



 

 2 

b) To close a residential/respite care home for people with learning disabilities, 
Whitehall Street  

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member  

2.1  Adult Social Care has been judged as Performing Well over the last three years 
by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). Nationally we have performed in the top 
quartile over the last year in terms of the residential and non-residential care that 
we commission locally. This means that the services that we commission are rated 
as good or excellent in terms of their quality. This is very good news for Haringey’s 
vulnerable residents. 

 
2.2 However, going forward, we face a challenging budgetary framework in which to 

operate and a number of Adult Social Care service reductions to consider. In order 
to ensure that we continue to offer the highest quality of service we can to support 
some of Haringey’s most vulnerable people we need to consider and agree our 
priorities; our statutory ‘must do’s’, we need to look at what we currently provide 
and the way in which  we provide our services. We should be satisfied that we 
deliver good quality services but in the most efficient and value for money way. We 
are committed to protecting frontline services as far as possible in the face of the 
budgetary challenge. 

 
2.3 In order to meet the required budgetary savings Adult Services is required to 

deliver a reduction in expenditure over the next three years. We have been asked 
to put forward savings proposals.  In essence these proposals are about the 
Council providing much less in-house services and instead commissioning high 
quality, value for money services from the private and voluntary sector.  It is also 
about services being offered in a different way, as described above.   

 
2.4 There is no doubt these services are valued by those who use them, many of 

whom I have met and listened to very closely during the recent consultation 
meetings; the attached consultation report reflects this. However, it is because of 
the current budgetary challenge that I am asking Members to consider the very 
difficult decision of the closure of these three older people’s residential care homes 
and Whitehall Street, our in-house residential and respite care home for people 
with a learning disability. 

 
2.5 Please note, if this proposal is agreed, all residents and people who access respite 

care will receive a full assessment and review of their care plan, and an 
alternative, high quality residential placement found which fully meets both theirs 
and the needs of their carer, in terms of both quality and appropriate geographical 
location. This will be handled in a most careful, humane and sensitive manner with 
plenty of time to consider an appropriate placement minimising distress and 
disruption to a person’s care.  Residents of the care homes who will be affected by 
these closures will have every support, along with their families, in identifying 
another suitable care home to move to. 

 

Page 90



 

 3 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

3.1. Adult and Community Services Council Plan Priorities are: 

• Encouraging lifetime well-being at home, work, play and learning; 

• Promoting Independent living while supporting adults and children in need; 
and 

• Delivering excellent customer focused cost effective services. 
  
 Full Council Plan Priorities can be found on the left hand side of the page at 

http://harinet.haringey.gov.uk/index.htm. 
 

4. Recommendations 

4.1 It is recommended that Cabinet agree the closure of Broadwater Lodge, 
Cranwood, The Redhouse Council-run residential care homes for older people 
producing a gross savings of £2.805 million and a net savings of £1.813 million per 
annum from 2013/14.  

 
4.2 It is recommended that Cabinet agree the closure of Whitehall Street, a Council-

run residential and respite care home for people with learning disabilities 
producing a gross savings of £918k net savings of £237k per annum from 
20/12/13.  

 
4.3 The proposed dates of closure, if agreed at Cabinet, will be no later than 31 March  

2012, for Whitehall Street, and no later than 31st March 2013 for the three older 
people’s residential care homes.   

 
4.4 Whitehall Street is a residential care home for people with learning disabilities, 

offering permanent places for 10 people, and a respite service utilising 5 beds. 
 
4.5 Cranwood, The Redhouse and Broadwater Lodge are all residential care homes 

for older people, offering services for very frail older people with and dementia 
care.  

 
4.6 All the residential care homes are registered with the Care Quality Commission 

(CQC), and is seen by them as being compliant with regulations made under s20 
Health and Social Care Act 2008. All the services provided were assessed as 
‘Good’ by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  

 
4.7 It is recommended that Cabinet Members confirm their decision in principle, taken 

on 21st December 2010, to close these four services, having taken into account the 
outcome of the consultation process (appendix 1), including the outcome of the 
consultation with trade unions and staff (appendix 6) and the attached Equalities 
Impact Assessment (appendix 2).  

 

Page 91



 

 4 

 

 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 
5.1 Cabinet is asked to note the Council has no statutory obligation under the National 

Assistance Act 1948 to directly provide residential care services. This includes the 
services directly provided at Cranwood, The Red House, Broadwater Lodge and 
Whitehall Street. 

 
5.2 Cabinet is asked to note there are many similar residential care home services in 

the independent sector. 
 
5.3 Were Members to make a decision to close the three older people’s residential 

care homes homes, the process of closure would not be expected to be complete 
until the end of March 2013 and during that time it would be possible to move 
affected residents in a gradual manner which reflected all good practice in such 
circumstances. The process of closure for the learning disabilities residential and 
respite care services would not be expected to be complete until 31 March 2012. 
Contact has been made with researchers in the University of Birmingham to 
ensure any potential movements of remaining residents complied with best current 
practice.  

 
5.4 Cabinet Members are asked to note there is no change to the Council’s eligibility 

criteria.  In 2003, Adult Services set its eligibility threshold under the then Fair 
Access to Care Criteria at Critical and Substantial.  Fair Access to Care Services 
has been replaced with Guidance on Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care (2010) 
from the Department of Health, with the guidance retaining the four eligibility bands 
set out in Fair Access to Care Services – that is, Critical, Substantial, Moderate 
and Low.  Haringey Adult and Community Services will continue to provide 
services to individuals who are assessed as having needs that are substantial or 
critical need and there are no plans to change this threshold. 

 
5.5 Cabinet are asked to consider and note Adult Services plans to mitigate the loss of 

these residential services, should members agree that the proposal should 
proceed.  Cabinet will also be aware of the need for Adult Services to plan 
carefully to ensure appropriate support of people with learning disabilities and 
older people, in view of public sector funding cuts impacting on health and other 
Council programmes including Supporting People. 

 
5.6 The proposal to close these residential care homes is in line with a general shift 

within the Council to become a commissioning organisation, with the Council 
providing much less in-house services and instead commissioning services from 
the private and voluntary sector.  It is also about services being offered in a 
different way, It is accepted and acknowledged just how difficult it is to consider 
these proposals. 

 

Page 92



 

 5 

 

 
6. Other options considered 
6.1.  There is no obligation for the Council to directly run care homes. In terms of the 

care home market for older people, there are nine residential care home services 
in the independent sector in the borough offering a total of 231 beds. There are 
also a significant number of residential care homes close to the borough boundary.  
The Council currently commissions approximately 75% of all older people’s 
residential care in the private sector, both within the borough and out of borough 
(for example where an older person prefers to live in another area to be closer to 
family). In Learning Disabilities services, there are 28 care homes with 139 beds in 
the borough as well as the Council’s Linden House with 6 beds.  The Council 
currently commissions over 90% of learning disabilities placements from the 
independent sector.  Appendix 3 lists the voluntary and private sector care homes 
in Haringey for older people and people with learning disabilities, that the Council 
could commission alternate residential provision from.   

 
6.2. The Council considers there is therefore appropriate alternative capacity and a 

good range of providers and support already available to suit the specific needs of 
the residents.  

 
6.3. In addition there is currently a review of respite provision for people with a learning 

disability underway with the aim of providing more person-centred respite in 
Haringey.  There are a number of existing providers of care who have the capacity 
to provide this service, based on individual assessed need and the wishes of 
service users. All service users who are currently provided with a bed based 
respite service are encouraged to go on personal budgets and buy in alternative 
services. Each service user who has been assessed as needing bed based respite 
due to complex needs will have an individual needs based package of respite. 
These  bed based respite options are currently  being developed with independent 
and voluntary sector providers to support the implementation of personalisation.  In 
addition the “shared lives” scheme in Haringey where people spend time in family 
settings is being extended. This adult placement scheme in Haringey has recently 
last year drawn national acclaim. A range of respite / short break options are also 
envisaged which individuals can purchase with their personal budget. These 
include sitting service/ sleep in service/ accompanying service users to 
activities/outings/ holidays. 

 
6.4. Discussions were undertaken, as part of the consultation process, with a local 

group of interested individuals in relation to a possible redevelopment of the 
Cranwood site as a residential care home for both older people and people with 
learning disabilities. A feasibility study was submitted by the group. Serious 
consideration was given to both the content and recommendations of the report; 
however, it was not possible to take forward the proposals on both care and 
economic grounds. A detailed response was sent to the group on 31st May 2011, 
and further information can be found in the Equalities Impact Assessment 
(Appendix 2, Section 4). 

 

Page 93



 

 6 

 
7. Summary 
7.1. As part of a range of proposals to achieve a balanced budget, Cabinet made a 

decision in principle on 21st December 2010 close these three residential care 
homes for older people and one residential/respite care home for people with 
learning disabilities. The decision in principle to close these services was to be 
reviewed, following a 90 day period of consultation which ended on 30th April 2011.  

 
7.2.  The Red House – Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
 This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, 

social and emotional care and support service to 35 older people There are 
currently 23 permanent residents, with the balance of the beds being occupied by 
respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) and is seen by them as being compliant with the Section 20 of the Health 
and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). The home 
is situated in West Green Road, N15. The service provided was assessed as 
being “Good” by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  

 
7.3.  Broadwater Lodge - Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
  This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, 

social and emotional care and support service to 45 older people. There are 
currently 36 permanent residents, with the balance of the beds being occupied by 
respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) and is seen by them as being compliant with the Section 20 regulations of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). 
The home is situated in Tottenham N17. The service provided was assessed as 
being “Good” by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  

  
7.4.  Cranwood - Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
  This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, 

social and emotional care and support service to 33 older people. There are 
currently 23 permanent residents, with the balance of the beds being occupied by 
respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) and is seen by them as being compliant with the Section 20 regulations of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). 
The home is situated in Muswell Hill N10. The service provided was assessed as 
being “Good” by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  

 
7.5.  Whitehall Street - Proposed closure date 31st March 2012 (latest) 
  This is a residential care home service providing a physical, social and emotional 

care and support service to 15 people with a learning disability (with 11  beds 
available for permanent long-term placements and 4 beds for respite for people 
with a learning disability). There are currently 10 permanent residents, with the 
balance of the beds being occupied by respite/temporary residents.  The home is 
registered by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and is seen by them as being 
compliant with the Section 20 regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 
(Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). The home is situated in Tottenham 
N17. The service provided was assessed as being “Good” by CQC in the previous 

Page 94



 

 7 

inspection regime. 
 
7.6. In Whitehall Street, there has been 20% turnover of residents for the comparable 

period of January 2010 to December 2010. In addition there have already been 
planned moves to a more independent setting for 5 of the 10 permanent residents 
including moving back to live with parents or moving to adult placements and 24-
hour supported living schemes. Given the plans already in place and the turnover 
rate, it is estimated that there would be 5 remaining people who would require 
plans to move to be put in place where such planning has not already begun. Of 
those 5 residents, 4 have already expressed a wish to stay together and plans 
could potentially be put in place to support them to move into their own home with 
24 hours community-based support, were Members to make a decision to close 
the Whitehall Street service. The remaining resident (who is funded by NHS 
Haringey), can transfer to a more suitable placement which is consistent with their 
health needs, in consultation with the NHS and their family. 

 
7.7. Due to the recent government spending review, Adult and Community Services 

have had to made significant savings in the budget for 2011/12 and beyond, as 
has the whole of the Council. Adult social care services are provided to frail and 
vulnerable people of Haringey and budget savings have been identified with the 
need to continue to prioritise services to the most vulnerable in the Borough. 
Applying the Council’s eligibility criteria for social services support, services are 
provided to those people whose social care needs have been assessed as 
"substantial" or "critical", but there is no legal obligation to provide services in a 
specific way or maintain any particular type of service. It has been necessary, 
therefore, to evaluate the services currently being provided to identify those that 
will be able to continue to satisfy these high levels of need in the most cost-
efficient and appropriate way.  

 
7.8. Residential care homes managed by the Council are provided alongside a well 

developed independent sector care home market. Haringey Adult Services has 
strong commissioning practice and we only buy residential care beds that offer the 
highest quality of care; in early 2011, the Care Quality Commission judged 
Haringey’s commissioning practice, in terms of the quality of residential care for 
adults, to be the best in London and we have performed in the top national quartile 
nationally for the quality of residential care that we commission for the last two 
years.  

 
7.9. There is no planned ‘shift’ from this robust approach to the quality of care that 

Haringey commissions; Haringey is moving from a model of directly provided adult 
care services to one where such services are commissioned from a wide range of 
providers in the independent sector. This proposal is consistent with that strategic 
approach and the wider requirements of “Putting People First” and “Think Local, 
Act Personal”.  In addition and in line with the national direction of travel, Adult 
Services has looked to reduce reliance on residential care, with more people 
supported to live at home with support where needed, to remain as independent 
as possible. Our performance in this area has been acknowledged by the Care 
Quality Commission as excellent over the past three performance years.   This is 

Page 95



 

 8 

demonstrated in the table below: 
 

7.10.1  – Admissions to residential care (all adults) 

Performance Year Outturn* 

2007/08 157 

2008/09 148 

2009/10 127 

2010/11 126 

 
7.10.2  – Helped to live at home (all adults) 

Performance Year Outturn 

2007/08 2355 

2008/09 3141 

2009/10 3944 

2010/11 Information available 
end July 2011 

 
7.10. Haringey Adult Services have a strong and proven track record of good, well-

embedded commissioning and contracting practice, on a solid foundation of strong 
management of the social care market; current practice is to avoid large block 
contracts and large numbers of people being placed with any one provider. This 
mitigates against the potential collapse of particular providers and maximises the 
choice for clients and their families, within a system of benchmark pricing in the 
residential care home market. This approach would continue were a decision to be 
made to close the homes concerned.  

 
7.11. Access to all four residential care services is via an assessment of need by a care 

manager, in addition to a financial assessment. When a person has been 
assessed as having a need, a care plan is drawn up with the service user and a 
decision made as to how that need can be met.  Following a re-assessment of 
need, each service user will have a new care plan identifying suitable alternative 
residential care, or supported living for people with a learning disability as 
appropriate to their needs, taking into account the wishes of the individual 
residents and their families. A system of periodic reviews of residents’ needs and 
the suitability of the care plan is in place and would continue for affected residents. 
As a consequence, their circumstances will be closely monitored by care 
managers into the future, irrespective of where they were living. 

 
7.12. To mitigate the impact of the closures, as above, we will do all that we can to help 

and support users, relatives and carers to find suitable alternatives should the 
decision be taken to close the homes.  People will not therefore be on their own.  
People’s choices would be taken into consideration and of course we would look to 
maintain friendship groups.  Transitional arrangements would therefore include, 
where possible, moving groups of residents together to a new home (where 
appropriate to do so), so that social networks could be maintained and continued. 

 
 

Page 96



 

 9 

 
7.13. For those already in the service as permanent residents, officers are confident that 

the proposed long lead-in period to closure of the three older people’s care homes 
(The Redhouse, Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood) by 31st March 2013 will enable 
sensitive, careful and  holistic assessments and reviews of need to be undertaken 
and sufficient time will be taken to plan an alternative care home placement with 
the resident and her/his carer(s) both in terms of appropriateness of the new home 
and its location; any remaining residents who need to move will therefore be 
assisted to do so in a manner consistent with best practice and the need to 
minimise the transition shock for the residents concerned.  

 
7.14. For the residents of the learning disability home at Whitehall Street, there is 

appropriate alternative capacity and a good range of providers and support already 
available to suit the specific needs of the residents. There are a number of existing 
providers of care who have the capacity to provide this service, based on 
individual assessed need and the wishes of service users. 

 
7.15. At present there are a reduced number of people living permanently in the older 

people’s residential care homes, with the available capacity being made available 
for step-down from hospital as well as respite.  The total number of available beds 
is 113, whilst the current number of permanent residents is 82.  By using the bed 
capacity more flexibly for step-down and respite, this has meant there will be a 
smaller number of people permanently placed that will need to be moved in these 
care homes.   

 
7.16. In respect of the 10 permanent residents with learning disabilities who are living at 

Whitehall Street, it is worth noting that four of these individuals have long 
established support plans that include them moving back into the community with 
appropriate personal budgets and support services.  This planning pre-dated 
Cabinet’s original decision in December 2010 to go out to consultation on the 
proposed closures, and work with the individuals and their families is now well 
underway.     

 
7.17. We do not anticipate difficulties in finding places for those who wish them 

elsewhere in the Borough and will support anyone who wishes to be relocated 
closer to a family member or friend with whom they are in regular contact.  

 

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments  

8.1. If a decision is made by Members to close the residential homes detailed above full 
year gross savings of £3.72 million and net savings of £2.05 million could be 
achieved. These savings have been calculated allowing for an estimated level of 
alternative re-provision.  

 
8.2. The Medium Term Financial Plan as presented to Cabinet on 8th February included 

the proposed savings, of which gross savings of £918k (net savings £237k) for 
Whitehall Street was to be achieved in 2012/13 and the remaining gross savings of 
£2.805 million (net savings £1,814k) for older people’s homes to be achieved in 

Page 97



 

 10

2013/14.  The net savings represent the overall savings after the costs of re-
provision of services in the private sector are taken into account (refer ‘Service 
Financial Comments’) 

 

9. Head of Legal Services Comments  

9.1. The Cabinet in exercising these powers needs to take into account the views and 
opinions of users, providers and other stakeholders and to have carried out 
extensive consultation on these proposals. 

 
9.2. The decisions by the Cabinet concerning the recommendations set out in the 

report must be informed by and take into account the outcome of the consultation 
with service users, providers and other stakeholders, which is set out in Appendix 
1 to this report. 

 
9.3. In reaching their decisions the Cabinet must also have due regard to the 

authority’s public sector equality duty and thus should take into account the 
attached full equality impact assessment included at Appendix 2 to the report. The 
extent of the public sector equality duty on the Council, enforced by the Equality 
Act 2010, is set out in Appendix 3 to this report. As the attached equality impact 
assessment highlights the effect of proposals on a number of specific groups 
within the community, defined as those with protected characteristics under the 
Equality Act 2010 (by reason of their ethnicity, sex, age, or disability), particular 
consideration must be given to those effects and to the proposals made to  reduce 
or mitigate them.   

 
9.4. A decision to close the three residential care homes and a respite care home for 

people with learning disabilities will have specific consequences for the staff who 
are employed by the Council within those facilities. The Council's Corporate 
Committee retains authority under the terms of the Council's Constitution for 
decisions regarding changes to employee establishment of this size and nature. 
However in view of the implications of the recommendations contained in this 
report, the Cabinet should, before making any decision concerning the closure of 
these facilities, give due consideration to the completed consultation with staff and 
trades unions (at Appendix 6) while taking into account the outcome of the 
consultation with service users and other stakeholders.   

 

9.5. The Council has a duty to provide residential accommodation, whether long-term, 
short-term or for respite stays, under s21 of the National Assistance Act 1948 and 
also by exercise of other statutory powers where necessary. However, there is no 
legal obligation to meet these duties in a specific way. The commissioning 
arrangements currently in place meet the needs of the service users affected and 
any new arrangements should continue to meet these needs in order that the 
Council can discharge its duties without the need for these homes. Specific 
arrangements will need to be made in respect of each individual which should be 
achievable in the proposed timeframe. 

 

Page 98



 

 11

10. Head of Procurement Comments  

10.1.  N/A 
 

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

11.1. An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of the proposed 
closures of three Council run residential homes for older people; and a Council run 
residential/respite care home for people with Learning Disabilities. 

 
11.2. The proposed closures of these services, if agree, are likely to increase barriers for 

service users from groups with protected characteristics.  
 
11.3. The key findings from the EQIA on the funding proposals are as follows: 
 

11.3.1 Older People’s residential care homes 

• Across the three Council-run care homes for older people, there are  

• All service users have a form of disability, as defined by the Equalities Act 
2010. 

• The proportion of older people who are Black or Black British living in Council 
run residential homes is 28.6% as against the overall profile of older people in 
all residential care (both internal and external services) of 15.5%.  This is 
especially the case at Broadwater Lodge, where the proportion of Black or 
Black British residents living in the care home is 46.3%. 

• The proportion of White Irish living in Council run residential is 12.2%, where a 
higher proportion of this Race group are identified as living at Cranwood 
(21.7%). 

• No other particular disproportionate impact has been identified for any of the 
other equalities strands.   

 
11.3.2 Learning Disabilities residential/respite care homes 

• In Learning Disabilities, there are 10 permanent residents in Whitehall, and 
approximately 36 regular users of the respite service which consists of 4 beds 

• All service users have a form of disability, as defined by the Equalities Act 
2010. 

• The Equalities Impact Assessment shows an over representation of adults 
aged 45-54 (28.3%) who use respite as against the expected population of 
people with learning disabilities in Haringey (15.5%), with 63% of these users 
usually living with their parents who are elderly. 

• For people who live permanently at Whitehall, eight out of ten residents are 
aged between 30-49 years of age, meaning there is an over representation of 
this age range at 80%, although no disproportionate impact is anticipated. 

• There is an over representation of females with learning disabilities using the 
respite service (53%) as against the number of females with learning disabilities 
in permanent residential care (34.3%), and against the overall projected 
number of females with a learning disability in Haringey.   For those living at 
Whitehall Street permanently, there is also an over representation of females 

Page 99



 

 12

(70% of 10 users) when compared to the profile of people with Learning 
Disabilities in residential care (as above – 34.3%), although no disproportionate 
impact is anticipated. 

• There is a significant overrepresentation of people with learning disabilities from 
a Black or Black British ethnic background using the respite service (50%) 
when compared to the proportion of people in learning disabilities permanent 
residential care (26.5%). 

• No other particular disproportionate impact has been identified for any of the 
other equalities strands.   

 
11.4. To mitigate these impacts Adult and Community Services will: 

Issue Mitigating Actions 

Black and Black British older 
people accessing appropriate 
residential care and respite 
services 

• Ensure care management staff plan with 
service users, families/carers and 
providers that the specific cultural needs 
of user can be met when making 
placements. 

Risks of higher 
need for other forms of support 
and care services in future 
 

• Identifying non-traditional respite options 
and improving take-up of personal 
budgets  

• Commissioning more services in the 
independent sector 

• Developing a diverse market in services  

Risk of insufficient capacity in 
care home market to meet 
demand 

• Commissioning and Market development 
work with existing and potential new 
providers in ensuring the right level of 
capacity (of the right quality) 

• Ensure capacity for specific disabilities 
requirements – dementia care, and 
learning disabiltiies  

Improve equality monitoring in 
relation to transformed services  

• Ensure that all services users in 
transformed services are fully equality 
monitored against the Equality Act 2010 
categories  

 
11.5. It is advised that Adult and Community Services should:  

• Ensure that equalities information continues to be collected by providers and 
analysed  

• Continue to monitor the impact of the changed services to maintain good 
quality of provision and outcomes for all service users. 

• Review the equalities information required from providers within the contract 
and specification documentation, to increase the level of equalities information 
provided to the Council.   

 
11.6. The key findings from the staffing EqIA for Cranwood are as follows: 

• This assessment considers the impact on staff of the proposal to cease the 
delivery of services at Cranwood Residential Home for Older People in relation 

Page 100



 

 13

to the protected equalities groups of ethnicity, gender, age, disability and 
maternity. It does not consider issues relating to sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and religion or belief, as the relevant data is not 
available for these groups.  

• Staffing profile data used in this EqIA for comparison purposes is from 
December 2010.  

• If the unit is closed these proposals will displace 42 members of staff.   
Analysis of the characteristics shows the following. 

• Ethnicity – 76% of the staff are of a BME background as compared with 54% 
across the Council and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of 
staff.   This specifically applies to the Sc6-SO1 grade range.  

• Gender – 93% of the staff are female as compared to 67% across the Council 
generally and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of staff 
when compared to the Council generally.  This applies to all grade ranges 
employed at the unit.   

• Age – Overall there is no significantly disproportionate impact on any particular 
age range  

• Disability – Overall, there is no significantly disproportionate impact on  staff 
with a disability in this staff group (9.8%) as compared to the Council profile 
(7%). 

• The proposal to close this service by April 2013 is based on the need to make 
financial savings.  The service has been taking all necessary steps to consult 
with staff in order to mitigate against compulsory redundancies by identifying 
volunteers for redundancy and planning the application of the councils 
redeployment procedure.  If the decision to close is taken the voluntary 
redundancy and redeployment processes can commence in line with Council 
processes so that staff can be redeployed into vacancies that exist up until 
April 2013.     

 
11.7. The key findings from the staffing EqIA for The Red House are as follows: 

• This assessment considers the impact on staff of the proposal to cease the 
delivery of services at Red House Residential Home for Older People in 
relation to the protected equalities groups of ethnicity, gender, age, disability 
and maternity. It does not consider issues relating to sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and religion or belief, as the relevant data is not 
available for these groups.  

• Staffing profile data used in this EqIA for comparison purposes is from 
December 2010.  

• If the unit is closed these proposals will displace 44 members of staff.   
Analysis of the characteristics shows the following. 

• Ethnicity – 81% of the staff are of a BME background as compared with 54% 
across the Council and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of 
staff.   This applies to all grade ranges employed at the unit.  

• Gender – 86% of the staff are female as compared to 67% across the Council 
generally and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of staff 
when compared to the Council generally.  This applies to all grade ranges 
employed at the unit except for the Sc6-SO1 grade range.   

Page 101



 

 14

• Age – Overall there is no significant disproportionate impact on any particular 
age range.  

• Disability – Overall, there is not a higher level of staff with a disability in this 
staff group (2.6%) as compared to the Council profile (7%). 

• The proposal to close this service by April 2013 is based on the need to make 
financial savings.  The service has been taking all necessary steps to consult 
with staff in order to mitigate against compulsory redundancies by identifying 
volunteers for redundancy and planning the application of the councils 
redeployment procedure.  If the decision to close is taken the voluntary 
redundancy and redeployment processes can commence in line with Council 
processes so that staff can be redeployed into vacancies that exist up until 
April 2013.     

 
11.8. The key findings from the staffing EqIA for Broadwater Lodge are as follows: 

• This assessment considers the impact on staff of the proposal to cease the 
delivery of services at Broadwater Lodge Residential Home for Older People in 
relation to the protected equalities groups of ethnicity, gender, age, disability 
and maternity. It does not consider issues relating to sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and religion or belief, as the relevant data is not 
available for these groups.  

• Staffing profile data used in this EqIA for comparison purposes is from 
December 2010.  

• If the unit is closed these proposals will displace 44 members of staff.   
Analysis of the characteristics shows the following. 

• Ethnicity – 98% of the staff are of a BME background as compared with 54% 
across the Council and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of 
staff.   This applies to all grade ranges employed at the unit.  

• Gender – 93% of the staff are female as compared to 67% across the Council 
generally and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of staff 
when compared to the Council generally.  This applies to all grade ranges 
employed at the unit.   

• Age – Overall there is a disproportionate impact on the 45-54 age range (59%) 
as compared with the Council generally (35%)  

• Disability – Overall, there is not a higher level of staff with a disability in this 
staff group (0%) as compared to the Council profile (7%). 

• The proposal to close this service by April 2013 is based on the need to make 
financial savings.  The service has been taking all necessary steps to consult 
with staff in order to mitigate against compulsory redundancies by identifying 
volunteers for redundancy and planning the application of the councils 
redeployment procedure.  If the decision to close is taken the voluntary 
redundancy and redeployment processes can commence in line with Council 
processes so that staff can be redeployed into vacancies that exist up until 
April 2013.     

 
11.9. The key findings from the staffing EqIA for Whitehall Street are as follows: 

• This assessment considers the impact on staff of the proposal to cease the 
delivery of services at Whitehall Street Residential Home for people with 

Page 102



 

 15

Learning Disabilities in relation to the protected equalities groups of ethnicity, 
gender, age, disability and maternity. It does not consider issues relating to 
sexual orientation, gender reassignment, pregnancy and religion or belief, as 
the relevant data is not available for these groups.  

• Staffing profile data used in this EqIA for comparison purposes is from 
December 2010.  

• If the unit is closed these proposals will displace 32 members of staff.   
Analysis of the characteristics shows the following. 

• Ethnicity – 82% of the staff are of a BME background as compared with 54% 
across the Council and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of 
staff.   This applies to all grade ranges employed at the unit.  

• Gender – 82% of the staff are female as compared to 67% across the Council 
generally and therefore the impact is disproportionate on this group of staff 
when compared to the Council generally.  This applies to all grade ranges 
employed at the unit.   

• Age – Overall there is no disproportionate impact on any particular age range.  

• Disability – Overall, there is no significantly higher disproportionate impact on 
staff with a disability in this staff group (12%) as compared to the Council 
profile (7%). 

• The proposal to close this service by April 2012 is based on the need to make 
financial savings.  The service has been taking all necessary steps to consult 
with staff in order to mitigate against compulsory redundancies by identifying 
volunteers for redundancy and planning the application of the councils 
redeployment procedure.  If the decision to close is taken the voluntary 
redundancy and redeployment processes can commence in line with Council 
processes so that staff can be redeployed into vacancies that exist up until 
April 2012.     

12. Consultation  

12.1.  There has been a complex and wide-ranging process of consultation over the 
period between 31st January 2011 and 30th April 2011 in relation to the proposals 
to close the homes. It is clear how much the homes are valued by those who use 
them and their wider family networks. The consultation has raised concerns in 
relation to the level of disruption both to individual residents and their friendship 
networks. It has also raised concerns about the negative impact of transition shock 
on frail older people/people with learning disabilities who are required to move to 
another location. Please see Appendix 1 for the full details of our 90 consultation 
responses regarding these proposals. Meetings were held with users of services, 
relatives and carers as well as staff either immediately before and after Christmas 
2010 and at the start of the New Year 2011 to alert them to the proposed budget 
cuts and that we would be consulting on the proposal.   This was followed up, at 
various stages between January and April 2011, by letters and emails, notices in 
the local press, via the independent and voluntary sector, the local online 
community and NHS colleagues so that the message could be cascaded to as 
wide as possible an audience.  

 
 

Page 103



 

 16

 
12.2 There have been several main channels for people to have their say in relation to 

the homes.   Cabinet members and senior officers within Adult Services have met 
with service users, relatives, carers in each of the homes, at least monthly – a 
dozen meetings in all.  A total of more than 60-70 users, relatives and carers 
attended one of these meetings in the first month of the consultation alone.  Of the 
total of 200+ letters, emails, members enquiries received to date on the Adults 
consultation proposals, some 60 concerned the homes.  In addition, interested 
parties have submitted petitions for the homes collectively and individually. .  We 
received a 168 signature petition against the closure of the Whitehall Street 
Centre’ and a further 58 signatures to save Broadwater Lodge. The Liberal 
Democrat Group in Haringey, wrote to us in regards to the proposals regarding the 
drop-in’s, luncheon clubs and day services for older people (including submitting a 
586 signature petition) and we received a further 99 signatures from a joint 
campaign to defend all adult social care services in the Borough.   

 
12.3 There is also a routinely maintained consultation web page (Adult Services Budget 

Savings Consultation Website) which has had over 2,100 “viewings”. 
 
12.4 Comments received have been considered and analysed. The full details of the       

consultation are contained in a separate more detailed consultation report  
(Appendix 1).  However, a summary is set out below. 

 
12.5 Impact for users, relatives and carers 

Those who attended meetings or who wrote in have understandably expressed a 
range of emotions and strengths of feeling.   Many people who participated in the 
consultation did so with personal stories and explained the impact of the cuts for 
them and/or their loved ones or the groups and individuals whose interests they 
represented. For those in residential care, this was “their home” and the staff “their 
family”.    

 
12.6 Impact for the future and the wider community 

Some respondents worried that these savings would have lasting consequences 
for the community and those groups and individuals they supported and cared for.  
Others pointed to a potential extra demand for statutory and non-statutory services 
across the Borough and as they saw it the wider social impact of the proposals.  
There were worries too about current and future capacity if services closed or 
amalgamated or that the quality could not or would not be replicated in the 
independent sector or that prices would rise.   
 

12.7 Comments on the proposal 
The general view was that residential and respite services provided vital, much-
needed services and support.  People overwhelmingly would prefer it if they 
remained as they were and ‘strongly opposed’ or ‘opposed’ the proposal.  Several 
respondents, including leading charities, expressed their opposition to any cuts in 
funding that threatened services for vulnerable people within the community and 
felt that savings could and should be found elsewhere even if they largely 
accepted and understood that funding shortages lay behind the proposal.  Some 

Page 104



 

 17

people said that the proposed savings were a false economy and/or that it would 
cost more in the long run.  Those in favour of the proposals said that the needs of 
all Haringey residents must be put ahead of the few and suggested a range of 
alternatives.   
 
Many extended offers of help and/or suggested steps (please refer to Appendix 
1)the Council should and could take to mitigate and/or monitor the impact were the 
cuts to go ahead.  Some were pleased to see the personalisation programme 
moving forward and were keen to work with the Council in developing a diverse 
market in services.  Others like the Unions were concerned that the 
personalisation agenda was being used to justify the proposal.   
 

12.8 Comments on the consultation 
Direct feedback would indicate that the meetings we held were sensitively run and 
generally positively received and that the Council had fulfilled its responsibility of 
keeping those who attended informed.  Others we have heard from said they had 
struggled to comprehend or hear what was being said, felt the meeting has been 
dominated by others or that they lacked detailed enough feedback on which to 
participate effectively.  
 
There were moreover views that the consultation was “seriously flawed, claims 
that users of services and others have found it difficult to challenge the Council’s 
figures or offer alternatives because of a lack of a detailed costs or that 
substitutes/replacements had not been properly costed.  It was also stated that 
there appeared to be no transitional arrangements even though, as was explained, 
no decision has been taken.  
 
Others suggested that proposals had been hastily arranged or that decisions had 
already been made, that the questionnaires were biased, queried the levels of 
advocacy or other support and/or asserted that the consultation was a formality, 
foregone conclusion or was even a ‘sham’.   There was frustration at how long the 
consultation was lasting, and in the absence of a decision, the ‘lack of progress’ 
from one meeting to the next or that we’d not listened to specialists or have taken 
account of their views as service users, relatives or professionals from the outset.  

 
12.9 Frequently asked questions 

People frequently asked about the reason for the savings and wanted to discuss 
other ways of saving money, asked what would happen to the buildings or to other 
groups using the buildings, asked about the consultation, and for more information 
to enable them to propose alternative courses of action for consideration as part of 
the consultation.  Understandably some queried what would happen to users of 
services should the proposed closures go ahead, worried as they were about not 
having enough time to make alternative arrangements. 

 
12.10 Consultation on proposals for Residential and Respite Care 

Some had no objections in principle to outsourcing of residential home care 
services to the independent and voluntary sectors and recognised the Council’s 
policy to use only those providers rated ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ by the Care Quality 

Page 105



 

 18

Commission.  Others were concerned about standards in the private sector and 
what would replace residential and respite services if the homes closed.  There 
was concern about the self-assessment procedures used by providers and that 
there should be robust monitoring arrangements in place. Loss of continuity and 
consistency of service and moving residents out of the borough would make 
visiting loved ones more difficult were also raised as concerns.  
 

12.11 Respite facilities save the Council money, it was said, ‘by providing the bulk of the 
care’.   They also it was argued gave users of services a regular experience of 
being away from home and their carer for when the carer was no longer able to 
care for them. 

 
12.12 Looking to the Future 

Asked what factor(s) councillors should take into account when making their final 
decision, two-thirds to three quarters thought continuity of care and quality of care 
the most important factors - significantly higher (80-90%) in case of day centres 
and residential care homes.  A safe and secure environment, well-trained and 
friendly staff and home cooked nutritious food was important for 50-60%+ of 
residential home and bed-based respite respondents.  In additional to a safe 
secure environment, help and support when they needed it and being able to 
maintain links with family and friends were the services/support that care home 
respondents wanted most (60-80%) going forward.  The respite options people 
most wanted into the future were short breaks and bed-based respite (around 60% 
apiece); close to half wanted holidays, support day activities and week-ends away.  
Just over 30% wanted a sleep-in service.   
 

13. Service Financial Comments 

13.1.  A decision to close the services detailed above will allow savings to be achieved of 
£2.05 million, full year effect after allowing for an appropriate level of re-provision. 

 
13.2. The savings that will be achieved should the closure(s) of the Council’s care homes 

for Older People be agreed by Cabinet are net of projected costs of re-provision in 
the private and voluntary sector. This is shown in the table below. 

 

  Current Reprovision Net 

  Budget Beds Budget Beds Saving 

Red House 982,500 34 268,016 13 714,484 

Broadwater Lodge 939,400 45 373,024 17 566,376 

Cranwood 883,200 33 349,890 17 533,310 

Total 2,805,100   990,930   1,814,170 

 
 
13.3. The savings that will be achieved should the closure of the Council’s care home for 

Learning Disabilities be agreed by Cabinet are net of projected costs of re-
provision in the private and voluntary sector. This is shown in the table below. 

 

Page 106



 

 19

 

  Current Reprovision Net 

  Budget Beds Budget Beds Saving 

Whitehall Street 918,700 15 681,466 14 237,234  

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

14.1.  Appendix 1 - Adult Social Care Consultation Update 
14.2.  Appendix 2 – EqIAs:- closure of residential homes for older people and residential/ 

respite homes for people with learning disabilities. 
14.3.  Appendix 3: The public sector single equality duty 
14.4.  Appendix 4: List of care homes for older people and people with learning 

disabilities in the borough 
14.5.  Appendix 5: Summary analysis of consultation questionnaire 
14.6.  Appendix 6: Trade Union Comments and the Staff Consultation Report for 

Residential Homes 
 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

15.1.  January 2011, “Think Local, Act Personal”, Cabinet Office 
15.2.  No reason for confidentiality or exemption 
 

 
 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



1

Appendix 1 – Adult Social Care proposed closures - Consultation Report 

 

 

 

Proposed closures of homes, centres, 
drop-ins and the Alexandra Road Crisis 
Unit – Consultation Results 

 

 

Report – May 2011 

 

 

Sections 

1.  Background 

2.  Results 

3.  Supporting Documentation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



2

Section 1 - Background 

 
Introduction 

This report sets out the main findings of the consultation regarding the 
proposed closure of homes, centres, drop-ins and the Alexandra Road Crisis 
Unit.   The findings will form part of the reports presented to councillors in 
June and July 2011. 

 

Consultation Details 

 
The consultation ran for three months from 31st January to 30th April 2011. 
Meetings were however held with users of services, relatives and carers as 
well as staff either immediately before and after Christmas 2010 or at the 
start of the New Year 2011 to alert them to the proposed budget cuts and 
that we would be consulting on the proposal.   This was followed up, at 
various stages in January through April 2011, by letters and emails (over 
1200 or more were sent out), notices in the local press, via the independent 
and voluntary sector, the local online community and NHS colleagues and 
discussed and advertised via the five Adult Partnership Boards so that the 
message could be cascaded to as wide as possible an audience.  The 
consultation around the proposed closure of the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit 
was moreover conducted with NHS Haringey.  There was also a 
comprehensive web page where people could find up to date information, 
including feedback; this has received over 2100 viewings as follows: 

 

Page Page views 

Budgetconsultation/general 995 

budgetconsultation/daycarecentres 428 

budgetconsultation/residentialhomes 272 

budgetconsultation/alexroad 263 

budgetconsultation/dropincentres 177 

 
 
We also issued a reminder about the consultation (and the time remaining for 
people to have their say) midway through the consultation and have advised 
that, though, our three-month consultation, launched in January 2011, has 
now ended, consultation is an ongoing process and people can make further 
representation to Councillors when they are making their final decisions.  

 

There were several main channels for the consultation.  These included: 
 
•   Consultation surveys (printed and online versions were made available),  
     where, participants could separately complete questionnaires for day care  
     centres, drop-ins, residential care homes/bed based respite care or  

Page 110



3

     the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit and, in doing so, respond to specific  
     questions and/or add comments of their own. 

email or other written correspondence directly to the council or via a 
councillor or local member of parliament, which allowed any comments 
whatsoever to be made on the proposed changes.  We have also 
received responses from advocates acting on behalf of groups or 
individuals. 

a significant number of events were held with users, relatives and carers 
where individuals were presented with information about the proposals 
and the consultation and then given the opportunity to discuss and 
comment upon the various aspects including the potential impact upon 
them and to put forward their case or alternative propositions.   See 
pages 25-34 for details of these meetings. 

 
There were also opportunities for the five established partnership boards, 
reference groups, forums and other networks to consider formally the 
proposal and to respond to the consultation so that carers, older people’s 
representatives, those representing people with learning and other 
disabilities, mental health issues, the BME community etc could have their 
say.  Several, such as the Older Peoples and Learning Disabilities Partnership 
Boards, CASCH, a residents association in Crouch End and Haringey User 
Network taking the opportunity to do so. 
 

16 Feb, 13 
Apr 2011 

Older People’s Partnership Board  

19 Jan, 31 
Mar 2011 

Carers Partnership Board 

2 Feb, 23 
Mar and 18 
May 2011 

Learning Disabilities Partnership Board  

13 Jan, 14 
Apr 2011 

Mental Health Partnership Board  

24 Jan, 16 
May 2011 

Autism Disorder Spectrum Group 

 
In addition, in response to requests received, we met with a number of 
individuals or groups to discuss a number of alternative proposals.  Users 
and other interested parties were also encouraged to begin their own 
consultation with officers attending or facilitating meetings.  Details as 
follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



4

16/02/2011 Muswell Hill Pensioners Action Group 

9/03/2011 Cranwood Community Group 

09/02/2011 Tom's Club 

18/02/2011 Clarendon Centre 

21/03/2011 Haringey Local Improvement Network (LINK) 

21/03/2011 Older People’s Drop-in Centres workshop 

15/04/2011 Meet with Cllr Schmitz Options for Willoughby Rd 

14/06/2011 Hill Homes ‘Extra care’ scheme 
 20/06/2011 Meeting with Cllr Winskill and a Carer 

 
In respect of the Older People’s Drop-ins and the half-day workshop with 40 
service users (10 from each centre) facilitated by Age UK, key issues of 
concern raised by this group were around the loss of social contact, the hot 
meal in the middle of the day and foot-care and how Dial a Ride and similar 
were seen as less efficient than the Council service (provided from down-time 
in the middle of the day from Older People’s Services day care-based 
vehicles). 
 

Responses to the Consultation 

Our consultation sought to reach a wide-ranging audience and we received 
a significant number and varied set of responses.  
 
There were over 400 direct responses to the consultation including over 
200 letters and emails and, at the time this report was produced, 191 
completed surveys.  On average, over 300 users, relatives and carers a 
month attended the various meetings that we held.   

People said, in some cases, that they planned to fight the cuts and/or 
advised us that they had or would be submitting petitions to keep the 
service/venues open – those we have received have been logged as part of 
the consultation.  We received petitions from ‘Save the Woodside and Haven 
Day Centres’ (31 signatures), ‘The Haringey Day Care and Drop-in Centres’ 
(79 signatures), Don’t Close the Whitehall Street Centre’ (168 signatures),  
Willoughby Road Drop-in (128 signatures), Woodside House drop-in (108 
signatures), the Irish Centre (48 signatures), ‘Save Alexandra Road Crisis 
Unit’ (169 signatures), the Liberal Democrat Group in Haringey (586 
signatures) and a further 99 signatures from a joint campaign to defend all 
adult social care services in the Borough.   
 
Details of responses/meetings held with users, relatives and carers: 
 

  

Number of meetings: users, relatives, carers 56 

Number of other meetings attended or facilitated 10 

Number of completed user questionnaires  
 
68 responses to the proposed closure of day care centres 
48 responses to the proposed closure of drop-in centres 
22 responses to the proposed closure of residential care homes     
     and bed based respite services 191 

Page 112



5

53 responses to the proposed closure of the Alexandra Road      
     Crisis Unit 

Number of supporting letters (service users, other organisation, MPs, Members 
Enquiries etc) 
 
56 responses to the proposed closure of day care centres, of which 6 related 
directly to the proposed Haynes/Grange merger  
23 responses to the proposed closure of drop-in centres 
60 responses to the proposed closure of residential care homes     
     and bed based respite services 
21 responses to the proposed closure of the Alexandra Road      
     Crisis Unit 
62  general and other enquiries, including about  the Jackson’s   
      Lane Luncheon Club 222 

Petitions (total number of signatories: 1416 ) 9 

 
 

There was also local and national press and television coverage and both 
local members of parliament visited a number of the homes and centres and 
met with users, relatives, carers and staff as did a number of ward 
councillors.   

There was a deputation to Downing Street and there will be a motion in 
parliament seemingly.  

 
Accessibility Issues 
 
We produced information about the consultation in a number of accessible 
forms (other languages, audio, Braille, large print etc) on request and 
engaged independent advocates for those individuals and groups who 
needed it.  Having listened, separate meetings were held with deaf people 
and the blind and partially sighted and, after the first meeting, we held 
separate meetings at Whitehall St for residential and respite users to discuss 
the proposals.   
 
Advocates were on hand for individuals who may have mental or other 
capacity issues and who did not have an appropriate family member or friend 
to advocate on their behalf and separate meetings have been arranged with 
those individuals and/or groups concerned.   Several responses received 
have been dictated to others and/or are resumes of meetings that advocates 
or others have had with service users in a number of locations. 
 
Equalities 
 
Voluntary sector organisations and users of services alike said it was 
important that the equalities impact of the proposed savings were fully taken 
into account and monitored.  Equalities Impact Assessments (EQIAs) have 
been produced and accompany the final report.  
 
Those who attended one or more of the regular monthly meetings and left 
feedback fell into the following categories: 

Page 113



6

 
Total number of 
respondents 72  
(not all 
commented on 
all questions) 

Gender  Age Ethnicity Disability (those 
who consider 
themselves to 
be a disabled 
person) 

 51 women 
11 male 
 
Gender differ 
from birth: 3 

17 under 60 
43 60 or over 

White 42 
Mixed 2 
Asian/Asian British 
9 
Black or Black 
British 6 
Chinese  
or other 3 

37 – No 
20 - Yes 

 Sexual 
orientation  

Religion   

 45 
Heterosexual 
Remainder 
did not 
complete this 
section of the 
form 

None 5 
Christian 41 
Buddhist 2 
Hindu 5 
Other 3 
Jewish 1 
Muslim 5 
Other 3 

  

 
The following are the key characteristics of the 191 people who responded to 
the questionnaire surveys.  
 
 Drop-ins Day centres Homes ARCU 

Over 60s/under 60s Roughly 
50:50 

  30:70 Roughly 
40:60 

High (88%) 
proportion in 
their  30, 40s 
and 50s 

Those considering 
themselves to have a 
disability 

42% (Y) 
54% (N) 

59%(Y): 
37% (N) 

14% (Y) 
82% (N) 
 

62% (Y) 
38% (N) 

Ethnicity 95% White 
just under 
1:5 of them 
White Irish 
4% Black or 
Black British 
Significantly 
no Mixed 
race, Asian, 
Asian British 
or Chinese 
respondents 

54% White 
11% Mixed 
7% Asian or 
Asian British 
28% Black 
or Black 
British 
3% Chinese 
or other 
ethnic group 
 

68% White 
9% Mixed 
0% Asian or 
Asian British 
14% Black 
or Black 
British 
0% Chinese 
or other 
ethnic group 
 

43% White 
8% Mixed 
2% Asian or 
Asian British 
21% Black 
or Black 
British 
4% Chinese 
or other 
ethnic group 
 

Gender 2:1 women 
and less 
than 5% 
whose 
genders 
different 
than at birth 

60% women 
30% men  
4% whose 
genders 
different 
than at birth 

73% women 
23% men 
0% whose 
genders 
different 
than at birth 

55% women 
32% men 
2% whose 
gender 
differs from 
birth 

Sexual Orientation 75% 
Heterosexual
2% Gay 
2% Bisexual 

84% 
Heterosexual
2% Gay 
2% Bisexual 

73% 
Heterosexual 
5% Gay 
5% Bisexual 

70% 
Heterosexual
4% Gay 
0% Bisexual 

Page 114



7

0% Lesbian 0% Lesbian  0% Lesbian 6% Lesbian 

Religion 56% 
Christian 
21% None 
6% Muslim 
2% other 

62% 
Christian 
15% no 
religion 
4% Muslim 
2% Buddhist
2% Jewish 
2% Other 

59% 
Christian 
5% Muslim 
23% No 
religion 
 

38% 
Christian 
28% no 
religion 
8% Muslim 
2% Buddhist
2% Jewish 
2% 
Rastafarian 
4% Other 

 
Given the relatively small numbers involved compared with the numbers who 
use the services, from an equalities aspect, the EQIAs are therefore a more 
reliable source of the impact of the proposed cuts on groups and individuals 
with specific protected characteristics.  
 

Comments on the consultation 
 
Direct feedback, including from 72 respondents who attended meetings for 
users, relatives and carers who took the trouble to complete feedback forms, 
would indicate that the meetings we held were sensitively run and generally 
positively received and that the Council had fulfilled its responsibility of 
keeping those who attended informed.  Of these 72, 47 (65%) rated the 
meeting as good or very good with the remainder who indicated saying they 
were satisfied, unsatisfied with proceedings or expressing mixed opinions.  
There were 8 responses without comments. 
 
Others we have heard from said they had struggled to comprehend or hear 
what was being said, felt the meeting has been dominated by others or that 
they lacked detailed enough feedback on which to participate effectively.  
 
There were some views that the consultation was “seriously flawed”, should 
be suspended, reviewed and re-modelled so that it engaged more openly 
with service users, carers and representative organisations.    There were 
claims that users of services and others have found it difficult to challenge 
the Council’s figures or offer alternatives because of a lack of a detailed 
costs or that substitutes/replacements had not been properly costed.  It was 
also stated that there appeared to be no transitional arrangements even 
though, as was explained, no decision has been taken.  
 
Others suggested that proposals had been hastily arranged or that decisions 
had already been made, that the questions in the questionnaire were 
‘loaded’, queried the levels of advocacy or other support and/or asserted that 
the consultation was a formality, foregone conclusion or was even a ‘sham’.   
In the case of ARCU, there was a concern that plans for a new service would 
appear to have advanced to a fairly advanced stage, questions over the legal 
justification for the proposed closures of homes or requests for the proposals 
not to be looked at in isolation. 
 

Page 115



8

There was frustration at how long the consultation was lasting, and in the 
absence of a decision, the ‘lack of progress’ from one meeting to the next 
and that no one could tell them what specifically would be happening to 
them or their loved one or that councillors had not already ‘reversed’ the 
proposal.  Others said the council should listen to specialists or have taken 
account of their views as service users, relatives or professionals from the 
outset.  
 
Feedback 
 
People asked a good many questions at the monthly meetings or in their 
correspondence.  Formal responses to many of the recurring questions that 
were posed during the consultation have been placed on the consultation 
web page, displayed in homes and centre and/or made available on request 
or in responses to individual correspondence received.  However, in 
summary, people asked about the reason for the savings and wanted to 
discuss other ways of saving money, asked what would happen to the 
buildings or to other groups using the buildings, asked about the 
consultation, and for more information to enable them to propose alternative 
courses of action for consideration as part of the consultation.  
Understandably some queried what would happen to users of services 
should the proposed closures go ahead, worried as they were about not 
having enough time to make alternative arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 116



9

Section 2 - Results 
 

Interpreting the Consultation Responses  

A great deal of time and effort has been put into the responses by 
contributors to the consultation.  Many individuals, particularly in their letters 
and at meetings, have described their personal experiences and how they 
have been using the services for a good many years, even decades in some 
cases.    

Local voluntary organisations and other professionals have also discussed in 
detail the specific comments they have about the proposals.   Plus there are 
the detailed responses to the various questionnaires.   All of these responses 
have been considered and analysed.  

For the purposes of assessing the impact where possible and appropriate 
within the report the different proposals have been considered separately. 
 

Key findings  
 
Throughout this section of the report, we have sought to include recurring 
themes emerging from stakeholder responses, rather than detailing specific, 
individual issues or outlining every point of view.    
 

1.  Views of users of services 
 
Meetings with users of services and correspondence (pages 35-60) 
received: 
 
Those who attended meetings or who wrote in have understandably 
expressed a range of emotions and strengths of feeling.   Many were angry, 
upset, appalled, frightened, helpless, stressed or depressed by the proposal.  
Some said it was affecting their health.  There was genuine sadness that this 
was happening. Others thought the proposal deeply unfair or that it would 
also have a ‘knock on effect’ for those they looked after or who looked after 
them and put extra pressure on them.   Some sensed that no one really cared 
about the impact this would have on them or had their interests at heart.  
Some said how they did not deserve this.   
 
Across each of the homes and centres and in correspondence received, 
more users of services understood the reasons for the cuts than did not, 
even if they did not necessarily agree with the cost-effectiveness of the 
proposal or why or how the changes were proposed to be implemented.   
 
The general view of those present at meetings and writing-in was that these 
organisations provided vital, much-needed services and support.  They 
overwhelmingly would prefer it if they remained as they were and ‘strongly 
opposed’ or ‘opposed’ the proposal.  People also said how highly they 

Page 117



10

valued and rated these services and for the most part had no complaints with 
them, making favourable comparisons with the help and support that they 
had previously received elsewhere and/or referred to their current services as 
‘beacons of excellence’ and ‘invaluable in a crisis’. 
 
Many people who participated in the consultation did so with personal stories 
and explained the impact of the cuts for them and/or their loved ones or the 
groups and individuals whose interests they represented.  We received 27 
‘impact statements’ from users of the Haven about what the closure would 
mean for them personally.   Many said how they would miss the social 
interaction, friendships they have struck with staff and other users of services 
or meals, outings and/or other activities on offer including foot care, dancing, 
bingo etc.   Many said how it was the only time they socialised or had 
contact with people outside of the home and that they looked forward to 
coming to centres, drop-ins etc.  For those in residential care, this was “their 
home” and the staff “their family”.    
 
Relatives and carers pointed to the transformation in their loved one 
demeanour and overall well-being and how the ‘stimulation’ they received 
from attending centres and drop-ins had helped them a lot since they started 
coming there.  They worried where else they would go or receive a service or 
the impact that a move (and in some cases another move) would have on 
users, how their life was “hanging in the balance” or would, some claimed, 
deteriorate as a result or even result in their dying.  Some said they would be 
become isolated in their homes, lonely, end up in residential care, on the 
streets or in hospital.   Others worried that users of services would become 
less settled or that relatives and carers would no longer have time to do 
some of the things they liked or needed to do. Several people cited concerns 
that family members could have to give up jobs to look after them.  The 
psychological factor and trauma, it was said, should be taken into 
consideration. 
 
Alternatives proposals/sources of funding 
 
Many said that they understood the Council needed to make savings but that 
it needed to be more creative or look at other ways of making cuts rather 
than ‘targeting’, as they saw it, the elderly or most vulnerable and that the 
council had a responsibility to care for elderly, treat them with dignity and 
involve them in society. Others felt that ,as one of the most deprived 
boroughs in London, Haringey was ‘bearing the brunt of the cuts’.  Others 
thought that cuts to Adult Services were ‘disproportionate’, something of a 
soft option and the wrong place to be making cuts.  Respondents also said 
we should support older people, they depend on these services and that they 
deserved to be treated better after a lifetime of work and paying taxes.   
Many stated that they were happy with the way things were.   
 
Some people said that the proposed savings were a false economy and/or 
that it would cost more in the long run to provide them with support at home 
or in another setting, lead to over-crowding (684 Centre), a lack of capacity 
(dementia services) and/or even longer waiting lists (Alexandra Road/respite 

Page 118



11

services).   Others said that it was difficult to put a value on the emotional 
comfort and support that they received or did not believe that ‘relatively small 
sums’ could not be found to keep their service or these services generally 
open.  
   
Included in the responses were suggestions that the Council use its reserves, 
money from the Icelandic banks, cut management posts, executive pay, 
communications/IT costs and waste and generally look elsewhere before 
cutting these ‘vital’, front-line services.  Some queried the decision not to cut 
any of the Borough’s libraries and/or to expand these services.  There were 
worries that for some, including those that were less mobile, ‘use of a library’ 
was not an effective option.   Others suggested the council tender services 
out, they be run through a charity or trust or trained volunteers supervised by 
qualified staff, people pay-per-use. Others suggested that alternative sources 
of funding be found: charities, lottery, local retailers etc.  Some were 
prepared to pay more council tax.  Others suggested that service users might 
attend different venues on different days or share venues and providers; that 
operating hours be reduced or saw the logic in amalgamating centres and 
homes (provided at least one of each type remained in existence) or that 
neighbouring authorities work together on finding a solution.  Others said that 
what was wanted was more training to get back to work or voluntary work. 
 
Those in favour of the proposals said that the needs of all Haringey residents 
must be put ahead of the few.  Some pointed to what they called the 
duplication of older people’s services or felt that the Alexandra Road Crisis 
Unit, for example, should close as it did not benefit service users in the long 
run, with some, as they saw it, simply using the service as a hotel with no 
lasting improvement in their situation afterwards.  Others said the Council 
should be finding cheaper alternatives in the private sector and felt that the 
Independent sector was capable of providing care of equal quality.  Others 
accepted that such things as day centres did not have to be run directly by 
the council provided standards were maintained and regularly monitored.  
For some, who the provider was, was less important than the quality of the 
care provided and how centres and homes were closed more important than 
their closure.  
 
Those in favour also said by all means close centres but provide a safety net 
for emergencies and ensure that concrete alternatives were in place before 
changes should be considered.  People also said that the Council ought to 
distinguish between “drug induced and genetic or inherited mental illness” 
with users being asked to pay rather than receive publicly-funded support for 
the former. 
 
Others responded that whereas all services were important, that did not 
mean all of them had to be delivered at all of the centres.  It was also 
suggested  that services could be provided in community groups/sheltered 
housing or ‘extra care’ type settings and in retirement villages or delivered via 
personal assistants in the home or that there should be greater access to 
other statutory and trained professionals outside conventional office hours. 

Page 119



12

One respondent confirmed that supported housing schemes organised 
events and that they were fairly under-used.   
 
Others were reluctant or declined to comment saying that the savings should 
be found from elsewhere or that there was simply nowhere out there that 
matched their service and that it was unique, that we should maintain these 
existing ‘centres of excellence’ or that things should stay as they are.  
 
Should the proposed mergers and closures go ahead, the prevailing view 
was that every effort should be made to find suitable community based 
groups and organisations to take them over and they be offered practical 
support in doing so.  There was therefore support for discussion with other 
providers, faith groups and social clubs provided these were open and 
transparent and encouraged others to come forward and engage in 
alternative provision.  Age UK mentioned it had already been working with 
church groups and others on developing neighbourhood befriending 
schemes and that these could well support new small scales drop-in centres.   
 
Others said they had asked their local church for support or that they could 
raise the money needed to keep the service open.   There were both formal 
and informal offers by users and others to run the places themselves, for 
example that a Community Group be allowed to tender to run Cranwood 
residential care home on the proviso that the current home had been 
demolished and replaced by 4x 12-bed homes.  There was a question 
however as to whether the high degree of dependency at day centres would 
result in voluntary groups being able to assume responsibility for them or 
with support to voluntary groups being cut how those groups could be 
expected to fill the gap.     
 
Effects of the cuts – Service-Specific comments: 
 
 Residential and Respite Care 
 
There were concerns about standards in the private sector and what would 
replace residential and respite services if the homes closed.  Loss of 
continuity and consistency of service and that alternatives could be too far 
away for many people to travel to were also uppermost concerns.       
 
There were worries too that moving residents out of the borough would make 
visiting loved ones more difficult.  
 
Respite facilities save the Council money, it was said, ‘by providing the bulk 
of the care’.   They also it was argued gave users of services a regular 
experience of being away from home and their carer for when the carer was 
no longer able to care for them. 
 
Drop-ins and Day Care centres: 
 
It was said that these preventative services provided a ‘life line’ for those who 
used them and that many people would be isolated or lose the only 

Page 120



13

significant social contact they had without them.  People also considered 
that without the monitoring of vital signs and regular contact of staff in these 
centres, the physical and mental health of older service users and those with 
mental health issues, could worsen as service users could come to harm 
through neglecting to eat properly or take their medication leading to more 
demands on social care and health services.   
 
Drops-ins, it was said, were vital for contact, friendship, a hot meal and 
stimulation and have served as hubs for older people in the local community 
for many years now. People would have nowhere else to go and nothing to 
do than sit at home if these facilities were to close, it was said. 
 
Closure of non-statutory services such as the drop-ins was also thought to 
increase the likelihood of a more serious intervention by the Council or NHS 
and seen as being a “sound investment in the well being of older people”.   
 
Others thought that the journey from one side of the borough to the other 
would prove too much for some people or that there would be nothing left for 
them where they lived if their local centre or home were to close or 
amalgamate.   
 
Several people spoke of the importance of a week-end service in places like 
the Grange and the Haynes or the profound impact that centres had on the 
lives and quality of life of people with dementia and their carers.   
 
A number of people said that alternatives such as the Clarendon for day 
centres users or Recovery Houses or wards for those with mental health 
issues would have a very different feel about them or fail to adequately 
enough meet their needs.   The 684 Centre had given people skills to cope 
and is financially and otherwise successful.   
 
Stability was seen as important for people with dementia.  Moreover, people 
with dementia, it was said, needed a stimulating environment  and active and 
stable relationships and skilled staff that these centres offered.  None of 
which, it was argued, could be sourced in the independent sector or 
provided in people’s homes.  
 
As carers of people with dementia representing themselves and service users 
who are unable to represent themselves, the Haynes Relatives Support 
Groups objections to the closure of what they called an ‘excellent state of the 
art facility that had transformed their and their loved ones lives’ was that the 
proposed merger of the Haynes and the Grange and the closure of Woodside 
Day Centre was contrary to the interest of people with dementia and their 
carers and would be harmful to them.   They argued that the Haynes Centre 
does not have the capacity to accommodate current clients with dementia 
and that doubling the numbers (to 30 per day) would result in overcrowding 
and compromise the quality of care, even if staffing ratios are appropriate 
and “gross under provision”.   They cited a 1992 planning and design guide 
published by the Alzheimer’s Society recommending a maximum of 16 
clients per day.    

Page 121



14

 
As for the proposed closure of the Haven, re-provision proposals (amounting, 
it was stated, to 3 hrs additional homecare per week) was not seen as a 
substitute for the care users of services currently received. 
 
Users of some groups and organisations (dance and luncheon clubs for 
example)  could not understand why their centre might close when the 
activity they attended was, in their view, self-supporting.  
 
Alexandra Road Crisis Unit: 
 
ARCU was seen as an extremely important part of the mental health service 
in Haringey providing a positive pathway to avoiding hospital admissions, 
pressure on GPs etc.  Closing ARCU would, it was argued, be short-sighted 
and high in both financial and human terms.  A short stay at ARCU can, it 
was argued,  prevent some people from needing to go onto more serious 
units for more serious conditions, make a real difference and save lives and 
was preferable to locked wards and a hospital setting which were not viewed 
as viable or preferred alternatives and about which there was genuine 
anxiety.   People it was said, did not want a medical model but a person-
centred approach like ARCU.  
 
People  were uncertain of the strategy behind the closure arguing that the 
replacement(s) as they saw it being advocated would be very different to now 
and based on a medical model that services users did not want.    Recovery 
Houses, it was said, worked along different lines such that ARCU’s demise 
would not pick up on the need for a community based crisis and respite unit 
with 24hr telephone support leading to gaps in crisis services making it 
difficult for services users to move quickly from a crisis back into normal life.   
 
People said they appreciated that the NHS rather than council cuts 
precipitated closure of ARCU but felt the Council should be helping to save 
the place from closing. 
 
Haringey Users Network as part of its work in supporting service users, 
having consulted users, said there was a clear conclusion that the service 
was popular and effective and that service users would be most concerned 
about the loss of respite care; the skills and empathetic support of staff and 
the loss of the 24 hr support phone line. 
 
Other comments: 
 
People with learning disabilities or mental health issues, it was said, needed a 
secure and stable environment. 
 
Many expressed concerns for the future of staff working in the homes and 
centres and asked us what we are doing for them.  
 
 
 

Page 122



15

Comments on the Way Ahead – the Future 
 
Some respondents worried that these savings would have lasting 
consequences for the community and those groups and individuals they 
supported and cared.  Some worried that certain users would have fewer 
opportunities or a reduced voice in the community.  Others pointed to the 
extra demand for statutory and non-statutory services across the Borough 
and as they saw it the wider social impact of the proposals. 
 
There were worries too about current and future capacity if services closed or 
amalgamated or that the quality could not or would not be replicated in the 
independent sector or that prices would rise.  Those worried about future 
capacity, pointed to a rise in both the ageing population in Haringey and the 
numbers of those with dementia and how current service user numbers was 
but a fraction of those in Haringey diagnosed with dementia and that this was 
therefore the wrong tome to be making cuts of this kind. One centre for the 
people with dementia it was said, would not be enough. 
 
They were also concerned that, with the proposed closure of day centres, the 
Council would not be able to commission the day care needed and that 
people with personal budgets would not be able to access day care.  Care at 
home, they argued, was an unsatisfactory alternative.    
 
Finally without the specialist care these day centres provide, there will be 
additional costs in the future due to the loss of these preventative services.  
Moreover, setting up an independent sector in Haringey (currently lacking) 
could prove costlier plus it might in due time lead to an increase in placement 
prices hence comparative costs were meaningless.    
 
Some Mental Health respondents did not have high hopes for future of crisis 
services in Haringey.  They were worried that even if crisis services still 
existed that the threshold to access them would be much higher such that 
the only MH services available would be for those who are seriously ill.   
 
User Survey Questionnaires: 
 
(where numbers do not tally this equates to the fact that people for whatever 
reason did not answer all of the questions)  Percentages also rounded up and 
down.  Where returns are identical and obviously written by the same hand 
and not by an advocate or someone acting on behalf of someone else, the 
results have not been counted.   
 
A total of 191 responses were received about proposed changes to services. 
There were four different questionnaires, reflecting the proposals concerned 
being (i) Older People’s Residential Care Homes and bed based respite 
services for people with Learning Disabilities; (ii) the Alexandra Road Crisis 
Unit; (iii) Drop-in centres and (iv) Day Care centres. A detailed breakdown of 
results of each of these has been compiled and the applicable breakdown is 
attached as an appendix to the main report under consideration by 

Page 123



16

Members. Pages 20-24 includes some of the analysis that has been drawn 
out. 
 

 
2. Providers and Voluntary Sector organisations, including 
advocacy services, and others 
 
Some comments are raised by others (and so not repeated here) and/or are 
covered elsewhere in the report. 
 
Commenting on the proposal, several respondents expressed their 
opposition to any cuts in funding that threatened services for vulnerable 
people within the community or as in the case of the Unions were opposed to 
the closure of homes and centres but accepted that funding shortages lay 
behind the proposal.   
 
Leading charities such as Age UK voiced their opposition to some or all of 
the proposals but at the same time extended offers of help and/or suggested 
steps the Council should and could take to mitigate and/or monitor the 
impact were the cuts to go ahead.  Some were pleased to see the 
personalisation programme moving forward and were keen to work with the 
Council in developing a diverse market in services.  Others like the Unions 
were concerned that the personalisation agenda was being used to justify 
some of the proposed closures and or questioned how we could be 
advocating more choice and control if we were at the same time proposing to 
reduce services.   They were concerned too that personalisation was being 
used to generate a market in social care.   
 
Age UK thought that, in the context of the overall savings that had to be 
found, that Adult Social Care had not fared too badly although this needed to 
be seen in the context of other Council/NHS reductions, including in its own 
funding.   Having said that, they suggested that cutting back on services that 
promoted a full and healthy life in older age risked putting short term financial 
gain ahead of sound long term policy. 
 
Age UK had no objection in principle to outsourcing of home and residential 
care services to the independent or voluntary sectors and recognised the 
Council’s policy to use only those providers rated ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ by the 
Care Quality Commission.   There was concern however about the self-
assessment procedures used by providers and that there should be robust 
monitoring arrangements in place.  
 
Haringey User Network (HUN) acknowledged services needed to be fit for 
purpose and of value to individuals.  From consultation they carried out, HUN 
was of the view that the 684 Centre and the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit were 
beneficial to the mental well being of service users.  There was however a 
perception that 684 was under-used, but, should it close, that this should not 
be at the expense of the needs of current users.  
 

Page 124



17

According to HUN, and other responses received, Service Users have 
expressed the opinion that the Clarendon Centre and 684 are not fully 
comparable.    
 
The Lewis & Mary Haynes Trust’s objections can be summarised as: 
concerns about the capacity of the Haynes to accommodate the increased 
usage proposed; highly unsatisfactory transport arrangements if service 
users had to be bussed from one side of the borough to another recreating, 
they argued, exactly the problem for users that the Haynes was established 
to resolve.   There were concerns too that re-provision proposals would not 
meet clients needs or future dementia care needs and that the proposals ran 
counter to both the National Dementia Strategy and the Haringey Dementia 
Commissioning Strategy.  
 
In all our conversations with staff, their principal concern has been for the 
welfare of residents of homes and users of centres.  They were particularly 
concerned where service users would go and the effect the proposals were 
having on them now.   There were worries too that work they had undertaken 
to build relationships and develop people’s confidence and improve their 
physical and mental well-being would be undermined and could not easily or 
quickly be replicated.  
 
Supported by the member of parliament for Hornsey and Wood Green, the 
Haringey Liberal Democrat Group believes the day centres, drop-ins and 
luncheon clubs for older people in Haringey should not close and is 
suggesting that the money to run the centres can be found from savings in 
other parts of the council budget and that they are “inexpensive and 
represent excellent value for money”.   There were concerns too that there 
has been no comprehensive assessment of the effects these closures would 
have on the lives of those who used them nor the financial impact for the 
council or others of their closure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



18

 
 
 

Section 3 -  Supporting Documentation 
 
 

Notes on Interpreting the data  
 
Qualitative research  
 
There are a number of issues to bear in mind when interpreting the data. 
First, a consultation such as this is predominantly qualitative in nature and 
has involved listening to what people have said and the way in which they 
have said it and interpreting their completed surveys.  
 
This does not devalue their evidence – far from it.  Qualitative methods 
based on ‘themes’ and ‘concerns’ are much-used and well-respected in 
research.  
 
A number of verbatim comments are included to illustrate and highlight 
key issues that were raised.  These are attributed, where appropriate to 
specific audiences or sectors.   
 
Quantitative research 
 
Statistical data is included in order to illustrate the relative importance of 
particular issues compared with others and to specific groups with 
protected characteristics as well as to assist commissioners and others 
shape a future potentially without some or all of the services  or levels of 
funding. 
 
Some figures/response rates in the report are relatively small given the 
potential sample size or overall numbers consulted; they must therefore be 
treated with caution.  
 

Other Caveats and assumptions 
 
In reading this report, the following other caveats and assumptions 
need to be taken into account: 
 
1.  It is important to bear in mind that responses may be based on 
differing levels of knowledge. 
 
2.  There were submissions from providers, voluntary organisations etc.  
This group of stakeholders is likely to be particularly engaged and have 
much expertise in the subject area, and as a result, many of the 
submissions comprised detailed, well-researched responses.   
 
3.  Many of the users, relatives and carers and providers who have 

Page 126



19

responded would be directly affected by the proposals and thus have a 
personal interest in the outcome.  
 
4.  Not all participants, for whatever reason, chose to answer all 
questions. 
 
5.  While every attempt has been made to classify each participant into 
the correct category for reporting purposes and capture equalities data, 
it is not always possible to be certain to which specific category 
respondents belong. There were for example a number of surveys that 
could not be attributed to a group or sector or problems interpreting 
hand-writing. 
 
6.   While the consultation was open to everyone, the respondents were 
self-selecting, and certain types or groups of people have inevitably 
been more disposed to contribute than others.  
 
7.  It is recognised that a number of forms will have been completed on 
behalf of users of services users by relatives, carers, advocates or, in 
some cases, service providers.  However, there are a number of 
identical submissions in the same hand-writing; where this is obviously 
the case, these have been discounted.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127



20

 
 

Analysis of Questionnaire Responses 
 
About the respondents: 
 

Drop-ins – 45% of those who completed Drop-in questionnaires 
indicated that they used the centres or were a relative/unpaid carer of 
someone who did.   Of those who did, almost 50% used the Irish 
Centre, 20% of them used Woodside House, and 4% of respondents 
apiece attended either Willoughby Road or Abyssinia Court.    Almost 
38% of respondents said they were members of the public thereby 
possibly accounting for the ambivalence about the drop-ins retention.   
 

Day centres – 60% stated that they used one of the council-run day 
care centres. Just under a fifth of respondents were relatives or carers 
of someone who used the centres and just under 1 in 10 described 
themselves as members of the public and 6% were health or social 
care professionals or working in the independent sector.  There was a 
high response rate from users of the Haven (40 people or some 59% 
of respondents) and not surprisingly given the nature of the centres, 
much lower percentages for the Haynes and the Grange.  

 

Over 50% of Residential and respite care respondents did not live in 
or use the homes affected by the proposal or access the respite 
service with relatives and unpaid/carers understandably accounting for 
majority of respondents.  Of those who did, just under 20% came from 
Broadwater Lodge with a further 9% of users coming from each of the 
other 3 homes.    

 

45% of ARCU respondents were living in accommodation they rented 
from the Council or a Housing Association, 11% from a private 
landlord, 9% lived in sheltered housing and 21% owned or part owned 
their own home.   9% of respondents were currently at ARCU and over 
half of respondents had previously used the Centre.  Relatives and 
unpaid carers made up 6% and members of the public almost 20% of 
the respondents.   Just under 10% were social care, mental health or 
other professionals. 

 
Responses to specific questions: 
 
Asked to what extend they supported the proposal, the overwhelming 
majority of respondents across the majority of the homes and centres either 
opposed or strongly opposed the proposals.   
 

 Day centres Drop-ins Homes ARCU 

Opposed, 
strongly 
opposed 

82% 54% 75% 94% 

Page 128



21

Support, 
strongly 
support 

10% 30% 20% 6% 

Neither 8% 16% 5% 0 

 
Any differences in views between the different day centres and homes are 
within accepted tolerances or in the case of the Haven can be accounted for 
by the high number of returns or the emphatic view of those commenting 
upon the ARCU who, when asked, most wanted or strongly wanted a safe 
place to go when unwell or in crisis, one which did not remind them of 
hospital and provided respite.  There is a marked difference when it comes to 
the drop-ins, with respondents still broadly opposed but by only a small 
margin when those who support or expressed no opinion are added 
together. 
 
Asked if they understood why Haringey Council was proposing to reduce or 
cease funding to organisations in some instances, a high percentage  
(roughly 60-80%) appear to have understood why the Council was proposing 
to close or merge services.   Of those who were unsure or said they did not 
understand, this had as much to do with the fact that people wanted things 
to stay the way they were than that they did not understand the proposal or 
what lay behind it. 
 

Sector Yes Not Sure  No 

Homes 82% 0% 18% 

Centre 78% 9% 13% 

Respite for 
people with LD 

73% 5% 18% 

Drop-ins 67% 6% 23% 

ARCU 57% 11% 30% 

Respondents 133 15 40 

 
Asked what factor(s) councillors should take into account when making their 
final decision, two-thirds to three quarters thought continuity of care and 
quality of care the most important factors - significantly higher (80-90%) in 
case of day centre and homes. 
 
Value for money and using resources to offer more care to more people was 
rated by roughly a third or more.    
 
Asked what independence meant to them, around 80% of drop-in 
respondents said it meant maintaining their health and being able to pursue 
their interests and hobbies.  Over 70% cited being able to keep in contact 
with friends and family or being able to choose and make decisions on how 
they led their lives and remain in their own home.   Fewer than 50% said 
having their own budget to exercise greater control and choice – not 
surprising given personalisation’s infancy.  
 

Page 129



22

Maintaining their health, keeping in contact with friends and family or being 
able to pursue interests and hobbies or make their own decisions on how 
they led their lives and remain in their own home were important to over 
three-quarters of day care and residential home respondents.  
 
Respondents were invited to reflect on a future without Council-run homes, 
centres and drop-ins and the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit in order, should the 
decision be taken to close or merge them, to help commissioners of services 
to work with the voluntary, independent sector and others to look at the most 
appropriate alternative sources of provision.  
 
Asked to rate in order of importance which services were the most important 
to them respondents almost universally valued virtually all of the services 
they received. 
 
Day centre respondents, lunch clubs/other meals and social activities and 
transport and trips were the services that they rated as ‘most important’.  
Hairdressing was the least important to respondents followed (in ascending 
order) by foot care/healthcare and art/craft activities.  A safe and secure 
environment, well-trained and friendly staff and home cooked nutritious food 
was important for 50-60%+ of residential home and bed-based respite 
respondents.   
 
The surprising result was the low level of support for foot care/health care 
services given the numbers of people (00s) using the service but then the 
samples were low.  
 
Over two-thirds of those commenting on ARCU felt a mix of psychiatric user-
led self help social groups and adult social care would best help support their 
futures rather than anyone service on its own.  
 
Asked what has enabled people to remain independent and active or in the 
case of Alexandra Road, best achieve recovery and return home: 
 
Somewhere to meet others in safety and social activities were viewed by over 
80% of drop-in respondents as the things that most enabled them to remain 
independent and active.  Day centre respondents said something similar.   Of 
the services currently provided at Alexandra Road, respondents considered 
accommodation, the support of other with similar experiences and social 
activities were the top 3 most important things to people in crisis.  
 

 Day Centres Drop-ins Homes ARCU 

 1 (96%)  
Safe place to 
go 

1 (81%) 
Safe place to 
go 

 1 (78%) 
Well- trained
friendly staff 

1 (74%) 
Accommodation

 2 (84%) 
Social 
Activities 

2 Social 
Activities 
(79%) 

2 (59%) 
Home 
cooked food

1 (74%) Social 
support 

 3 (78%) 
Transport 

3 Meals 
(64%) 

3 (46%) 
Social 

3 (62%) Meals 

Page 130



23

activities 

 4 (75%)  
Meals 

4 Transport 
(50%) 

4 (36%) 
Outdoor 
space 

4 (55%) Social 
activities 

 5 (60%) 
Break for 
relative and 
carers 

5 
Refreshments 
(41%) 

5 (32%) 
Space for 
own 
furniture and 
possessions 

5 (53%) 
Creative 
activities 

 6 (54%) 
Refreshments 

6 Healthcare 
/foot care 
 (35%) 

5 (27%) 
Good-sized 
bathroom 

6 (38%) 
Physical 
activities 

 7 (49%) 
Art/craft 
activities 

7 Break for 
relative and 
carers 
(35%) 

6 (23%) 
Space to 
entertain in 
private 

7 (36%) 
Housing benefit 
and debt advice 

 8 (31%) 
Health/foot 
care 

  8 (30%) 
Education or 
training 

    9 (21%) Help to 
stay in work 

    10 (17%) Help 
back to work 

 
Looking to the future, friendship (reminiscing), hot and cold lunches and trips 
out were the services/activities most drop-in respondents wanted  in the 
future.  Keeping fit, health care and refreshments were next.   4 in 10 wanted 
access to advice and information in the future with hairdressing and light 
snacks least highly rated.  
 
Friendship (reminiscing) and lunchtime meals were the services 9 out of 10 
day care centre respondents wanted in the future closely followed by keeping 
fit (84%) and trips out (82%).   
 
A safe secure environment, help and support when they needed it and being 
able to maintain links with family and friends were the services/support that 
care home respondents wanted most (60-80%) going forward rather than 
such things as the size of accommodation, being with people from the same 
culture or staying at home with appropriate care and support although 
suitable communal facilities and being able to live among people of a similar 
age were still important.   
 
The respite options people most wanted into the future were short breaks 
and bed-based respite (around 60% apiece); close to half wanted holidays, 
support day activities and week-ends away.  Just over 30% wanted a sleep-
in service.  
 
For ARCU respondents, the key services they think must be provided in the 
future are a safe place to go (over 80%); helping those in a crisis to manage 

Page 131



24

their own mental health (79%); and information and advice (53%) followed by 
the support of other users/survivors (42%).  
 
Asked if the service or activity currently provided by the Council were to 
cease, people thought that the best way to provide services and activities 
currently provided by the homes and centres in future would be as follows: 
 

Drop-ins  

1  (41.7%) Run, funded and managed by a charity or trust 

2  (37.5%) Run and funded as a social enterprise 

3  (27.1%) Delivered in sheltered housing 

4  (22.9%) Run and funded by the private sector 

5  (14.6%) Run, funded and managed by users themselves 

6  (8.3%) Delivered to users in their own homes 

7  (8.3%) Other 

 

Day centres  

1  (51.5%) Other 

2  (17.6%) Run, funded and managed by a charity or trust 

3 (11.8%) Run and funded as a social enterprise 

4 (8.8%) Run, funded and managed by users themselves 

5 (4.4%) Delivered in sheltered housing 

5  (4.4%) Delivered to users in their own homes 

 

Homes  

1 (50%) Residential care delivered by the Council 

2 (27.3%) Care delivered in a residential care setting 

3 (13.6%) Delivered to users in their own homes 

3 (13.6%) Delivered in sheltered housing 

5 (9.1%) Maintain own independence, stay in community, get 
access to 24-hr care 

6 (4.5%) Residential care delivered by the private sector 

6 (4.5%) Other  

 

ARCU  

1 (47.2%) A local mental health charity  

2 (39.6%) Alexandra Road run by someone else 

3 (34%) A national mental health charity 

4 (26.4%) Other  

5 (18.9%) A local survivor/user-led group 

6 (15.1%) Clinic/ward within a local hospital 

 
In the case of ARCU, the most favoured alternative, should the Council-run 
centre close was a local mental health charity, the least favoured option was 
a clinic/ward within a local hospital.   Half of residential care home 
respondents felt that the council should continue to provide these services 
and of the 50-plus per cent of day care respondents who said other, a good 
many said things should stay as they are. 

Page 132



2
5

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

T
h
e
 R

e
d

 H
o

u
s
e
 

2
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

2
3
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 

L
is

a
 R

e
d

fe
rn

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
A

d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

T
h
e
 R

e
d

 H
o

u
s
e
 

1
6

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

1
5
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 L
is

a
 R

e
d

fe
rn

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
A

d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

T
h
e
 R

e
d

 H
o

u
s
e
 

2
0

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

4
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
L
is

a
 R

e
d

fe
rn

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
A

d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

W
h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 

1
0

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

1
6
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/r
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
  

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
K

h
u
s
b

o
o

 P
u
ri
 

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

A
d

v
o

c
a
te

) 
 

W
h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 

1
0

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

1
4
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/r
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
  

B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

a
rk

 H
e
a
th

 
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

A
d

v
o

c
a
te

) 
 

Page 133



2
6

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

W
h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 

7
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
1
4
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/r
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

 -
 

R
e
s
p

it
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 
 1
0
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/r
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

 -
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

a
rk

 H
e
a
th

 
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

A
d

v
o

c
a
te

) 
 

B
ro

a
d

w
a
te

r 
L
o

d
g

e
 

9
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
1
5
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 S

u
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

B
ro

a
d

w
a
te

r 
L
o

d
g

e
 

9
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
6
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
 

B
ro

a
d

w
a
te

r 
L
o

d
g

e
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
1
0
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
  

M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
   

Page 134



2
7

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 

1
5

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

1
5
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

/r
e
la

ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

S
u
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

 

M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 B
e
rn

a
rd

 L
a
n
ig

a
n
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
  

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 

1
4

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

2
3
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

/ 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
H

ig
h
g

a
te

/M
u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 
P

e
n

s
io

n
e
rs

’ 
G

ro
u

p
  

3
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 B
e
rn

a
rd

 L
a
n
ig

a
n
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 

1
1

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

2
3
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs

/R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 

B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
 

A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u
rt

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
2
8
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

/ 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 S

u
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

 A
g

e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

 C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 W
in

s
k
ill

 
C

llr
 K

a
th

e
ri

n
e
 R

e
e
c
e
 

A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u
rt

  
2

3
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
4
8
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

/ 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

 

Page 135



2
8

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u
rt

  
1

3
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
3
0
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

/ 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
/C

a
re

rs
  

  
 

B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 

2
1

 F
e

b
 1

1
  

A
p

p
ro

x
 1

0
0
 

 D
a
n
c
e
 g

ro
u
p

; 
B

in
g

o
 

C
llr

 C
la

ir
e
 K

o
b

e
r,

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

M
e
e
h

a
n
 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 

2
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

A
p

p
ro

x
 7

7
-8

0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
e
o

rg
e
 M

e
e
h
a
n
  

 M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 

1
8

 A
p

r 
1

1
  

8
5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
y
n
n
e
 F

e
a
th

e
rs

to
n
e
 M

P
 

 C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
a
v
id

 W
in

s
k
ill

  
 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 
1

4
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
4
2
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

C
llr

 C
la

ir
e
 K

o
b

e
r,

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 
1

4
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
3
9
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
V

ic
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

Page 136



2
9

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 
1

1
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
3
4
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 I
ri
s
h
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

1
5

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

5
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
V

ic
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
e
o

rg
e
 M

e
e
h
a
n
  

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 I
ri
s
h
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

1
5

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

8
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
e
o

rg
e
 M

e
e
h
a
n
  

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 I
ri
s
h
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

1
4

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

1
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 

9
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
6
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
w

is
 &

 M
a
ry

 
H

a
y
n
e
s
 T

ru
s
t 

 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

e
 G

o
ld

b
e
rg

, 
C

a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 
 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 

1
5

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

N
o

 o
n
e
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d

 
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

Page 137



3
0

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

T
h
e
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 

1
5

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

1
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

  

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 

1
5

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
  

 S
u
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

 

M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 

1
9

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

1
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 P
a
tr

ic
k
 M

o
rr

e
a
u
, 

L
e
w

is
 &

 
M

a
ry

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 T

ru
s
t 

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ro

u
p

 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
im

 J
e
n

k
s
 

 L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

9
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
   

1
9
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

  

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

1
8

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

2
3
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
, 

s
o

m
e
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 

m
e
n
ti
o

n
e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
d

 

B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 T

a
rk

a
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

Page 138



3
1

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

in
g

 t
h
e
re

 f
o

r 
1
0
-1

5
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
 M

a
u
re

e
n
 C

a
re

y
, 

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

’s
 

F
o

ru
m

 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

1
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

2
3
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
3
2
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
2
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

9
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
1
6
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

1
4

 F
e

b
 1

1
  

  

1
3
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
, 

1
 a

d
v
o

c
a
te

, 
I 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
r 

 H
a
ri
n

g
e
y
 C

a
re

rs
 F

o
ru

m
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

7
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
1
5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
e
o

rg
e
 M

e
e
h
a
n
  

 M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

Page 139



3
2

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

1
0

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

1
8
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
  

 
1

1
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
1
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

T
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

1
5

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

1
3
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
id

e
o

n
 B

u
ll,

 C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

A
n
n
e
 S

te
n
n
e
tt

 
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
/H

a
v
e
n
 

1
6

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

1
0
  

- 
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
 

 V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 f

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

C
la

ir
e
 K

o
b

e
r,

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

  
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
/H

a
v
e
n
 

2
3

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
/H

a
v
e
n
 

1
3

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

8
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
id

e
o

n
 B

u
ll,

 C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

A
n
n
e
 S

te
n
n
e
tt

 
L
e
n
 W

e
ir
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

/M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
) 

6
8
4
 

9
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
2
2
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

C
la

ir
e
 K

o
b

e
r,

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

  
 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  

  

Page 140



3
3

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

6
8
4
 

1
0

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 
B

a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  

  

6
8
4
 

8
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
2
2
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

M
u

n
 T

h
o

n
g

 P
h

u
n

g
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  

  

6
8
4
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
7
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
 

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  

  

6
8
4
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
2
3
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  

  

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 
C

ri
s
is

 U
n
it
 (
A

R
C

U
) 

1
1

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

5
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
 

 

C
o

u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
ile

k
 D

o
g

u
s
, 

L
e
a
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
u

n
c
a
n

 S
tr

o
u

d
, 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

H
a
ri
n

g
e
y
 N

H
S

  

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 
C

ri
s
is

 U
n
it
 (
A

R
C

U
) 

1
4

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

7
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
a
re

rs
 

 S
u
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

  
 

 D
r 

N
u
a
la

 K
ie

ly
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n
ti
n
g

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 S

tr
o

u
d

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 N

H
S

  
 

Page 141



3
4

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
  

D
a

te
  

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

 G
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
: 

T
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
  

S
a
v
e
 A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 C
ri
s
is

 
U

n
it
 (
S

A
R

C
U

) 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 
C

ri
s
is

 U
n
it
 (
A

R
C

U
) 

2
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
1
0
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
te

p
h

e
n

 D
e
it
c
h

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 
C

ri
s
is

 U
n
it
 (
A

R
C

U
) 

3
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
5
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
te

p
h

e
n

 D
e
it
c
h

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 
C

ri
s
is

 U
n
it
 (
A

R
C

U
) 

1
4

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

8
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o

lls
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
, 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
te

p
h

e
n

 D
e
it
c
h

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

W
in

k
fi
e
ld

  
2

9
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
9
 B

lin
d

/p
a
rt

ia
lly

 s
ig

h
te

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 (
P

h
o

e
n
ix

 
G

ro
u

p
) 

B
e
rn

a
rd

 L
a
n
ig

a
n
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

W
in

k
fi
e
ld

  
2

9
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
6
 d

e
a
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
B

e
rn

a
rd

 L
a
n
ig

a
n
, 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

S
ig

n
e
rs

 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d

a
n

c
e
  

   

Page 142



3
5

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
  

C
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
t 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
c

e
 o

f 
C

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c

e
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 

C
u

ts
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
 

 
 

 
7

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 
A

s
k
in

g
 w

h
y
 o

th
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
d

 
d

o
w

n
 

 
1

7
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

C
o

p
y
 o

f 
le

tt
e
r 

fr
o

m
 a

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 u
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
ts

. 
 

 
1

1
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

J
a
c
k
s
o

n
 L

a
n
e
 l
u
n
c
h
e
o

n
 c

lu
b

 –
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 e

x
is

te
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
O

n
ly

 s
u
c
h
 v

e
n
u
e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 (
it
 i
s
 s

a
id

) 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 

th
e
ir
 m

a
in

 m
e
a
l 
o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
. 

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

r 
ro

le
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 (
it
 i
s
 a

rg
u
e
d

) 
a
s
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 f
ra

il 
o

r 
o

th
e
rw

is
e
 i
n
 n

e
e
d

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
G

iv
e
n

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 
s
m

a
ll 

s
a
v
in

g
, 

a
s
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
. 

 
1

4
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

O
p

p
o

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 u

n
fa

ir
 c

u
ts

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 “

th
e
 e

lit
e
”/

”r
ic

h
e
r 

c
o

u
n
c
ils

” 
a
n
d

 n
o

t 
“t

h
e
 h

a
te

d
 p

o
o

re
r 

c
o

u
n
c
ils

” 
o

r 
“p

o
o

r,
 d

is
a
b

le
d

, 
o

ld
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 i
n
 o

u
r 

s
o

c
ie

ty
” 

s
h
o

u
ld

 “
p

a
y
 t

h
e
 p

ri
c
e
 f

o
r 

fa
ile

d
 p

a
s
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
”.

  

 
2

8
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
 

J
a
c
k
s
o

n
 L

a
n
e
 –

 “
u
n
iq

u
e
”,

 l
o

n
g

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

C
u
ts

 u
n
a
v
o

id
a
b

le
 b

u
t 

o
th

e
r 

w
a
y
s
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 u
n
fa

ir
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
. 

 
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

C
u
ts

 u
n
fa

ir
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

in
g

 E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 

 
2

2
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

P
le

a
 n

o
t 

to
 c

u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 w
h
a
t 

lif
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
ik

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 (
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 e

tc
) 
if
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
re

 
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
e
re

 n
o

t 
th

e
re

 o
r 

in
 i
ts

 p
re

s
e
n

t 
fo

rm
  

 
  

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 
D

is
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
to

 c
u
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

, 
(a

s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
u
n
fa

ir
, 

im
m

o
ra

l,
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
a
n
d

  

Page 143



3
6

  
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d

 “
d

e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
” 

a
t 

m
o

s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 d
is

a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

. 
  

 

 
9

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
* 

 
A

la
rm

 a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
u
ts

 t
o

 t
h
o

s
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 
d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
  

 
1

9
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
U

s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

H
o

w
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

J
a
c
k
s
o

n
 l
a
n
e
 L

u
n
c
h
e
o

n
 

c
lu

b
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 e
ld

e
rl
y
 a

n
d

 f
ra

il 
a
n
d

 h
o

w
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

r 
is

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
lf
a
re

 a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d

in
g

. 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
L
ib

e
ra

l 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

t 
G

ro
u
p

 
F

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

s
k
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

e
 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

ly
 h

a
lt
e
d

 f
o

r 
tw

o
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
: 

th
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

m
o

n
e
y
, 

(a
s
 

th
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
n
e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 r
u
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 f

o
u
n
d

 f
ro

m
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

b
u
d

g
e
t.

 

n
o

 c
o

m
p

re
h
e
n
s
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 o

n
 e

it
h
e
r 

th
e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 u
s
e
 

th
e
m

 n
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

a
n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
re

-p
ro

v
is

io
n
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
c
lo

s
u
re

. 

A
ls

o
 a

tt
a
c
h

e
d

 a
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 -

 a
 p

a
p

e
r 

o
n
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 

o
n
lin

e
 v

e
rs

io
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 5

8
6
 s

ig
n
a
tu

re
s
. 

 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
A

g
e
 U

K
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

F
o

rm
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

 s
e
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 U

s
e
r 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 
F

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

 s
e
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

 
1

3
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 (
N

1
7
) 

w
o

rr
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

u
tb

a
c
k
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 f
o

r 

Page 144



3
7

th
e
ir
 w

a
rd

 

 
9

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

U
N

IS
O

N
 

F
o

rm
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

 s
e
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

T
h

e
 R

e
d

 H
o

u
s
e

 
3

1
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir

 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
. 

 
C

o
m

fo
rt

 k
n
o

w
in

g
 s

o
 w

e
ll 

c
a
re

d
 f

o
r.

  
 R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

n
o

te
s
/f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 e

tc
 a

s
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e
l 
to

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 

 
 

 

 
7

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 

G
o

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 a

b
ro

a
d

; 
w

a
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
in

fo
rm

e
d

. 

 
9

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 

T
h
a
n
k
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 d
e
d

ic
a
ti
o

n
, 

e
x
p

la
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
y
th

in
g

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 d

o
 

to
 h

a
lt
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
1

1
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

ri
e
n
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 *
 

W
is

h
 t

o
 e

m
p

h
a
s
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

 
b

e
, 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
a
 ‘

d
is

a
s
te

r’
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
a
d

v
e
rs

e
ly

 v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
2
x
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

(N
1
0
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

a
 h

o
m

e
 w

it
h
 a

 g
o

o
d

 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 C
a
lls

 f
o

r 
c
re

a
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
. 
 W

a
n
ts

 c
o

u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
“h

u
m

a
n
it
a
ri
a
n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
”.

 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

A
p

p
re

h
e
n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

 l
o

c
a
lly

. 
 “

S
a
d

 a
n
d

 
a
p

p
a
lle

d
” 

if
 e

ld
e
rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 n

o
 f

a
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 e

n
d

 
u

p
 b

e
a
ri
n

g
 b

ru
n

t 
o

f 
c
u
ts

. 
  

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

9
) 
 

L
o

o
k
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 t
h
e
re

 a
n
d

 t
h
in

k
 v

is
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 

m
a
d

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
p

p
ie

r.
  
P

le
a
s
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

s
h
u
t 

it
 

d
o

w
n

. 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

1
1
) 

H
o

w
 a

g
e
d

 1
1
, 

v
is

it
in

g
 C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

 r
e
a
l 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 l
if
e
. 

  
H

o
w

 c
h
u
rc

h
 t

h
e
y
 a

tt
e
n
d

 
w

o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 w
it
h
 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b

s
. 

 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

1
2
) 

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
m

 a
n
d

 f
ri
e
n
d

s
 

w
h
o

 v
is

it
; 

p
le

a
s
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
lo

s
e
 i
t.

 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

S
a
d

 C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 m

ig
h
t 

c
lo

s
e
. 
  

L
o

v
e
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

Page 145



3
8

9
) 

a
n
d

  
ta

lk
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

 e
v
e
ry

 w
e
e
k
 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

1
3
) 

F
e
e
ls

 s
tr

o
n
g

ly
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
m

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 f

ri
e
n
d

s
 g

o
in

g
 t

h
e
re

. 
H

a
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 i
s
s
u
e
 

o
f 

ru
n
n
in

g
 l
u
n
c
h
e
s
 a

t 
c
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

tt
e
n
d

. 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

1
0
 –

 a
g

e
 

1
4
) 

H
o

w
 h

a
v
e
 g

ro
w

n
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 g

e
tt

in
g

 
to

 k
n
o

w
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 g
ro

w
. 

D
re

a
d

s
 t

o
 t

h
in

k
 w

h
a
t 

w
ill

 h
a
p

p
e
n

. 
 K

n
o

w
s
 t

h
e
re

 
h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

u
ts

 b
u
t 

d
o

e
s
n
’t

 w
a
n
t 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
“t

a
rg

e
te

d
”.

  

 
1

7
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
2
 x

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

(N
6
) 

A
p

p
re

c
ia

te
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
c
u
ts

 b
u
t 

n
o

t 
to

 m
o

s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
in

 s
o

c
ie

ty
. 

 C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

a
 h

o
m

e
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 

“e
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
” 

a
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
m

u
c
h
 c

ri
ti
c
is

m
 o

f 
N

H
S

 a
n
d

 
p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
re

 h
o

m
e
s
. 

 

 
1

7
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

W
it
h
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
w

ro
n

g
 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

u
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 k
in

d
. 

 I
n
v
a
lu

a
b

le
 

s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 f
ri
e
n
d

s
h
ip

 a
n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 
1

7
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
t 

J
a
m

e
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 

in
v
o

lv
e
d

 w
it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
h
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
N

1
0

) 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 b

u
t 

h
o

p
e
s
 m

u
c
h
 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
c
h
 a

n
 “

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t”

 
h
o

m
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

c
lo

s
u
re

. 

 
1

7
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 (
N

2
2
) 

C
o

u
p

le
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
is

 “
je

w
e
l 
in

 t
h
e
 c

ro
w

n
”.

 

 
1

8
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
L
o

c
a
l 
fa

m
ily

 (
N

6
) 

D
is

m
a
y
e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

c
u
ts

. 
 H

e
a
r 

s
e
c
o

n
d

-h
a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
ll 

c
a
re

d
 

fo
r 

a
n

d
 h

a
p

p
y
 t

h
e
re

. 
 W

o
rr

ie
d

 a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 

c
u
ts

 o
n
 a

n
 a

g
e
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

 A
n
 “

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t”

 c
a
re

 
h
o

m
e
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

p
a
re

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

u
ts

. 

 
1

9
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

6
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 
c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
is

 “
w

e
ll-

ru
n
” 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

V
e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 h

o
p

e
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
ill

 

Page 146



3
9

re
c
o

n
s
id

e
r.

 

 
1

9
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

6
) 

S
a
d

d
e
n
e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
is

 “
lo

v
e
ly

” 
h

o
m

e
. 

 
1

9
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
F

re
q

u
e
n
t 

v
is

it
o

r 
(N

6
) 
 

A
ll 

v
e
ry

 s
a
d

; 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
c
o

m
e
 o

u
r 

fr
ie

n
d

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 
m

u
s
t 

b
e
 o

th
e
r 

p
la

c
e
s
 c

u
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d

e
. 
 P

le
a
s
e
 

d
o

n
’t

 d
o

 t
h
is

. 

 
1

9
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 (
N

2
2
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 f
o

r 
e
ld

e
rl
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

 
2

0
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 (
N

1
0

) 
C

o
n

c
e
rn

e
d

 b
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l.
  

 N
o

t 
o

n
ly

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
, 

h
e
ld

 i
n
 h

ig
h
 e

s
te

e
m

 b
u
t 

a
 g

ro
w

in
g

 n
e
e
d

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p

la
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
 W

o
rr

ie
d

 t
o

o
 a

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
u
ts

 t
o

 d
ro

p
-i

n
s
, 

lu
n
c
h
 c

lu
b

s
 a

n
d

 d
a
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 U
rg

e
s
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

“t
o

 p
re

s
e
rv

e
 o

r 
fi
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
s
e
 v

a
lu

a
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
”.

 

 
2

0
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d

 –
 o

n
e
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 s

im
ila

rl
y
-w

o
rd

e
d

 l
e
tt

e
rs

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d

  

 
2

3
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

C
h
u
rc

h
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

fo
r 

b
o

th
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

 
1

8
 J

a
n

 
2
 x

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

(N
1
0
)*

 
R

e
a
lis

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 c

u
ts

 i
n
e
v
it
a
b

le
 b

u
t 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

c
u
ts

 t
o

 C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
. 

  
W

e
ll-

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 
b

y
 m

a
n
y
 f

ri
e
n
d

s
 a

n
d

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
. 

 A
s
k
s
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 
to

 b
e
a
r 

in
 m

in
d

 h
o

w
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

th
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
. 

 

 
2

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 m
e
m

b
e
r(

s
)*

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 m

e
e
t/

fi
n
d

 o
u
t 

m
o

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 

a
n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

is
 r

u
n
. 

 
2

9
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

6
) 

G
re

a
t 

a
s
s
e
t.

 T
e
rr

ib
le

 w
o

rr
y
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
 

w
h
o

 f
in

d
 i
t 

a
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d

 c
a
ri
n
g

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

 
3

1
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

E
x
to

lli
n
g

 t
h

e
 v

ir
tu

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
. 

 
4

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

S
t 

J
a
m

e
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 M

u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
t 

fa
c
e
s
. 

O
ff

e
r 

o
f 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

in
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 

Page 147



4
0

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
. 

  

 
 

 
 

 
7

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

6
) 

E
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 w
e
ll-

ru
n
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

o
f 

fa
c
ili

ty
, 

a
s
k
s
 

c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
a
re

fu
lly

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

  

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

  
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
u
rc

h
 g

ro
u
p

 
E

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

 

 
1

5
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 m
e
m

b
e
r(

s
)*

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 m

e
e
t 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

fu
n
d

 r
a
is

in
g

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
. 

 
2

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
&

 1
9

 M
a

y
 

1
1

 

S
o

lic
it
o

r 
(A

c
ti
n
g

 o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e
) 

A
la

rm
e
d

 a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

a
l 
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

d
e
p

ri
v
in

g
 u

s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
a
lk

in
g

 a
b

o
u
t 

a
 j
u
d

ic
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 

 
3

0
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
, 

c
a
re

rs
, 

fr
ie

n
d

* 
R

o
le

 o
f 

a
d

v
o

c
a
te

s
 a

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

 C
o

n
c
e
rn

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 f

ra
il 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 r
e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
a
n
d

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 

th
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 G

ro
u
p

. 

 
2

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

* 
M

e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

 a
 g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

s
. 

 R
e
it
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d

 
m

e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p

 t
o

 t
a
k
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
. 

 

 
1

8
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

* 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u
p

’s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
–
 s

e
e
 

m
a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

W
h

it
e

h
a

ll
 S

t 
2

5
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
C

a
re

r 
(N

8
) 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
o

u
g

h
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

N
o

t 
h
a
p

p
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
  

R
e
s
p

it
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 s

a
v
e
s
 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

m
o

n
e
y
 ‘

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 b

u
lk

 o
f 

c
a
re

’.
  

Page 148



4
1

G
iv

e
s
 u

s
e
r 

a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 
c
a
re

r 
a
n
d

 h
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

w
h
e
n
 c

a
re

r 
n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
b

le
 t

o
 

c
a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

r 
th

e
 o

n
ly

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 v

is
it
 

fa
m

ily
 o

u
ts

id
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
. 

 
9

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
N

1
7
) 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

u
n
a
b

le
 t

o
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
s
e
lf
, 

liv
e
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

lif
e
 a

n
d

 t
o

ta
lly

 d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
re

 o
f 

o
th

e
rs

. 
 “

P
ro

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

m
o

v
e
 w

ill
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 e

n
o

rm
o

u
s
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
n

 b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
”.

  
L
e
a
v
e
 W

h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
t 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
a
re

 
h
o

m
e
s
 ‘

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 e

q
u
a
ti
o

n
’.
  

 
1

6
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
ft

e
r 

s
p

e
n
d

in
g

 m
o

n
e
y
 o

n
 

it
s
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

 
2

8
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

a
re

r 
(N

1
0
) 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
c
a
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
d

, 
(a

s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

 t
o

 
c
ri
s
is

 a
t 

h
o

m
e
 w

it
h
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
/c

a
re

rs
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
. 

 
R

e
s
p

it
e
 n

o
t 

e
a
s
y
 t

o
 f

in
d

 o
n
c
e
 i
t 

c
lo

s
e
s
 d

o
w

n
; 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
a
it
in

g
. 
 T

a
k
e
 m

o
n
th

s
/y

e
a
rs

 t
o

 
re

s
o

lv
e
. 

 P
le

a
s
e
 s

a
v
e
 W

h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
t.

 

 
2

3
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 

E
v
e
r-

la
s
ti
n

g
 a

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
a
n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

h
a
s
 p

la
y
e
d

 s
u
c
h
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
’s

 l
iv

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
 g

o
o

d
 m

a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
W

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 g
re

a
t 

lo
s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
lo

re
 

c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 t
h
in

k
 a

g
a
in

. 
 

 
5

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

8
) 

S
a
y
in

g
 w

h
a
t 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

h
e
lp

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
o

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

B
ro

a
d

w
a

te
r 

L
o

d
g

e
 

1
0

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
  

S
o

 c
a
lle

d
 “

c
u
tb

a
c
k
s
” 

h
it
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 d

e
fe

n
c
e
le

s
s
 –

 “
e
a
s
y
 

p
ic

k
in

g
s
”.

  
 U

s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 ‘

p
a
id

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
’ 

o
v
e
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 b

a
d

ly
 l
e
t 

d
o

w
n
. 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

w
h
a
t 

w
ill

 h
a
p

p
e
n
 t

o
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
  

Page 149



4
2

 th
e
 h

o
m

e
. 

 W
a
n
ti
n
g

 m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
s
. 

 

D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

 
 

 

 
2

4
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 *

 
T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 i
f 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

h
a
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 i
n
n
o

v
a
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
k
e
e
p

in
g

 
th

e
m

 o
p

e
n
, 

T
h

e
 H

a
v
e

n
 

 
 

 

 
3

0
 D

e
c

 1
0

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

6
) 
* 

D
is

tu
rb

e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 u
rg

in
g

 c
o

u
n
c
il 

fi
n
d

 a
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
. 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
7
) 

V
e
ry

 u
p

s
e
t 

a
t 

n
e
w

s
 o

f 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

lo
s
u
re

 a
n
d

 w
o

rr
ie

d
 

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

  
O

u
tl
in

e
s
 h

o
w

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
. 

 S
u
g

g
e
s
ts

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
/l

u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 [
s
a

m
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
c

o
u

n
c

il
lo

rs
] 

 
2

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

D
o

 n
o

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l.
 A

 ‘
v
e
ry

 g
o

o
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
’ 

(a
s
 

th
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

 w
h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 

a
n
d

 i
n
te

ra
c
t 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
 

 
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
7
) 

D
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
. 

L
o

ts
 o

f 
th

in
g

s
 t

o
 d

o
 

a
n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 “

d
e
p

re
s
s
e
d

”,
 i
s
o

la
te

d
, 

b
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 

“d
e
v
a
s
ta

te
d

” 
if
 i
t 

w
e
re

 t
o

 c
lo

s
e
. 

 [
s
a

m
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 t
o

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
c

o
u

n
c

il
lo

rs
] 

 
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
5
) 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
s
to

ry
 o

f 
h
o

w
 t

ri
p

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 l
a
y
s
 o

n
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d

e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

“K
n
o

w
 a

ll 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
b

e
 s

a
v
e
d

 b
u
t 

th
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

m
e
a
n
s
 s

o
 m

u
c
h
 t

o
 m

e
” 

  

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
0
) 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
s
to

ry
 o

f 
h
o

w
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 l
a
y
s
 

m
e
a
n
s
 e

v
e
ry

th
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

: 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

g
e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t.

  
  

S
u
g

g
e
s
t 

p
u
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 u

p
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
. 

  

 
2

2
 F

e
b

 1
0

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
0
) 

U
p

s
e
t 

a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
  

B
e
lie

v
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 s
u
ff

e
r 

if
 

Page 150



4
3

c
e
n
tr

e
 c

lo
s
e
d

. 
 P

le
a
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

 i
t 

o
p

e
n
 

 
3

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

C
a
re

r 
 

G
ra

v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

t 
c
lo

s
u
re

. 
O

u
tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
w

h
a
t 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
ik

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

lo
s
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 i
f 

c
e
n
tr

e
 

w
e
re

 t
o

 c
lo

s
e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

(d
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
, 

lo
n
e
lin

e
s
s
, 

h
a
p

p
in

e
s
s
, 

m
e
n
ta

l 
s
ti
m

u
la

ti
o

n
 e

tc
).
  

C
u
ts

 i
ll-

a
d

v
is

e
d

 a
n
d

 s
h
o

rt
-s

ig
h
te

d
 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

 w
it
h
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fo
r 

N
H

S
 e

tc
. 

 D
e
b

t 
o

w
e
d

 
to

 w
a
rt

im
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

“A
ll 

b
e
 o

ld
 o

n
e
 d

a
y
”.

 

 
3

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
N

2
2
) 

H
o

w
 h

a
v
e
n
 h

a
s
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
e
d

 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n

e
s
 l
if
e
, 

w
o

rr
ie

d
 

o
n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 b

o
th

 o
f 

th
e
m

 i
f 

n
o

 r
e
s
p

it
e
. 

 
2

5
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 (
e
m

a
il)

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
it
h
o

u
t 

th
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
, 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b

 t
h
e
ir
 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
 a

tt
e
n

d
s
, 

s
/h

e
 

w
ill

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 h

o
u
s
e
b

o
u
n
d

, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
ir
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 w

ill
 s

u
ff

e
r,

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 
e
x
tr

a
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 N
H

S
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

“w
h
o

 w
o

u
ld

 f
in

d
 

it
s
e
lf
 p

ic
k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 p

ie
c
e
s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

w
a
y
s
”.

  
W

o
rr

ie
s
 

to
o

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 c

h
o

ic
e
 o

f 
c
u
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 u

s
e
 a

s
 

“p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
fo

o
tb

a
lls

”.
 

 
1

5
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 *

 
V

it
a
l 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

a
n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 D
e
b

t 
o

w
e
d

 
to

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 b
y
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
  

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

 a
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

s
o

c
ia

lis
e
 a

n
d

 i
n
te

ra
c
t 

w
it
h
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
ik

e
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
  

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
lif

e
 s

to
ry

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 l
if
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g

e
d

 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

b
y
 a

tt
e
n
d

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
: 

“t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

ir
a
c
u
lo

u
s
” 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 

a
w

a
y
 (
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

: 
d

e
p

ri
v
e
d

, 
n
e
g

le
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 

Page 151



4
4

fo
rg

o
tt

e
n
 w

it
h
 n

o
th

in
g

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

. 
 D

is
p

u
te

 
c
la

im
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p

lic
a
te

d
 b

y
 a

 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
t.

  
 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

“D
if
fe

re
n
t 

k
in

d
 o

f 
c
a
re

 t
h
a
t 

fa
m

ily
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
g

iv
e
” 

“S
ta

ff
 g

o
 t

h
e
 e

x
tr

a
 m

ile
”.

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
s
to

ry
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
ri
p

s
 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 l
a
y
s
 o

n
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d

e
 a

 
d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
’s

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 
w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
. 

 H
o

w
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 s

tr
u

g
g

le
d

 t
o

 
c
o

p
e
 w

it
h
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

Y
o

u
n
g

 A
d

u
lt
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

V
it
a
l 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
e
t 

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

g
o

 
s
h
o

p
p

in
g

, 
k
e
e
p

 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e
, 

in
te

ra
c
t 

a
n
d

 
a
v
o

id
 l
o

n
e
lin

e
s
s
. 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
7
) 

O
n
ly

 p
la

c
e
 c

a
n
 g

o
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
n
 a

 w
h
e
e
lc

h
a
ir
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
 

o
th

e
r 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 t
o

o
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
. 
 O

n
ly

 t
im

e
 c

lo
s
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 

w
h
o

 i
s
 a

 c
a
re

r 
g

e
ts

 a
 b

re
a
k
. 
[ s

a
m

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 t
o

 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
c

o
u

n
c

il
lo

rs
] 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
  

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
7
) 

H
e
lp

s
 t

o
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
e
lin

e
s
s
. 

 
W

it
h
o

u
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 (
a
n
d

 i
ts

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

) 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 l
iv

e
s
 

w
ill

 d
e
te

ri
o

ra
te

 a
n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

tu
c
k
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d

, 
(a

s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
 t

o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 

T
ri
p

s
, 

o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 e

n
a
b

le
 

u
s
e
rs

 t
o

 l
e
a
d

 a
 n

o
rm

a
l 
lif

e
. 

P
le

a
 t

o
 f

in
d

 a
 w

a
y
 t

o
 

k
e
e
p

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

p
e
n
. 

  

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

S
tr

o
n
g

ly
 p

ro
te

s
ti
n
g

 a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 h
o

w
 

n
e
w

s
 h

a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
ir

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 

  
O

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

(m
is

e
ry

, 
d

e
s
p

a
ir
 e

tc
) 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

f 
c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
is

 ‘
lif

e
-l

in
e
’ 

fo
r 

a
ll 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

. 
 A

n
g

ry
 t

h
a
t 

m
o

s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
(a

s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 p

a
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 m

is
ta

k
e
s
 o

f 
o

th
e
rs

. 
  

S
p

a
re

 t
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
; 

Page 152



4
5

re
m

in
d

e
r 

w
e
 a

ll 
g

ro
w

 o
ld

. 
 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
7
) 

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 “

m
e
a
n

s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rl
d

” 
to

 t
h
e
m

 a
n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

. 

 
1

2
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t’

s
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

A
s
k
in

g
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 g

iv
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 t
h
e
s
e
 

“v
e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 n

e
e
d

e
d

” 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 (
p

a
s
s
e
d

 v
ia

 C
llr

 
W

in
s
k
ill

) 

 
1

3
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

H
a
y
n
e
s
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ro

u
p

 
F

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

 s
e
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

 
1

9
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
  

D
is

m
a
y
e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a
n
d

 o
u
tl
in

in
g

 h
o

w
 w

h
a
t 

it
 

m
e
a
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 s
u
g

g
e
s
ti
n
g

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 

to
 c

lo
s
u
re

 

T
h

e
 

H
a

y
n

e
s
/G

ra
n

g
e

 
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 G

ro
u
p

 a
n

d
 

C
a
re

rs
 U

n
it
e
* 

P
le

a
s
e
d

 a
t 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
‘e

x
tr

a
 c

a
re

’ 
p

la
c
e
s
. 

P
ro

fo
u
n
d

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

 a
n
d

 s
tr

o
n
g

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
. 

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 h

a
s
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
e
d

 t
h
e
ir
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
s
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
u
n
lik

e
ly

,(
a
s
 

th
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
to

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 t

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

rt
-

s
ig

h
te

d
 w

it
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
. 
 C

lo
s
u
re

/r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 
u
n
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
. 

 “
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 s
e
n
s
o

ry
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 n

e
e
d

 s
ti
m

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
v
a
ri
e
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 s

ta
b

le
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 
th

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
.”

  
T

h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

c
a
n
n
o

t 
e
a
s
ily

 b
e
 r

e
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

s
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 l
e
a
d

, 
(i
t 

is
 a

rg
u
e
d

),
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
 ,

 
g

a
p

s
 i
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 
7

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

C
a
re

r*
  

H
o

w
 s

ti
m

u
la

ti
o

n
  

th
ro

u
g

h
 v

a
ri
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 h

e
lp

in
g

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 
D

is
m

a
y
 a

t 
th

o
u
g

h
t 

o
f 

g
o

in
g

  
b

a
c
k
 t

o
 h

o
w

 t
h
in

g
s
 

w
e
re

. 
 N

o
t 

ri
g

h
t 

to
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 w

h
e
n
 

Page 153



4
6

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

a
s
ily

 r
e
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
s
e
c
to

r.
 

 
4

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

T
h
e
 L

e
w

is
 &

 M
a
ry

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 

T
ru

s
t 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

u
t 

w
e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 f

in
a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n
. 

  
Q

u
e
ri
e
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 m
e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 a
n
d

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
d

e
m

a
n
d

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ri
ty

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

v
e
n
a
n
ts

. 

 
3

0
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
, 

C
a
re

r*
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
, 

c
a
re

r 
o

u
tl
in

in
g

 w
h
a
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 
o

f 
d

a
y
 c

a
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
, 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

a
w

 i
t)

, 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e
m

e
n

ti
a
: 

is
o

la
ti
o

n
, 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 

o
n
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 l
im

it
e
d

 p
la

c
e
s
, 

c
o

n
fu

s
io

n
 [

id
e

n
ti

c
a

l 
to

 
o

th
e

r 
c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c

e
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

] 

 
4

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

T
h
e
 L

e
w

is
 &

 M
a
ry

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 

T
ru

s
t 

 
O

b
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 G

ra
n
g

e
 

a
n
d

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
. 

 
T

ru
s
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p

t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

/p
re

m
is

e
s
 b

e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
“a

s
 

c
o

m
p

a
ti
b

le
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
o

r 
q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
a
re

”:
 

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

t 
th

e
 H

a
y
n

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 u
s
a
g

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

. 
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

m
e
rg

e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
, 

“r
e
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 
e
x
a
c
tl
y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b

le
m

 [
fo

r 
u
s
e
rs

] 
th

a
t 

th
e
 H

a
y
n
e
s
 w

a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
”.

  
R

e
-p

ro
v
is

io
n
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 
H

o
m

e
 c

a
re

/p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t,
 (
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 

it
),
 m

e
e
t 

u
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 d

a
y
 

c
a
re

 n
e
e
d

s
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 r
u
n
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
to

 n
a
ti
o

n
a
l 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

Page 154



4
7

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 

 
 

In
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
  

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
is

 a
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 o
n
e
 a

n
d

 a
 ‘

s
o

ft
 o

p
ti
o

n
’ 

th
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
it
u
a
ti
o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
s
. 

 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
H

a
y
n
e
s
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ro

u
p

 *
 

F
o

rm
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 –

 s
e
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 m

a
in

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

 
2

2
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

, 
L
e
w

is
 &

 M
a
ry

 
H

a
y
n
e
s
 T

ru
s
t 

* 
N

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 J

u
l 

2
0
1
1
 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 D

C
 

3
1

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

H
o

w
 a

tt
e
n
d

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 
tr

a
n
s
fo

rm
e
d

 t
h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
’s

 l
if
e
. 

 A
p

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
h
e
re

 d
o

. 

 
1

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

2
 x

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
0
) 

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
if
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 t

o
 l
e
a
d

 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 s
tr

u
g

g
le

 t
o

 c
o

p
e
 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
. 

 
2

0
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 (
N

1
7
) 

H
o

w
 a

tt
e
n
d

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 b
e
in

g
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
’s

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
’s

 s
/h

e
 a

tt
e
n
d

s
. 

  
H

o
w

 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
v
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
p

lic
a
te

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

o
ff

e
re

d
. 

 
2

2
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

a
re

r 
(N

1
5
) 

H
o

w
, 

a
s
 s

o
le

 c
a
re

r,
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
lo

v
e
d

 o
n
e
 

w
it
h

 d
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 g

e
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
ly

 w
o

rs
e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

 ‘
n
e
w

 l
e
a
s
e
 o

f 
lif

e
’ 

a
n
d

 m
a
d

e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 h

is
/h

e
r 

d
e
m

e
a
n
o

u
r 

a
n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

e
d

 t
h
e
 c

a
re

r 
“b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l”
 r

e
s
p

it
e
. 
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 
th

a
t 

s
/h

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 i
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

lo
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t,

 (
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

: 
d

e
p

re
s
s
io

n
, 

is
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
d

e
te

ri
o

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 

 C
e
n
tr

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 “

in
v
a
lu

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 
v
it
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
”.

 

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 R

o
a

d
 

C
ri

s
is

 U
n

it
 

(A
R

C
U

) 
                          

 
 

 

Page 155



4
8

   
2

3
 D

e
c

 1
0

 
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

Q
u
e
ry

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 

  
2

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
  

D
is

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

A
R

C
U

 a
n
d

 
‘r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t’

 b
y
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

. 
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

N
H

S
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

re
n
e
w

e
d

 l
o

n
g

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 A

R
C

U
 f

o
rm

e
d

 p
a
rt

. 
  

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 p

o
in

tl
e
s
s
. 

 

 
3

0
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

E
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
n
d

 a
n
x
io

u
s
 a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

. 
 N

o
 v

ia
b

le
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
, 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
. 

 M
a
n
y
 d

e
lig

h
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 t

h
e
re

 
b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
it
s
 e

th
o

s
 a

n
d

 f
ir
s
t 

c
la

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 
“D

is
a
s
tr

o
u
s
 a

n
d

 f
u
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

lly
 w

ro
n
g

 t
h
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
”.

 
T

h
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 a

t 
A

R
C

U
 a

n
d

 t
a
lk

 t
o

 s
o

m
e
o

n
e
 

h
e
lp

in
g

 u
s
e
r 

to
 k

e
e
p

 i
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r.

  
N

e
e
d

 m
o

re
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 n

o
t 

le
s
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l,
 (
it
 i
s
 

a
rg

u
e
d

),
 g

o
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 e

th
o

s
 o

f 
e
q

u
a
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
la

im
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 

 
7

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
fo

rm
e
r)

 
M

a
k
e
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

A
R

C
U

 “
tr

e
a
ts

 y
o

u
 l
ik

e
 a

 h
u
m

a
n
 b

e
in

g
”.

  
A

 p
e
rs

o
n
-

c
e
n
tr

e
d

, 
n
o

n
-o

v
e
rl
y
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

 c
ri
s
is

 
s
it
u
a
ti
o

n
. 

  
A

s
k
s
 u

s
 t

o
 t

h
in

k
 a

b
o

u
t 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e
n

c
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
in

 a
 c

ri
s
is

 i
f 

A
R

C
U

 c
lo

s
e
s
. 

 

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
A

R
C

U
 a

n
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
. 
 H

ig
h
 u

s
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

M
o

re
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 t

h
a
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l.
 R

e
c
o

v
e
ry

 U
n

it
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t,
 (
it
 i
s
 a

rg
u
e
d

),
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 o

n
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 c
ri
s
is

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
p

it
e
 u

n
it
 w

it
h
 2

4
h
r 

Page 156



4
9

te
le

p
h
o

n
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g

 o
u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 G
P

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

. 
 P

re
fe

ra
b

le
 

to
 l
o

c
k
e
d

 w
a
rd

s
. 

 R
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
u
n
it
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 h
o

u
s
e
(s

))
 w

o
n
’t

, 
(i
t 

is
 

a
rg

u
e
d

),
 b

e
 c

h
e
a
p

e
r 

(f
ig

u
re

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

) 
a
n
d

 a
re

 
n
o

t 
in

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 f

a
v
o

u
re

d
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 “

P
e
o

p
le

 
d

o
n
’t

 w
a
n
t 

a
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
m

o
d

e
l 
b

u
t 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n
-c

e
n
tr

e
d

 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 l
ik

e
 A

R
C

U
.”

 

 
1

2
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
H

e
a
lt
h
–
re

la
te

d
 q

u
e
ri
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

C
T

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

O
a
k
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 h
o

u
s
e
s
, 

re
s
p

it
e
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 t

e
le

p
h
o

n
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

 
9
9
-s

ig
n
a
tu

re
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
. 

 D
e
p

ri
v
e
d

 b
o

ro
u
g

h
; 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d

 (
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
).
  

D
is

a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 n
e
e
d

 a
s
 m

u
c
h
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 o

th
e
rs

. 
C

u
ts

 r
e
c
k
le

s
s
, 

u
n

fa
ir
 a

n
d

 
d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

. 
  

  
W

it
h

 e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
d

ic
to

ry
 f

o
r 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

to
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g

, 
(a

s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e
d

. 
N

o
t 

c
o

n
v
in

c
e
d

 
th

a
t 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

s
e
c
to

r 
c
a
n
 

fi
ll 

g
a
p

. 
 U

rg
e
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 n
o

t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 c

u
ts

 
a
n
d

 ‘
d

e
fe

n
d

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 v
it
a
l 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
’ 

 
a
n
d

 p
le

a
d

s
 w

it
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 r

e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

it
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 
2

0
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
S

a
v
e
 A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 R

o
a
d

 C
ri
s
is

 
U

n
it
* 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

h
e
lp

 w
it
h
 s

e
tt

in
g

 u
p

 A
R

C
U

 a
s
 a

 
s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 l
e
v
e
ls

. 

 
2

0
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

( 
N

1
7
)*

 
A

R
C

U
 a

 v
a
lu

a
b

le
 r

o
le

 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 s

h
o

rt
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

w
a
y
 

fr
o

m
 h

o
m

e
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
t 

in
 

is
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
a
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 (
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
) 
a
n

d
 f

a
c
ts

 

Page 157



5
0

n
o

t 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

a
t 

th
e
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
p

ro
p

e
rl
y
. 

 F
u
n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

l 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

s
u
p

p
ly

/q
u
a
lit

y
/a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 o
v
e
rl
a
p

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 a
n
y
 

n
e
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

 G
re

a
te

r 
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

R
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 H
o

u
s
e
(s

) 
a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 

fi
rm

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 A

R
C

U
. 

 W
o

rr
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
e
lf
-r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 ,
 

th
o

s
e
 ‘

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

s
h
o

ld
’ 
o

f 
re

c
o

v
e
ry

 H
o

u
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 
a
b

o
u
t 

re
s
p

it
e
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

rs
. 

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
p

e
n
d

in
g

 
e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

. 

 
2

9
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

 
F

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 –

 s
e
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 m

a
in

 
re

p
o

rt
 

 
2

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

W
o

rr
ie

d
 a

t 
th

is
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

a
th

w
a
y
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
in

g
 

h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

6
8

4
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
1

1
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
M

in
d

 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 (
a
t 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

a
n
d

 w
it
h
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
) 

O
f 

th
o

s
e
 u

s
e
rs

 s
p

o
k
e
n
 t

o
, 

n
e
a
rl
y
 a

ll 
(t

w
o

 w
is

h
e
d

 i
t 

to
 c

lo
s
e
 a

n
d

 o
n
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
a
y
),
 w

is
h
e
d

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

k
e
p

t 
o

p
e
n

. 
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

la
n
a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
f 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 e

n
a
b

le
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 

b
o

re
d

o
m

, 
a
v
o

id
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l,
 l
e
a
d

 n
o

rm
a
l 
liv

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
e
lp

 
w

it
h

 d
a
ily

 t
a
s
k
s
: 

tr
ip

s
 o

u
t,

 c
o

m
p

u
ti
n

g
 c

la
s
s
e
s
, 

 u
s
e
 

in
te

rn
e
t,

 w
a
s
h
in

g
, 

e
a
ti
n
g

 e
tc

, 
g

o
 o

n
to

 g
e
t 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 g

a
in

e
d

 t
h
e
re

).
  

Q
u
e
ri
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

it
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
-s

it
e
d

 a
t 

S
t 

A
n
n
’s

 a
n
d

 w
h
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a
p

p
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 f

ro
m

 u
s
e
rs

 a
b

o
u
t 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 g
o

. 
 

H
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 s
a
v
e
 u

s
e
rs

 m
o

n
e
y
: 

o
n
 

lu
n

c
h

e
s
, 

o
n

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
  

  
  

  
1

5
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

 (
a
n
o

n
) 

A
R

C
U

 s
h
o

u
ld

 c
lo

s
e
 a

s
 b

ri
n
g

s
 o

n
ly

 s
h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
 

Page 158



5
1

          

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 u
s
e
 i
t 

‘a
s
 a

 h
o

te
l’
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 S

t 
A

n
n
’s

 H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 u
n
w

e
ll.

  
S

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
c
lo

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

la
re

n
d

o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
s
te

a
d

 –
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
e
w

, 
is

 e
x
p

e
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 r

u
n
 a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

e
m

p
o

w
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 R

e
ta

in
 6

8
4
, 

o
n
 w

h
a
te

v
e
r 

b
a
s
is

. 
6
8
4
 h

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 c

o
p

e
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

fi
n
a
n

c
ia

lly
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  

 
2

0
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

O
th

e
r 

M
H

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(N
1
7
)*

 
A

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

h
e
re

. 
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 t
h
re

s
h
o

ld
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 a
n
d

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

fu
tu

re
 n

e
e
d

s
. 

 W
o

rr
ie

s
 

th
a
t 

re
m

a
in

in
g

/a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

o
n
’t

 b
e
 

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 a
n
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 f
a
ll 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 ‘

g
a
p

’.
 A

n
y
 

c
lo

s
u
re

 n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 b
y
 a

 p
ro

p
e
r,

 n
o

n
-

s
ti
g

m
a
ti
z
e
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
e
d

s
. 

D
ro

p
-i

n
s
 

 
 

 

U
n

a
m

e
d

 D
ro

p
-i

n
 

U
n

d
a

te
d

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

W
it
h
o

u
t 

d
ro

p
-i

n
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
g

e
t 

o
u
t,

 s
o

c
ia

lis
e
 o

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
s
p

it
e
 f

o
r 

c
lo

s
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
/c

a
re

r.
  

 
1

5
 J

a
n

1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
n
d

 d
is

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
rg

in
g

 c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
to

 r
e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
 

 

A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u

rt
 

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
* 

 
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
in

g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 h

a
d

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 

m
a
d

e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

u
ts

 w
e
re

 t
o

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

E
n
q

u
ir
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 m

ig
h
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

C
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

it
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
d

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
u
s
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

-o
n
e
’s

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

Page 159



5
2

w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
. 

 
7

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
N

2
1
) 

E
x
p

la
in

in
g

 w
h
a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 l
o

v
e
d

-o
n
e
 

a
n
d

 h
o

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 k
e
e
p

 d
ro

p
-i

n
 o

p
e
n
 

A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u

rt
 

2
7

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

5
0
 S

o
m

e
th

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

R
e
la

x
e
d

 c
o

m
fo

rt
a
b

le
 a

tm
o

s
p

h
e
re

, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 v

e
n
u
e
 

a
n
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
p

a
c
e
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 5
0
 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 m
a
d

e
 t

o
 f

e
e
l 
a
t 

h
o

m
e
. 

 
A

d
d

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
u
lf
ilm

e
n
t.

  
 

V
e
n
u
e
s
 l
ik

e
 t

h
is

 h
a
rd

 t
o

 c
o

m
e
 b

y
. 

 

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

D
ra

m
a
ti
c
 b

lo
w

. 
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
e
t 

lo
ts

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h
e
re

. 
 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 H

o
u

s
e

 
6

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

 
1

3
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
D

a
n
c
e
 C

lu
b

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
D

e
v
a
s
ta

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

s
. 

 C
lu

b
 s

e
lf
-s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 
b

e
e
n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
t 

n
o

 c
o

s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

c
o

u
n
c
il.

  
 R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

s
o

m
e
o

n
e
 t

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 t
h
e
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 

P
o

in
ti
n
g

 o
u
t 

s
tr

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
is

 
c
a
u
s
in

g
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

re
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

 

 
1

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 D

a
n
c
e
 C

lu
b

 w
o

rr
ie

d
 a

t 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
v
e
n
u
e
 

 
1

5
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 

2
8
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
th

e
r 

s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
) 

S
e
rv

e
d

 a
s
 a

 h
u
b

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 n
o

w
. 
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

s
o

c
ia

lis
e
, 

m
e
e
t 

fr
ie

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 f
e
e
l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 

 R
e
a
lis

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 c

u
ts

 b
u
t 

fo
r 

s
a
k
e
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e
 h

o
p

in
g

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 q

u
a
s
h
e
d

. 
 

 
1

4
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

C
o

n
c
e
rn

 a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

fo
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
n
c
e
 g

ro
u
p

 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 i
f 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 c

lo
s
e
d

. 
 

 
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
v
a
s
ta

te
d

 b
y
 n

e
w

s
. 

  
H

o
w

 a
n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 j
o

in
e
d

 f
o

rc
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 n
o

t 
fo

r 
p

ro
fi
t 

Page 160



5
3

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
, 

a
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d

 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
. 

 S
u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 

w
a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

W
il
lo

u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a

d
 

 
 

 

 
6

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
  

S
e
e
k
in

g
 c

la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

a
id

 a
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
, 

fu
tu

re
 d

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e
s
p

o
n
d

e
n
c
e
 

 
1

2
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
e
ti
ti
o

n
 

 
1

8
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

4
) 

W
a
n
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 d

ro
p

-i
n

 k
e
p

t 
o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

o
n

ly
 m

e
a
l 
s
o

m
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 g
e
t.

  

 
U

n
d

a
te

d
 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

2
2
) 

W
ri
ti
n
g

 t
o

 a
s
k
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
n
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 p
e
ti
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

ro
p

-i
n
 

o
u
tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 o
p

e
n
 

 
2

0
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e
r 

(N
4
) 

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 d

ro
p

-i
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 m

u
c
h
 v

a
lu

e
d

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

re
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
  

O
p

p
o

s
e
d

 t
o

 c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 w
h
y
 t

h
e
s
e
 ‘

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l’
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
c
lo

s
e
. 

 

 
1

3
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

U
s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 w
a
n
ti
n
g

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 

k
e
e
p

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

p
e
n
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

1
9

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

S
A

R
C

U
* 

N
o

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 b

e
 

a
d

d
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

lis
t 

 
2

3
 F

e
b

 a
n

d
 

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 

N
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 –

 
in

te
n
d

e
d

 a
u
d

ie
n
c
e
s
, 

a
s
s
e
rt

io
n
 p

u
b

lic
 k

n
o

w
 n

o
th

in
g

 
o

f 
th

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

s
, 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

a
n
d

 a
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 t
o

 a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l’
s
 n

e
e
d

s
. 

 

 
2

6
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

2
2
) 

 
S

e
e
k
in

g
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d

e
 a

n
d

 q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
: 

p
u
b

lic
it
y
, 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 e

tc
 

Page 161



5
4

 O
u
tl
in

in
g

 (
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

a
w

 i
t)

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
in

g
 6

8
4
, 

A
R

C
U

: 
lo

n
e
lin

e
s
s
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
p

la
c
e
 o

f 
re

fu
g

e
 e

tc
. 

 
A

n
x
ie

ty
 a

t 
a
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 S

t 
A

n
n
’s

 o
r 

fo
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

u
tu

re
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 (
s
e
lf
-h

a
rm

, 
s
u
ic

id
a
l 
te

n
d

e
n
c
ie

s
).
 D

is
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

u
ts

 
a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 
1

6
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
U

s
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 a
t 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
) 

D
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 h

e
a
r 

a
n
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 w
h
a
t 

is
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 -

  
“a

 w
a
s
te

 o
f 

ti
m

e
”;

 p
e
o

p
le

 “
o

n
ly

 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 f

o
r 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
.”

  

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
N

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

tt
e
r 

fr
o

m
 S

A
R

C
U

 t
o

 G
P

’s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 e

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 

 
1

6
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

 
A

R
C

U
  

 
1

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

n
o

te
s
 f

ro
m

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

t 
A

R
C

U
  

 
 5

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

1
1

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

2
5

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

5
 &

1
2

 J
a

n
 

2
7

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

 3
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
7

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

2
2

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
  2

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
E

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
: 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
* 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p

 
S

A
R

C
U

* 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
* 

 
 C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 m
e
m

b
e
r*

 
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 

L
o

c
a
l 
G

P
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

s
 

F
o

ru
m

 
H

a
y
e
n
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ro

u
p

 *
 

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

b
u
d

g
e
ta

ry
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

Q
u
e
ry

in
g

 w
h
a
t 

w
ill

 h
a
p

p
e
n
 t

o
 J

a
c
k
s
o

n
’s

 L
a
n
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
N

H
S

 i
n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

-u
p

 
 Q

u
e
ry

in
g

 r
u
m

o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g

 h
a
d

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
ld

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 e

tc
 W

o
o

d
s
id

e
 D

C
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fe
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 (
o

c
c
u
p

a
n

c
y
 f

ig
u
re

s
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 e

tc
) 
–
 D

a
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 [

p
re

c
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 

Page 162



5
5

2
2

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

3
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

 4
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
6

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
6

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

6
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
7

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

1
3

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

   1
8

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

2
7

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

2
8

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

2
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

 5
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

 5
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

 8
/1

1
/1

2
 

M
a

y
 1

1
 

1
3

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

 1
6

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

 1
8

 M
a

y
 1

1
 

 R
e
la

ti
v
e
, 

c
a
re

r 
 U

s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

F
a
it
h
 l
e
a
d

e
r 

F
re

e
la

n
c
e
 p

h
o

to
g

ra
p

h
e
r 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
* 

 
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
, 

u
s
e
r,

 c
a
re

r 
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
, 

u
s
e
r,

 c
a
re

r 
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

2
2
) 

C
h
a
ri
ty

 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 (
N

1
0
) 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 
C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ro

u
p

 *
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o

ro
u
g

h
) 

 S
A

R
C

U
* 

 H
a
y
n
e
s
 R

e
la

ti
v
e
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ro

u
p

* 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 (
o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

) 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 f

u
ll
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i
n

 F
e

b
 1

1
) 

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 –

 t
h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 t

a
k
e
 p

h
o

to
s
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
c
lo

s
u
re

 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

s
p

e
n
d

s
 i
ts

 m
o

n
e
y
 o

n
 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
B

ro
a
d

w
a
te

r 
L
o

d
g

e
 w

a
rd

 c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a
ir
e
(s

) 
T

a
k
e
 o

ff
 m

a
ili

n
g

 l
is

t 
–
 n

o
t 

a
 u

s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
o

u
b

le
 c

h
e
c
k
 c

lo
s
in

g
 d

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a
ir
e
  

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 -

 A
R

C
U

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 v

ia
 e

m
a
il 

H
o

w
 t

o
 s

u
b

m
it
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 
A

s
k
in

g
 w

h
e
re

 t
o

 s
e
n
d

 t
h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 

 D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
h
o

w
 s

o
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
y
 ‘

c
lo

s
u
re

’ 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

Q
u
e
ry

in
g

 w
h
e
re

 t
o

 d
ro

p
 o

ff
 p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a
ir
e
s
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 H

a
y
n

e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

E
Q

IA
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 

C
o

p
y
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 u

p
d

a
te

s
/f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 

 A
s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 

Page 163



5
6

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
s
u
b

m
it
ti
n
g

 a
 d

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 

     

    1
1

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

 1
2

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

 2
5

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

 1
1

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

              1
8

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
: 

 L
y
n
n
e
 F

e
a
th

e
rs

to
n
e
 M

P
 

  

    R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

ru
n
d

o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
 

 C
o

rr
e
s
p

o
n
d

e
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

in
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

 F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

-u
p

 q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 v

is
it
 t

o
 

C
ra

n
w

o
o

d
. 

 C
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

W
h
it
e
h

a
ll 

S
t 

a
n
d

 E
d

w
a
rd

s
 D

ri
v
e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 n

o
 r

e
s
p

it
e
 o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
 H

u
g

e
ly

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

in
g

, 
c
a
n
n

o
t 

b
e
 

e
a
s
ily

 r
e
p

la
c
e
d

 o
r 

le
ft

 t
o

 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 a
n
d

 
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

fu
tu

re
 n

e
e
d

s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d

 f
le

x
ib

ly
 

e
n
o

u
g

h
 i
f 

a
t 

a
ll.

  
N

e
e
d

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
to

ta
l 
re

lia
n

c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r.
 [

a
ls

o
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 
a

s
 a

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
u

n
c

il
lo

rs
 t

o
 F

e
b

’s
 f

u
ll
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
] 

 C
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 

(N
1
0
)*

 n
o

t 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 b
y
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 

Page 164



5
7

  3
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
    2

5
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
      2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

 
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
(N

2
2
) 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 d

a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

n
 h

e
r 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
re

la
ti
v
e
, 

h
o

w
 i
t 

h
a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
ir
 

liv
e
s
. 

 C
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
(s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
in

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n
) 
w

o
rr

ie
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

: 
 (
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

 h
o

m
e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
, 

h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 F
o

rm
a
l 
s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 M

P
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 L

ib
e
ra

l 
d

e
m

o
c
ra

t’
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 

 
 2

0
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
        2

5
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
  

 D
a
v
id

 L
a
m

m
y
 M

P
 

  

 L
e
tt

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n
ts

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b

 
s
a
y
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 v

a
lu

e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

im
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
d

u
c
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

w
a
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 w

it
h
o

u
t:

 
s
a
fe

 e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

(o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
),
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

, 
fo

o
d

. 
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

lly
 

in
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
, 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

e
e
 i
t)

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
’d

 t
u
rn

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e
. 

  
 

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 
(F

o
rm

u
la

 g
ra

n
t,

 D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 e

tc
) 
th

a
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

u
t.

 

Page 165



5
8

 1
3

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

 C
a
re

r 
(N

1
7
) 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

u
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

c
u
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

  l
o

v
e
d

 o
n
e
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ti
n
g

 w
h
a
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
r 

h
e
r 

a
n

d
 p

o
in

ti
n

g
 t

o
 r

is
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 

 
7

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

C
llr

 B
u
ll 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fr
o

m
 c

a
re

r 
* 

fo
r 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 

a
d

v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

a
b

in
e
t/

fu
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
‘m

u
c
h
 v

a
lu

e
d

’ 
d

a
y
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
p

it
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t,

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 H

a
y
n
e
s
. 

[e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 

re
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 9

 M
a
y
 1

1
] 

 
2

4
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

C
llr

 B
u
ll 

A
s
k
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

w
it
h
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 a
n
d

 r
a
is

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
a
 

d
e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
. 

 
2

2
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 A

lli
s
o

n
 

W
h
a
t 

w
ill

 h
a
p

p
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 (
C

ra
n
w

o
o

d
) 

 
1

6
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 D

a
v
ie

s
 

 P
a
re

n
t 

o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
d

u
lt
 *

 q
u
e
ry

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
a
m

e
n
d

m
e
n
ts

 t
o

 F
a
ir
e
r 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d

 

 
8

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

C
llr

 E
g

a
n
 

Q
u
e
ry

 f
ro

m
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 r

e
-t

h
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

th
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
f 

th
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 w
e
n
t 

a
h
e
a
d

 

 
2

5
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
C

llr
 E

g
a
n
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

re
v
ie

w
/a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 
1

6
 J

a
n

 1
1

 
C

llr
 G

ib
s
o

n
 

C
o

rr
e
s
p

o
n
d

e
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
h
o

w
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 a

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 c
o

n
fu

s
e
d

 a
n
d

 s
tr

e
s
s
e
d

 b
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
n
te

d
 t

o
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
e
re

 t
o

 t
u
rn

 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

 
1

2
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

C
llr

 G
o

ld
b

e
rg

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 –

 A
b

y
s
s
in

ia
 C

o
u
rt

 

 
1

6
/1

7
 M

a
r 

 
C

llr
s
 K

o
b

e
r,

 K
h
a
n
 a

n
d

 M
a
lle

t 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 l
e
tt

e
r 

to
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 c

a
re

r 
(N

1
5
)*

 a
b

o
u
t 

Page 166



5
9

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i
ts

 
c
lo

s
u
re

 w
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 b

o
th

 u
s
e
r 

(f
a
ll,

 e
n
d

 u
p

 i
n
  

  h
o

s
p

it
a
l)
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
 (
w

h
o

 w
o

rk
s
 p

a
rt

-t
im

e
).
  

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

llr
 M

a
lle

tt
 

A
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

u
n
 

d
o

w
n

. 

 
2

8
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

llr
 M

a
lle

tt
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
a
n
d

 e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

im
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

d
a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n
 b

y
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 
2

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 M

c
N

a
m

a
ra

 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
t 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

h
o

m
e
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
re

a
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 w
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 

d
o

n
e
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

th
e
m

. 
 

 
1

 M
a

r 
1

1
 

C
llr

 N
e
w

to
n
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 a
u
d

ie
n
c
e
s
 a

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

a
n
d

 a
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 t
o

 a
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l’
s
 n

e
e
d

s
. 

 

 
5

 J
a

n
 1

1
 

C
llr

 S
c
h
m

it
z
 

B
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
c
o

s
ts

 –
 W

ill
o

u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 

 
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

C
llr

 S
c
h
m

it
z
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n
d

 d
e
ta

ils
 i
n
 H

a
rr

in
g

a
y
 w

a
rd

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 W

ill
o

u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 

 
1

7
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

llr
 S

c
h
m

it
z
  

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 o

n
 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 

 
1

5
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 S

c
h
m

it
z
  

In
te

re
s
t 

fr
o

m
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
(i
t 

is
 s

a
id

),
 i
n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 

W
ill

o
u
g

h
b

y
 R

o
a
d

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r.

 

 
3

 F
e

b
 1

1
 

C
llr

 V
a
n

ie
r 

U
s
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 *

 b
e
g

g
in

g
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 n
o

t 
to

 c
lo

s
e
 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 

 
2

6
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 W

a
ts

o
n

 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
rs

o
n

/u
s
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
N

1
5
) 
w

o
rr

ie
d

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
v
e
n
 

Page 167



6
0

                             
* 

M
u

lt
ip

le
 

a
n
d

 a
s
k
in

g
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r.

  

 
2

2
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 W

ils
o

n
 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 (
4
 A

p
r 

1
1
) 
–
 h

o
w

 m
a
n
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 
1

0
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

llr
 W

in
s
k
ill

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

s
o

m
e
 s

o
rt

 o
f 

fo
ru

m
 o

f 
d

ro
p

-i
n

 u
s
e
rs

 

 
1

8
 F

e
b

 1
1

 
C

llr
 W

in
s
k
ill

 
E

n
q

u
ir
y
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
u
ts

 f
o

r 
b

lin
d

 a
n
d

 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 s
ig

h
te

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 

 
2

1
 M

a
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 W

in
s
k
ill

 
C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 f

ro
m

 a
 l
o

c
a
l 
v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
‘l
a
te

 
n
o

ti
c
e
’ 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

a
w

 i
t)

 o
f 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

d
a
te

s
 a

n
d

 w
h
y
 w

a
rd

 c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 n
o

t 
a
w

a
re

 [
th

e
 

n
o

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 w

a
s
 a

 r
e

m
in

d
e

r 
n

o
ti

c
e

 a
t 

t h
e

 m
id

-p
o

in
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

a
te

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
in

 J
a

n
 1

1
] 

 
4

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

C
llr

 W
in

s
k
ill

  
R

e
la

ti
v
e
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 M

u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 o
u

tl
in

in
g

 w
h
a
t 

th
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

d
a
y
 c

a
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
, 

(a
s
 t

h
e
y
 s

a
w

 i
t)

, 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
: 

is
o

la
ti
o

n
, 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 l
im

it
e
d

 p
la

c
e
s
, 

c
o

n
fu

s
io

n
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
a
n
s
w

e
rs

 t
o

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
, 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 e
tc

 
a
t 

th
e
 H

a
y
n
e
s
/G

ra
n
g

e
. 

  
[i
d

e
n
ti
c
a
l 
to

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

rr
e
s
p

o
n
d

e
n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

] 
 

 
8

 A
p

r 
1

1
 

C
llr

 W
in

s
k
ill

 
F

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
 w

it
h
 D

ro
p

-i
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 u

s
e
rs

 
o

n
 2

1
 M

a
r 

1
1
 

 
2

8
 A

p
r 

1
1

 
C

llr
 W

in
s
k
ill

 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
o

th
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 a

d
u
lt
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 
2

2
 M

a
y
 1

1
 

C
llr

 W
in

s
k
ill

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s
  

Page 168



Proposed closure of Residential Day Care – Literal Responses 
 
Question 2 To what extent do you support our proposal to close the 
following residential care homes owned by the council? Please tell us the 
reasons(s) for your answer. 
  

The older people need all the help they can get.  Mentally disabled often 
get higher benefits and could therefore pay for their extended care needs    

It is costing the council more to operate the homes rather than finding 
alternative cheaper care in the private sector     

How the care homes are closed is more important than the fact of the 
closure.  The independent sector is capable of providing care of equal 
quality.  What matters is that the individual residents are treated as 
individuals and not just as victims of necessity.  

Whitehall Street provides an essential service to enable parents/carers to 
continue to provide care for people with a very high level of need.  An 
uncertain future adds hugely to the stress on these families. People with 
severe learning disabilities need familiar environments and staff who know 
them.       

Cost    
 

They are all quite small in numbers and expensive    
 

It's wrong to cause such upset and disruption to vulnerable people    
 

These are services to the most vulnerable in our society. They are not 
able to speak out for themselves and so their wishes are not being taken 
into account. They should be the last people to suffer from cuts. The 
proposals are short sighted - there will continue to be ongoing costs for 
their care, so the proposed enormous upheaval in the removal of them 
from their home will only result in a one off saving on the premises costs.  

I do not support your decision to close any of the homes but especially 
\broadwater Lodge as I have a relative there who has just settled in.                                      

 

This is a vital resource for vulnerable, difficult to place adults. It has been 
their home for many years and to split up the grove would be very 
distressing. Staff have become like a family to them.   

Broadwater provides an essential service - why close it?                                                        
 

Reasons being, my husband who suffers from Dementia and is presently 
in residential care finally settled down and is now use to his environment, 
so moving him would be devastating because he doesn't like change. I 
am afraid that he would just give us and die. Also because the homes are 

Page 169



local his family and friends are able to make frequent visits, but moving 
him out of the borough would be difficult almost impossible for such 
visits. However, it is shameful to take such drastic measures against 
vulnerable people. 

 

We need care homes run by the Council and owned by the Council. The 
care workers at The Red House are very good and I feel secure that my 
relative is being looked after in the best possible way. 

 

The standards seem higher than in many residential homes I have seen. 
There is a very strong profit motive in the private sector and more [?] and 
less qualified staff. Council run homes have always provided better career 
prospects for staff and residents and carers feel they can trust council run 
establishments. They do not always feel that way about the independent 
sector. 

 

Whitehall Street has been the home to 2 groups of very vulnerable adults 
with severe learning difficulties for many years. The staff who are quite 
constant have become their families and source of support. It would be 
very cruel to uproot them against their wishes and take them away from 
familiar staff, building and possibly separate them from their friends who 
they are living with. 

 

Reason being I do not want my husband to move away from his friends 
and family. I want him to stay in the Borough. 

 

"In your consultation update you state that you have to make 6.2 million 
of savings over the next 2-3 years, just over 2 million a year.  In the past 
you had the financial resources to invest 50 million in the Icelandic banks, 
what other money does the council have that it is not spending? Reading 
in the newspapers that the average chief executives pay is well over 100k, 
how many of these people are losing their jobs.  Councillors get salaries 
and expenses 2-k+ town clerks are now chief executives with salaries to 
match.  The list goes on, web sites, data processing, it etc. we all 
survived in the past without these resources, in fact councils seemed 
more efficient.  The young and old are some of the most vulnerable 
people in society they are the last people who should be involved in any 
cost cutting exercise.  If these residents get moved into private care and 
these homes close what happens them? A freedom pass for transport 
costs 2.5 million that is enough to keep the homes opened.  We managed 
years ago and very few people had cuts. Just read in the paper council 
paid out £427 million in mileage allowances 2009/2010. No wonder there 
is no money!" 

 

"They are essential" 
 

I think it is wrong for Haringey council to close these residential homes.  
They are not only homes but communities and to move residents will 
cause great distress.  Especially Whitehall Street whose residents have 

Page 170



learning and physical disabilities and have already lost many facilities and 
are now looking at being farmed out to who knows where.  I think it is a 
callous proposal and Haringey Council have a duty of care to their most 
vulnerable residents. 

     
========================================================= 
 
Question 4: If you do not understand the reasons, or are unsure, why 
Haringey Council is proposing to close its residential care homes, Please 
tell us why? 
 

The council believes it will save money but could end up spending more 
on paying profit making companies to provide a lower level of care.                                       

  

Yes, because of the money but it is unfair to everyone                                                            
 

If the service was unnecessary - then close it, but it is vital    
 

I understand the reason that the Council gave to close the residential 
homes, but what I don't understand is why in the name of God would the 
Council target the Social Services, especially for people with Dementia. 
To quote the old saying "Kick a man while he is down." Why don't you? 

      
=========================================================    
Question 6: If you do not understand the reasons, or are unsure, why 
Haringey Council is proposing to close its respite facility for people with 
learning disabilities, Please tell us why? 
 

Some families will be unable to continue to maintain their relative at 
home.  This will mean high cost residential provision being provided by 
profit making companies. 

 

As above      
                                                                                                                                                        
====================================================== 
Question 7a – Which of the following do you think we should take into 
account when making our final decision   Other – Please specify 
 

The needs of ALL haringey residents must be put above the needs of the 
few     

The true costs of closure.   

Scope for innovation and future needs        
   

The effect on users and carers. The upset would ultimately make families 
give up being able to care and would be more costly.                                                             

 

Page 171



I would like to emphasise quality of care. Many private homes fall below 
the standards of council run homes. I have seen this from my own 
observations. 

 

These residents enjoy a good quality of care -personal budgets and 
private residential care will not replace what they already have.  It is 
inhumane to send these most vulnerable people into an uncertain future. 

 
============================================================  
Question 10 Is there anything not listed above in question 9 which is 
really important to you. 

A cheerful environment. The quality of staff is paramount and hinges on 
the quality of the manager.  A poor manager means a poor home; a good 
manager means a good home.  

Staying safe. Access to good medical care.  Advocacy services.  
 

I would like to be able to have: Pets. Having my own phone line. Having 
access to internet. Being able to make my own hot drinks. 

Continuity of care and the security of knowing your home is there for the 
long term        

 

Home should be local and familiar daily day centre run activities provided 
in care package                                                                                                                         

 

Cleanliness, mutual respect, safety    
 

 Community and friendship that has been built up over many years, 
consistency of care by staff who know the residents well.  Particularly for 
residents with learning and physical disabilities. Families need to feel 
assured that their children are being cared for by people they trust. 

                                                                                                                                                       
===================================================== 
Q12a Which other care services do you think people should have access 
to in future?  
 

All are desirable.  I have ticked those I think most important    

Being respected. Not having different people coming into my home for a 
few minutes and then leaving.                                                                                                  

 

Telecare options. Intergenerational activities, not just with people my own 
age.     

These completely depend on the persons own needs and abilities   
 
========================================================= 
 

Page 172



Q13a Which other respite options do you think people should have 
access to in future? 
 

All should be available.  The type of respite care has to depend on the 
individual circumstances.  

A reliable safe place where the staff know the needs of the person they 
are caring for.     

Support in own home- day and night.    

These all depend on the persons needs, their current degree of support, 
the current service provision they have and on the family networks 
available.     

 

I think the adult placement scheme is a good one but this has not proved 
to be possible for most adults with severe disabilities 

 
====================================================== 
 
Q14 Use the space below to tell us any other ideas or suggestions about 
the future of respite care for people in Haringey 
 

Respite care gives a break to the carer and the person with a disability.  It 
needs to be properly staffed and consistently monitored to ensure safety 
of vulnerable people.  Some privately or voluntarily run provision is good 
but some is shamefully inadequate.  Public services should lead the way 

in providing services not pass the buck to others. 

In own home. Use of a bank of personal assistants who know me and 
what I need.                                                                                                                               

 
Respite needs to be individualised according to the needs of the person 
and their family or carer

If the Council's proposal to close most of the adult social services in the 
Borough become a reality there would be no future of respite care for the 
people in Haringey. However, the Council is doing a very good job at the 
moment, there is no need to change. 

Respite is both for the benefit of the client and carer. Whatever form it 
takes must be enjoyable for all concerned and reliable. It is a learning 
experience for all and necessary to prepare the person with learning 
difficulties to learn to live without the parent.

 I feel there has to be good quality council run respite care as well as sue of 
personal budgets.  What are the council doing to do if someone needs to 
go into respite care if there is a family crisis? Will there be adequate 
resources? Respite facilities are already running on bare minimum.  

Page 173



Respite has to be available in a well run local facility with activities , health 
care, community, well trained support staff who understand their residents 
needs and can give good quality care and understanding. 

===========================================================

 
Q15 How do you think residential care could be provided differently? 
 

Who provides the care is less important than that the care is of the 
highest standard, and that the Council retains responsibility for 
establishing and monitoring those standards. To one method of providing 
care is "best".  It all depends on the individual's circumstances and 
wishes. 

 

 
 

I applaud the existence of a range of options but residential care is a 
necessary part of provision for vulnerable people.   

More extra care type settings. Retirement villages. In my own home.  
 

I think there should be a variety of provision.  People have different levels 
of need.  The care homes and respite services should be retained for 
those who cannot simply go elsewhere    

It could be recognised as providing a home for life - people with learning 
disabilities or mental frailty  need a secure home environment, not a mish-
mash of services and carers   

 

At present the residential acre homes in Haringey are offering an excellent 
service, therefore there is no need to change the system. Instead the 
Council need to be commended for the high level of care that they are 
providing in their care homes. The system is working perfectly and that is 
the reason why I don not want the care homes to be closed. 

 

“The staff at Cranwood where my mother resides are excellent and the 
staff seem to have a very good relationship with the residents.  No doubt 
built up over a period of time.  If these residents are displaced they will 
have to adapt to a completely new environment.  With most of them in the 
latter years of their lives it is not something they should be required to do.  
The next move might not well be their last if the home they are moved to 
closes.  The councils should consider building purpose built homes with 
the emphasis on low maintenance.  The residents should be allowed to 
move in with existing staff and residents.  Just a question how much is 
this consultation process costing?" 

 

"I don't" 
 

Page 174



I think Haringey Council has to provide good quality residential care, 
which maintains communities, preventing people from becoming isolated.  
People who have physical and learning difficulties are particularly 
vulnerable and it is so important they are in a safe well run and supervised 
community that understands the residents and their needs.  Whitehall 
Street already provides this.  Families need to know and feel assured that 
their children, brother, sisters etc are being well cared for and will be 
cared for as long as is necessary.  Many private facilities are not so well 
regulated and often to find somewhere suitable, the family might have to 
travel long distances which would make it difficult to keep regular contact 
with their loved ones.  Depending on their needs as people start coming 
into the residential care system maybe they could be offered support 
living accommodation or if the family feels it appropriate private 
residential could be considered if for instance the person has a specific 
disability.  Obviously the council has to offer a range of options but they 
have to fit the person not try to fit the person into the budget available. 

                                                                                                                                                       
======================================================= 
 
Q16a How do you think services currently provided by council-run 
residential care homes would best be provided in future? Other, please 
tell us 
 

See comments above.  

It's wrong to push for just one type of solution    

Again, it depends on peoples needs- some may be best served by 
community based support but there are others whose needs will only be 
met by residential care and they should not feel that their home can be 
taken away at the stroke of a pen                                                                                             

 
======================================================= 
  
Q18a I am completing this survey as….. Other, please specify 

A parent of a man with learning disabilities   

Parent of a young disabled adult     

A relative/unpaid carer of young adult with learning disabilities     

I am a member of the public, have a brother with severe learning 
difficulties and am a trustee of a charity providing homes for adults with 
learning difficulties in Somerset. Also - how can you state the information 
from this survey will be used regardless of ability etc, when the vast 
majority of these residents will be totally unable to complete this 
questionnaire.    

 

Page 175



Parent of person (age 39) with learning difficulties   

A wife whose husband is suffering from dementia and is presently in 
residential care. 

Relative/carer of a 40 year old daughter with learning difficulties 
 

A wife 
 

I am a carer, my son is now 20 

  

Page 176



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Service:      Adult and Community Services                      
 
Directorate:  Adult and Housing Services 
 
Title of Proposal:  Setting the strategic direction for Adult services: Proposed closure of 
council-run respite and residential services for Older People and Learning Disabilities.   
 
Lead Officer :   Lisa Redfern 
 
Names of other Officers involved: Len Weir, Beverley Tarka, Barbara Nicholls 
 
                                           
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
1.1 The proposals in this EqIA cover the learning disabilities and older people residential care 

homes.  
 
1.2 The 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review and the subsequent local government 

settlement require Haringey Council to make savings of up to £81m or approximately 30% 
over the next four years. It is in the context of severe budget pressure that Haringey’s Adult 
Social Care service is setting the strategic direction and priorities for the next three years. 
This has placed the Council in an unprecedented position and it is seeking to reduce 
spending and make savings where possible. This comes alongside the need to transform 
adult social care services in line with the Putting People First programme which aims to 
deliver personalised care through self-directed support, with the aim of ensuring that 
vulnerable adults have greater choice, control over their care, and over their lives. The 
proposed changes are designed to respond to the changing needs of older people, people 
with learning disabilities and those with mental health needs by providing more cost effective, 
individualised care and support packages, with the aim of ensuring they are able to live more 
independently in the community.  

 

 
1.3 As part of the transformation of adult social care there is a need to shift focus to a more 

‘personalised’ approach and offer all people assessed as requiring social care a personal 
budget  (PPF-Putting People First and the updated policy: Think Local, Act Personal. The 
council needs to offer re-ablement, early intervention and extra care services.  This is part of 
an overall approach to reduce reliance on costly residential care services, and increase the 
range of community services to keep our residents living as independently as possible in 
their own home for as long as possible. This approach will help Adult Services to address 
the increasing needs of an older population (including higher needs as people with learning 
disabilities also live longer), but with less money, we need to find other ways of delivering 
care and housing in the future. The Dilnot Commission is currently reviewing how we as a 
nation we will pay for care in the future given the rapidly increasing ageing population and 
subsequent demand, and is due to produce its report in July 2011. The cost of running 

Step 1 - Identify the aims of the policy, service or function 
 

HARINGEY COUNCIL 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EqIA) 
FORM 

 

 

Page 177



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

2 

these services, partly as a consequence of higher administration and labour costs, is about 
40% more than that for those owned by other sectors. We spend a high percentage of our 
older people’s and learning disabilities social care budget on residential care, which means 
that there is less money to spend on more personalised services, tailored to the needs of 
individuals. 

 
1.4 In January 2009, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inspection said that whilst our services 

for older, vulnerable people were good, they commented that they were rather ‘traditional’ in 
outlook. While we regret that severe budget restraint makes it necessary, we welcome the 
opportunity to modernise our service provision. As a result of the pressures we face, we’re 
proposing to make a number of changes that are designed to: 
 
§ Develop a programme of change that better meets the current and expected future needs 
of the people of Haringey. 

§ Increasing levels of service within a restricted budget envelope to meet increased levels 
of need associated with living longer (including people with learning disabilities). 

§ Create services that are more flexible. 
§ Create care and support that people can access close to where they live. 
§ Have better long term outcomes for people at lower costs. 
§ Be ready for the changes of an ageing population. 

 

 

1.4 Proposed changes 
 
Overall the following proposals are being made in relation to the services in the list below. 
Those listed in bold are covered in this EqIA. The proposals relating to the Day Care 
Centres are the subject of separate EqIAs and will be considered by Cabinet when it makes 
its final decision about these services in October 2011.   The proposals in relation to closure 
of Council run Drop-In Centres and withdrawal of funding to Jacksons Lane and Cypriot 
Centre were considered at Cabinet on 7th June 2011, and had a separate EqIA completed.  
The proposal relating to Alexandra Road Crisis Unit has also been completed separately. 

 

• Withdraw funding from the luncheon club at Jacksons’ Lane by 1 April, 2011 or as soon 
after as possible after a decision is made. 

• Withdraw management from the Cypriot Elderly and Disability Project at the Cypriot 
Centre from 1 April, 2011 or as soon as possible thereafter.  

• Close the four drop-in centres: at Abyssinia Court, The Irish Centre, Willoughby Road 
and Woodside House. The plan is that this service would stop by 1 October 2011. 

• Close The Woodside Day Centre no later than 1 April, 2012. 

• Close Alexandra Road Crisis Unit no later than 1 April, 2012. 

• Close The Haven no later than 1 April, 2012. 

• The closure of the Homecare Service no later than 1 April, 2012. 

• Close The Whitehall Street Centre no later than 1 April, 2012. 

• Merge the services at The Grange and the Haynes Centre, to come into effect no later 
than 1 April, 2012. 

• Close The Red House residential care home no later than 1 April, 2013. 

• Close Cranwood residential care home no later than 1 April, 2013. 

• Close Broadwater Lodge residential care home no later than 1 April, 2013. 
 

Page 178



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

3 

We do not underestimate the anxiety and concern that many will feel about these proposals. 
Our consultation with those affected has helped us better understand the impact on 
individuals of any possible closures and how we might mitigate this, where possible.  

 

 
 
 

 
 
2a) Using data from equalities monitoring, recent surveys, research, consultation etc. are 

there group(s) in the community who: 
§ are significantly under/over represented in the use of the service, when compared 
to their population size?   
§ have raised concerns about access to services or quality of services?  
§ appear to be receiving differential outcomes in comparison to other groups? 

 
Section contents: 
2.1 Council run residential care homes for older people – Page 3 
2.2 Council run residential and respite care homes for people with learning disabilities – Page 8 
 
2.1 Council run residential care homes for older people 
 
The Council currently operates three residential care homes for older people, details as follows: 
 
The Red House – Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
 
This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, social and 
emotional care and support service to 35 older people (with 15 beds for people with dementia 
and 20 beds for physically frail older people). There are currently 23 permanent residents, with 
the balance of the beds being occupied by respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) and is seen by them as being compliant with Section 20 of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). The home is 
situated in West Green Road, N15. The service provided was assessed as being “Good” by CQC 
in the previous inspection regime.  
 
Broadwater Lodge - Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
 
This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, social and 
emotional care and support service to 45 older people (with 30 beds for people with dementia 
and 15 beds for physically frail older people/older people with mental health problems). There are 
currently 36 permanent residents, with the balance of the beds being occupied by 
respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and is seen 
by them as being compliant with the Section 20 regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). The home is situated in Tottenham N17. The 
service provided was assessed as being “Good” by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  
  
Cranwood - Proposed closure date 31st March 2013 (latest) 
 
This is a residential care home service with the capacity to provide a physical, social and 
emotional care and support service to 33 older people (with 9 beds for people with dementia and 
24 beds for physically frail older people). There are currently 23 permanent residents, with the 
balance of the beds being occupied by respite/temporary residents. It is registered by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) and is seen by them as being compliant with the Section 20 

Step 2 - Consideration of available data, research and information 

Page 179



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

4 

regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential Standards of Quality and Safety). 
The home is situated in Muswell Hill N10. The service provided was assessed as being “Good” 
by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  
 
Funding Proposal for Council run residential care homes  
 
It is proposed that the Council’s Cabinet agree the recommendation to close its residential care 
provision for older people.   
 
Service User Equalities Information 
Equalities monitoring information has been collected from each of the care homes affected, and 
and also, where available, from relevant ACS managers with responsibility for commissioning and 
contracting external services. For comparison, the Haringey population data is taken from the 
Census 2001. 
 
Key findings: 
 

• Age – the proportion of older people in Council run residential care as a proportion of the 
adult population show that there are higher proportions of older people in the upper age 
ranges from age 75 and up (refer table 2.1.1). It is assumed this reflects the increased frailty 
and disabilities of people as they get older, therefore needing higher levels of support and 
assistance.  When compared against the profile of older people who are in all Council funded 
residential care (external and inhouse providers), there are more older people aged between 
75-84 compared to all Council funded provision (53.1% as against 35.8%), whilst the reverse 
is true of people above the aged 85+ (30.6% as against 54.1%).  This suggests that a higher 
level of frailty and dependency is already supported across all Council funded provision in the 
private sector and inhouse, meaning no disproportionate impact is anticipated against ‘Age’. 
 

• Sex – no disproportionate impact identified.  Table 2.1.2 shows a higher proportion of females 
to males in Council run residential care (60.2% female) against the borough gender profile 
(49% female), however Council run residential care has a lower proportion of females when 
compared to all Council funded residential care, internal and external (69.6% female).  As with 
‘Age’, this is broadly to be expected when considering the changing profile of males to 
females across the age ranges 65 years and above (Table 2.1.2a).  Therefore no 
disproportionate impact is anticipated against ‘Sex’ 

 

• Race – in one Council Inhouse Home (Cranwood), disproportionate impact has been 
identified  for ‘White Irish’, with 21.7% of the residents at Cranwood (or five people) coming 
from a ‘White Irish’ background – as against 4.3% of the general population in Haringey. Also 
at Broadwater Lodge, it has been identified that there will be a disproportionate impact for 
Black or Black British older people – refer table 2.1.3.  46.3% (or 19 people) of Broadwater 
Lodge residents currently living at the home are from a Black or Black British background, as 
against their profile in the general population of 20.0%.  This is also the case when comparing 
the profile of Broadwater Lodge residents against the profile of all Council funded (external 
and Inhouse) which is 15.5%.   

 

• Disability - all older people in Council funded residential care services (including Council’s 
Inhouse services), have meet Council eligibility criteria (critical and substantial) as per DoH 
guidance, and are considered to have a disability as defined by the Equalities Act 2010. Fair 
Access to Care Services has been replaced with Guidance on Eligibility Criteria for Adult 
Social Care (2010) from the Department of Health, with the guidance retaining the four 
eligibility bands set out in Fair Access to Care Services – that is, Critical, Substantial, 

Page 180



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

5 

Moderate and Low.  Haringey Adult and Community Services will continue to provide services 
to individuals who are assessed as having needs that are Critical or Substantial.  Table 2.1.4 
gives a further breakdown of disability for older people living in Council run residential care 
homes.  It can be seen that in Broadwater Lodge, this home is registered to provide specialist 
mental health and dementia care for residents (just over 95% of all residents). Cranwood 
primarily works with older people who have physical disabilities (69.6% of current residents), 
with some dementia care (26.1% of current residents), whilst Redhouse cares for only older 
people with physical disabilities (100% of current residents). 
 

• No disproportionate impact was identified in respect of ‘Religion’ (refer table 2.1.5), ‘Marriage 
or Civil Partnership’; or ‘Sexual Orientation’ (all residents living in the care homes identified 
as heterosexual). No residents currently living in any of the three Council run residential care 
homes identified themselves as going through ‘Gender Reassignment’. The protected 
characteristic of ‘Pregnancy and Maternity’ is not relevant in this instance as all the 
residents are older people aged 65+ (except one aged between 60-64). 

 
 
Table 2.1.1 Age of people in Council run residential care  
 

Age 
group b

ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

p
ro
fi
le
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 

Older 
People 
residential 
total 

Older 
People's 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in  
residential 
care over 
65 years 
old) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile 
(all 
adults) 

Haringe
y 
Borough 
Profile 
(people 
over 60) 

Under 
60                   88.8% n/a 

60-64 1 2.4% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 1.0%   3.2% 27.4% 

65-69 2 4.9% 1 4.3% 3 8.8% 6 6.1% 2.4% 20.9% 

70-74 8 19.5% 0 0.0% 1 2.9% 9 9.2% 10.1% 2.3% 19.1% 

75-79 10 24.4% 3 13.0% 5 14.7% 18 18.4% 1.7% 15.1% 

80-84 13 31.7% 10 43.5% 11 32.4% 34 34.7% 35.8% 0.9% 9.0% 

85-89 2 4.9% 3 13.0% 9 26.5% 14 14.3% 26.5% 0.5% 5.4% 

90+ 5 12.2% 6 26.1% 5 14.7% 16 16.3% 27.6% 0.2% 3.1% 

total 41 100.0% 23 100.0% 34 100.0% 98 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 
 
Table 2.1.2 Sex of people in Council run residential care 

 
 
 

Sex b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 
p
ro
fi
le
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 

Older 
people 
residential 
total 

Older 
People's 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in  
residential 
care)* 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile 
(all 
adults)* 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile 
(people 
over 60)* 

Male 17 41.5% 10 43.5% 12 35.3% 39 39.8% 30.4% 51% 43.7% 

Female 24 58.5% 13 56.5% 22 64.7% 59 60.2% 69.6% 49% 56.3% 

total 41 100.0% 23 100.0% 34 100.0% 98 100.0% 100% 100% 100% 

Page 181



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

6 

 
Table 2.1.2a Sex/Age of older people in Haringey 
 
Age 
group Male Female 

65-69 44.7% 55.3% 

70-74 46.6% 53.4% 

75-79 45.3% 54.7% 

80-84 39.2% 60.8% 

85-89 35.6% 64.4% 

90+ 21.0% 79.0% 

 
 
 
Table 2.1.3 Race of people in Council run residential care 
 

Race 
(Race 
subgroup)   b

ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 
p
ro
fi
le
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 

O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

to
ta
l 

O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
's
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

p
ro
fi
le
 

(i
n
h
o
u
s
e
) 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fi
le
 
(a
ll
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
in
  

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
)*
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fi
le
 (
a
ll
 a
d
u
lt
s
)*
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fi
le
 (
p
e
o
p
le
 o
v
e
r 
6
0
)*
 

White British   14 34.1% 13 56.5% 16 47.1% 43 43.9%   45.3%   

White Irish   1 2.4% 5 21.7% 6 17.6% 12 12.2%   4.3%   

  White Greek / 
Cypriot 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 2.9% 1 1.0%       

  White Turkish 1 2.4% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 1.0%       

  White Gypsy 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%       

  White Irish 
Traveller 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%       

  White 
Turkish/Cypriot 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%       

  Kurdish 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%       

  White Other 2 4.9% 1 4.3% 3 8.8% 6 6.1%       

Other White   3 7.3% 1 4.3% 4 11.8% 8 8.2%   16.1%   
Subtotal 
white 

  
18 43.9% 19 82.6% 26 76.5% 63 64.3% 77.2% 65.6% 75.0% 

White and 
Black 
Caribbean 

  

0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.5%   

White and 
Black African 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   0.7%   

White and 
Asian 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.1%   

Other Mixed   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.3%   

Subtotal 
mixed/white 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.6% 4.6% 1.8% 

Asian or Asian 
British Indian 

  
2 4.9% 1 4.3% 0 0.0% 3 3.1%   2.9%   

Asian or Asian 
British 
Pakistani 

  

0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.0%   

Asian or Asian 
British 
Bangladeshi 

  

0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.4%   

Asian or Asian 
British East 
Asian African 

  

0 0.0% 1 4.3% 0 0.0% 1 1.0%       

Page 182



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

7 

Asian or Asian 
British Other 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 2.9% 1 1.0%   1.6%   

Asian or 
Asian British 

  
2 4.9% 2 8.7% 1 2.9% 5 5.1% 3.4% 6.7% 6.7% 

Black or Black 
British 
Caribbean 

  

18 43.9% 2 8.7% 5 14.7% 25 25.5%   9.5%   

Black or Black 
British African 

  
1 2.4% 0 0.0% 2 5.9% 3 3.1%   9.2%   

Black or Black 
British Other 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.4%   

Black or 
Black British 

  
19 46.3% 2 8.7% 7 20.6% 28 28.6% 15.5% 20.0% 13.9% 

Chinese   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.1%   

Other Ethnic 
Group 

  
2 4.9% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2 2.0%   2.0%   

Chinese or 
Other Ethnic 
Group 

  

2 4.9% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2 2.0% 2.8% 3.1% 2.6% 

Not stated/not 
known   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.6%     

 TOTAL 41 100.0% 23 100.0% 34 100.0% 98 100.0% 100% 100.0% 100.0% 

 

 
 

Table 2.1.4 Disability of people in Council run residential care – additional information 
 

 

Primary Disability b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

p
ro
fi
le
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

p
ro
fi
le
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 Older 

People 
residential 
total 

Older 
People's 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Deafness or partial loss of 
hearing 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Blindness or partial loss of 
sight 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Learning Disability 0 0.0% 1 4.3% 0 0.0% 1 1.0% 

Developmental Disorder 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Mental Health 15 36.6% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 15 15.3% 

Dementia 24 58.5% 6 26.1% 0 0.0% 30 30.6% 

Long term illness, disease or 
condition / physical frailty / 
physical disability 1 2.4% 16 69.6% 34 100.0% 51 52.0% 

No disability 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

Other disabilities (please 
specify) 1 2.4% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 1 1.0% 

Not known 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 

TOTAL 41 100% 23 100% 34 100% 98 100% 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 183



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

8 

Table 2.1.5 Religion of people in Council run residential care 
 
 

Religion b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

b
ro
a
d
w
a
te
r 

p
ro
fi
le
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 

c
ra
n
w
o
o
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 

re
d
h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 

Older 
people 
residential 
total 

Older 
People's 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in  
residential 
care)* 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile 
(all 
adults)* 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile 
(people 
over 60)* 

Buddhism 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 0.6% 

Christian 37 90.2% 20 87.0% 30 88.2% 87 88.8% 45.5% 51.7% 70.8% 

Hindu 2 4.9% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2 2.0% 1.0% 2.1% 1.9% 

Jewish 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2 5.9% 2 2.0% 2.2% 2.6% 3.9% 

Muslim 1 2.4% 2 8.7% 1 2.9% 4 4.1% 1.2% 9.5% 5.0% 

Sikh 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.1% 

Non-
religious 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2.4% 21.1% 6.6% 

Other 
religions 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2.4% 0.6% 0.4% 

Not stated 1 2.4% 1 4.3% 1 2.9% 3 3.1% 45.3% 11.0% 10.6% 

subtotal 41 100.0% 23 100.0% 34 100.0% 98 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100% 

 
 
2.2 Council run residential and respite care homes for people with learning disabilities 
 
Whitehall Street - Proposed closure date 31st March 2012 (latest) 
  
This is a residential care home service providing a physical, social and emotional care and 
support service to 15 people with a learning disability (with 11 beds available for permanent long-
term placements and 4 beds for respite for people with a learning disability). There are currently 
10 permanent residents, with the balance of the beds being occupied by respite/temporary 
residents.  There are currently 36 users of the respite service (4 beds) 
 
The Home is registered by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and is seen by them as being 
compliant with the Section 20 regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Essential 
Standards of Quality and Safety). The home is situated in Tottenham N17. The service provided 
was assessed as being “Good” by CQC in the previous inspection regime.  
 
Funding Proposal for Council run residential care homes  
 
It is proposed that the Council’s Cabinet agree the recommendation to close its residential care 
provision for learning Disabilities at Whitehall Street.   
 
Service User Equalities Information 
Equalities monitoring information has been collected from the care home affected, and also, where 
available, from relevant ACS managers with responsibility for commissioning and contracting 
external services. For comparison, the Haringey population data is taken from the Census 2001. 
 
Key findings: 
 

• Age - there are 10 permanent residents in Whitehall, and approximately 36 regular users of 
the respite service which consists of 4 beds.  The Equalities Impact Assessment shows an 
over representation of adults aged 45-54 (25.0%) who use respite as against the expected 

Page 184



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

9 

population of people with learning disabilities in Haringey (15.5%).  For people who live 
permanently at Whitehall, seven out of ten residents are aged between 30-49 years of age, 
meaning there is an over representation of this age range at 70%. Refer table 2.2.1. There 
is therefore disproportionate impact anticipated, however because of the relatively small 
numbers of users involved, it is anticipated that mitigation actions will be implemented to 
minimise the impact; 
 

• Sex - there is an over representation of females with learning disabilities using the respite 
service (52.8%) as against the number of females with learning disabilities in permanent 
residential care (34.3%), and against the overall projected number of females with a 
learning disability in Haringey.   For those living at Whitehall Street permanently, there is 
also an over representation of females (70%) when compared to the profile of people with 
Learning Disabilities in residential care (as above – 34.3%). Refer table 2.2.2. There is 
therefore disproportionate impact anticipated, however because of the relatively small 
numbers of users involved, it is anticipated that mitigation actions will be implemented to 
minimise the impact; 

 

• Race - there is a significant overrepresentation of people with learning disabilities from a 
Black or Black British ethnic background using the respite service (50.0%) when compared 
to the proportion of people in learning disabilities permanent residential care (26.5%). 
Therefore adverse impact is anticipated for this group. Refer table 2.2.3; 

 

• Disability - all users with learning disabilities that are permanently placed in Whitehall 
Street or use the respite service, have met Council eligibility criteria (critical and substantial) 
as per DoH guidance, and are considered to have a disability as defined by the Equalities 
Act 2010. Fair Access to Care Services has been replaced with Guidance on Eligibility 
Criteria for Adult Social Care (2010) from the Department of Health, with the guidance 
retaining the four eligibility bands set out in Fair Access to Care Services – that is, Critical, 
Substantial, Moderate and Low.   

 

• No disproportionate impact was identified in respect of ‘Religion’ (refer table 2.2.4), 
‘Marriage or Civil Partnership’; or ‘Sexual Orientation’ (all residents living in or accessing 
respite at Whitehall Street identified as heterosexual). No residents currently living in or 
accessing respite at Whitehall Street identified themselves as going through ‘Gender 
Reassignment’. In terms of ‘Pregnancy and Maternity’, no residents currently living in or 
accessing respite at Whitehall Street identified that they are either pregnant or currently 
nursing a baby (in the last 12 months) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 2.2.1 Age of Learning Disabilities users (Whitehall Street) 
 

Page 185



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

10 

Age 
group W

h
it
e
h
a
ll
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 p
ro
fi
le
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 -
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 p
ro
fi
le
 

w
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 t
o
ta
l 

Learning 
Disabilities 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in LD 
residential 
care)* 

Haringey age 
profile for 
people with 
learning 
disabilities 

Haringey 
borough 
profile - 
general 
population 

18-19y 0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2% 1.2% 2.6% 

20-24y 0 0.0% 6 16.7% 6 13.0% 3.5% 13.7% 9.0% 

25-29 0 0.0% 3 8.3% 3 6.5% 10.5% 13.2% 

30-34 2 20.0% 4 11.1% 6 13.0% 8.2% 28.4% 14.1% 

35-39 0 0.0% 3 8.3% 3 6.5% 10.5% 12.1% 

40-44 2 20.0% 6 16.7% 8 17.4% 18.1% 23.2% 11.3% 

45-49 3 30.0% 5 13.9% 8 17.4% 19.9% 9.3% 

50-54 1 10.0% 4 11.1% 5 10.9% 14.0% 15.5% 6.6% 

55-59 0 0.0% 3 8.3% 3 6.5% 4.7% 5.3% 

60-64 1 10.0% 0 0.0% 1 2.2% 8.8% 9.0% 4.5% 

65-69 0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2% 0.0% 3.5% 

70-74 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0% 5.8% 3.2% 

75-79 1 10.0% 0 0.0% 1 2.2% 0.0% 2.5% 

80-84 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0% 3.3% 1.5% 

85-89 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.6% 0.9% 

90+ 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 0.5% 

subtotal 10 100% 36 100% 46 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 
Table 2.2.2 Sex of Learning Disabilities users (Whitehall Street) 
 

Sex W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 p
ro
fi
le
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 -
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 p
ro
fi
le
 

w
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 t
o
ta
l 

Learning 
Disabilities 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in LD 
residential 
care)* 

Haringey 
gender 
profile for 
people with 
learning 
disabilities 

Haringey 
borough 
profile - 
general 
population 

Male 3 30.0% 17 47.2% 20 43.5% 65.7% 57% 51% 

Female 7 70.0% 19 52.8% 26 56.5% 34.3% 43% 49% 

total 10 100.% 36 100% 103 100.0% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
Table 2.2.3 Race of Learning Disabilities users (Whitehall Street) 
 
 

Race   W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
fi
le
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 

re
s
p
it
e
 

W
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 -
 

re
s
p
it
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

p
ro
fi
le
 

w
h
it
e
h
a
ll
 t
o
ta
l 

Learning 
Disabilities 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in 
LD 
residentia
l care) 

Haringey 
borough 
profile - 
general 
population 

White British   5 50.0% 9 25.0% 14 30.4%   45.3% 

White Irish   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   4.3% 

  White Greek / 
Cypriot 1 10.0% 1 2.8% 2 4.3%     

  White Turkish 0 0.0% 3 8.3% 3 6.5%     

Page 186



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

11 

  White Gypsy 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%     

  White Irish 
Traveller 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%     

  White 
Turkish/Cypriot 0 0.0% 2 5.6% 2 4.3%     

  Kurdish 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%     

  White Other 1 10.0% 1 2.8% 2 4.3%     

Other White   2 20.0% 7 19.4% 9 19.6%   16.1% 
Subtotal white   7 70.0% 16 44.4% 23 50.0% 59.6% 65.6% 

White and Black 
Caribbean 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.5% 

White and Black 
African 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   0.7% 

White and Asian   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.1% 

Other Mixed   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.3% 

Subtotal 
mixed/white 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 2.4% 4.6% 

Asian or Asian 
British Indian 

  
0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2%   2.9% 

Asian or Asian 
British Pakistani 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.0% 

Asian or Asian 
British 
Bangladeshi 

  

0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.4% 

Asian or Asian 
British East Asian 
African 

  

0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   

Asian or Asian 
British Other 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   1.6% 

Asian or Asian 
British 

  
0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2% 6.6% 6.7% 

Black or Black 
British Caribbean 

  
2 20.0% 13 36.1% 15 32.6%   9.5% 

Black or Black 
British African 

  
0 0.0% 5 13.9% 5 10.9%   9.2% 

Black or Black 
British Other 

  
1 10.0% 0 0.0% 1 2.2%   1.4% 

Black or Black 
British 

  
3 30.0% 18 50.0% 21 45.7% 26.5% 20.0% 

Chinese   0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2%   1.1% 

Other Ethnic 
Group 

  
0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%   2.0% 

Chinese or Other 
Ethnic Group 

  
0 0.0% 1 2.8% 1 2.2% 4.8% 3.1% 

Not stated/not 
known   0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0       

 TOTAL 10 100% 36 100% 46 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
Table 2.2.4 Religion of Learning Disabilities users (Whitehall Street) 
 

Religion 
whitehall 
permanent 

whitehall 
respite 

whitehall 
total 

Learning 
Disabilities 
residential 
profile 
(inhouse) 

Haringey 
Borough 
Profile (all 
people in LD 
residential 
care)* 

Haringey 
borough 
profile - 
general 
population 

Buddhism 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 

Christian 10 30 40 87.0% 41.0% 51.7% 

Hindu 0 0 0 0.0% 2.4% 2.1% 

Jewish 0 0 0 0.0% 7.2% 2.6% 

Page 187



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

12 

Muslim 0 4 4 8.7% 6.0% 9.5% 

Sikh 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 

Non-religious 0 0 0 0.0% 1.8% 21.1% 

Other religions 0 1 1 2.2% 2.4% 0.6% 

Not stated 0 1 1 2.2% 39.2% 11.0% 

TOTAL 10 36 46 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
 

Page 188



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

13 

2b)  What factors (barriers) might account for this under/over representation? 
 
2.3 OLDER PEOPLE 
 
2.3.1 Age 
The nature of residential care is such that it predominantly impacts on the vulnerable 
people for which it is intended – ie older people. It is assumed this reflects the increased 
frailty and disabilities of people as they get older, therefore needing higher levels of 
support and assistance. 
 
2.3.2 Sex 
Nationally, women tend to live longer than men – in Haringey the life expectancy of men 
is currently 76.3 years of age, whilst for women it is 83.1 years of age1. Therefore it is 
expected that there are higher numbers of older women in residential care 

 
2.3.3 Race 
Older People from a Black and Black British ethnic background are over-represented in 
terms of living in Council-run residential care at Broadwater Lodge in particular.  There 
are higher numbers of people of non-white backgrounds living in the East of the 
borough - where Broadwater Lodge is located.  Equally there is a higher proportion of 
White and White British (mainly White Irish) living in Cranwood, reflecting the ethnicity 
balance of the West of the borough.  
 
2.3.4 Disability 
All service users have a form of disability, as defined by the Equalities Act 2010, and 
are eligible for services following a needs assessment that assessed their eligibility 
as critical or substantial under the national Eligibility Framework.   
 
2.3.5 Religion 
No disproportionate impact identified 
 
2.3.6 Gender Reassignment 
Data is not currently collected on this group 
 
2.3.7 Sexual Orientation 
Data is not currently collected on this group 
 
2.3.8 Maternity and Pregnancy 
Not relevant for this group 
 
 
 
2.4 LEARNING DISABILITIES 
 
2.4.1 Age 
 
There is a higher proportion of people aged 45-54 using the respite service.  It has been 
noted that 23 of the 36 regular users of the respite service normally live with their 
parents (63%).  Given the age of the users, their parents are themselves older people, 
generally over the age of 65 years, and themselves may be increasing in frailty.  The 
need for a break from their caring role is therefore more critical that for those parents 
who are younger.   

                                                           

1 Haringey Borough Profile 2010  

Page 189



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

14

 
2.4.2 Sex 
There are higher numbers of females living both permanently in Whitehall Street, but 
also using the respite service when compared to the proportion of females in permanent 
residential care more generally.  Respite services can be seen as part of a package of 
support in keeping people living in the community for as long as possible.  It is indicated 
therefore that there are proportionately more men with learning disabilities in permanent 
residential care than women, with women accessing respite as part of their community 
support package.   

 
2.4.3 Race 
People with learning disabilities from a Black and Black British ethnic background are 
over-represented in terms of accessing Council-run respite residential care at Whitehall 
Street. The home is located in Tottenham (where the proportion and numbers of Black  
and Black people in Haringey is greatest), which may account for the higher numbers of 
people from this Race group accessing the service. Exact data in respect of all adults 
with learning disabilities living in Haringey, in terms of Race breakdown is not known. 
However national evidence2 suggests that people of Black and Black British ethnic 
origin are almost twice as likely to have a learning disability requiring adult social care 
(based on data analysis of children with disabilities who are in transition from children’s 
to adults services) than the profile of this race group in the general population.  This is 
supported with local Haringey data in respect of children requiring specialist education 
placements (and have a Special Education Needs statement), with higher proportions 
children with disabilities in the transition process coming from a Black or Black British 
Race background – please see table 2.4.3.1 below.     
 

2.4.3.1 Table showing numbers of children with disabilities in special education 
in transition.    

Children and Young People’s Service – 
Children in transition with SEN statement in 
Haringey – January 2010 

Number of 
children 
with SEN 
statement 

Profile of 
Children 
with SEN 
statement 

Haringey 
School 

Population 

WHITE BRITISH TOTAL 94 25.3% 18.40% 

WHITE OTHER TOTAL - INCLUDING: 
White Irish 
White Greek/Cypriot 
White Turkish 
White Gypsy 
White Irish Traveller 
White Turkish/Cypriot 
White Other 76 20.4% 24.60% 

BLACK OR BLACK BRITISH TOTAL 145 39.0% 29.80% 

MIXED TOTAL 21 5.6% 10.20% 

ASIAN OR ASIAN BRITISH TOTAL 23 6.2% 6.50% 

OTHER TOTAL 0 0.0% 7.30% 

Not Known / Stated 13 3.5% 3.20% 

 TOTAL  372 100.0% 100.00% 

 
 
2.4.4 Disability 
All users of the service provided at Whitehall Street have a form of disability, as 
defined by the Equalities Act 2010, and are eligible for services following a needs 

                                                           

2 May 2008, Centre for Disability Research, “Estimating Future Need for Adult Social Care Services for People 

with Learning Disabilities in England - http://www.mencap.org.uk/all-about-learning-disability/information-
professionals/more-about-learning-disability 

Page 190



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

15 

assessment that assessed their eligibility as critical or substantial under the national 
Eligibility Framework.   
 
2.4.5 Religion 
No disproportionate impact identified 
 
2.4.6 Gender Reassignment 
Data is not currently collected on this group 
 
2.4.7 Sexual Orientation 
Data is not currently collected on this group 
 
2.4.8 Maternity and Pregnancy 
No disproportionate impact identified – no current users were identified as being 
pregnant or nursing a child in the last year. 
 

Page 191



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

16

 
 
                                                                                                           
 
 
  3a) How will your proposal affect existing barriers? (Please tick below 
as appropriate)  

 

 
 
3.1 Summary of impact of current proposals – older people’s care homes 
– Cranwood, Broadwater Lodge, The Red House 
 
3.1.1 Impact on Age:  
As the main focus of all three Council run residential care for older people in terms of 
equalities protected characteristics is people over the age of 65, the adverse effects 
of these proposals would be felt across the age range above 65 years of age.   
 
3.1.2 Impact on Sex:  
 
The main users of the Council run residential homes for older people are women, 
who outnumber men approximately 2:1.  This is true of all three residential homes 
with a slightly higher gender imbalance at The Redhouse 
 
3.1.3 Impact on Disability:  
All users in the three Council run residential homes for older people have a disability, 
including age-related disabilities, dementia and/or co-morbidity of a number of life-
limiting conditions. Therefore it is to be expected that the proposed changes will 
adversely affect users.  
 
3.1.4 Impact on Race:  
In broad terms the groups affected by these changes are consistent with the 
overall borough profile for ethnicity.  The two exceptions are Broadwater  
Lodge, where a higher proportion Black and Black British residing in the home, 
and Cranwood, where there are higher numbers of White Irish living in the 
home - indicating significantly more adverse impact for these groups 
 
3.1.5 Impact on other protected characteristics: There is no adverse impact 
identified in respect of religion at any of the three care homes; whilst data is not 
collected in respect of the other protected characteristic, therefore it is not possible to 
assess for any adverse impact – that is: sexual orientation, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership. The protected characteristic of pregnancy and 
maternity is not relevant in this instance as all the service users are older people 
aged 65+. 
 

 Increase barriers?   Reduce barriers   No change   

Broadwater 
Lodge 

X   

Cranwood X   

The Red House   X 

Whitehall Street X   

Step 3 - Assessment of Impact 

Page 192



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

17 

3.1.6 Impact on staff: The workforce implications of the proposed changes are 
covered in separate organisational restructure EqIAs. 
 
3.2 Summary of impact of current proposals – learning disabilities – 
Whitehall Street 
 
3.2.1 Impact on Age:  
There would appear to be a disproportionate impact of the proposals on people aged 
between 45-54 using the respite service.  Given this age range, there may be an 
adverse impact on older carers over the age of 65.    
 
The table below gives the profile of carers of people with learning disabilities: 
 

Table 3.2.1.1 
Number of carers by age 
  

Age 
range 

Number of 
carers of people 
with learning 
disabilities 
known to Adult 
Services 
2010/11 

Profile of 
carers of 
people with 
learning 
disabilities 
2010/11 

Age profile of 
Haringey 
carers 
(Census 2001) 

Age profile of  
general 
population 

18-64 91 66.4% 81.7% 88.00% 

65-74 25 18.2% 6.60% 

75+ 21 15.3% 18.3% 5.40% 

  137 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

 
The table shows the within Adult Services Learning Disabilities Service, 33.5% 
of informal carers are over the age of 65 years. This is compared to a profile of 
all Haringey informal carers over this age of 18.3%. 

 
3.2.2 Impact on Sex:  
The main users of the Whitehall permanent residential homes for people with 
learning disabilities are women, who outnumber men approximately 8:1. Females are 
also more likely to use the respite service, therefore the proposed closures are likely 
to have a disproportionate impact on females.   
 
3.2.3 Impact on Disability:  
All users of Whitehall Street have a disability, therefore it is to be expected that the 
proposed changes will adversely affect users.  
 
3.2.4 Impact on Race:  
The protected group where the most adverse impact would be felt, should the 
proposal proceed, is Black and Black British.  Barriers to this group would 
therefore increase.  For people with learning disabilities there is also a strong 
correlation with socio-economic status3. Hence factors such as poverty, diet, 
poor living conditions, poor access to health services for people with learning 
disabilities can be a contributory factor to this. 
 
3.2.5 Impact on other protected characteristics: There is no adverse impact 
identified in respect of religion at Whitehall Street; whilst data is not collected in 
                                                           
3
 May 2008, Ceentre for Disability Research, “People with Learning Disabilities in England” - 

http://www.mencap.org.uk/all-about-learning-disability/information-professionals/more-about-learning-

disability 

Page 193



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

18

respect of the other protected characteristic, therefore it is not possible to assess for 
any adverse impact – that is: sexual orientation, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership. There is no adverse impact anticipated against the protected 
characteristic of pregnancy and maternity.   
 
3.2.6 Impact on staff: The workforce implications of the proposed changes are 
covered in separate organisational restructure EqIAs. 
 
 
3b) What specific actions are you proposing in order to respond to the existing 
barriers and imbalances you have identified in Step 2? 
 
The existing model of social care provision can act as a barrier to people exercising 
choice and control, and achieving / maintaining their independence: for example, 
specific BME groups/individuals may find that a personal budget more easily lends 
itself to meet their needs.  The objective of personalisation is to ensure that 
individuals are able to achieve their desired outcomes, through self-assessment, 
person-centred support planning, and the use of personal budgets.  The overarching 
drive of personalisation and using personal budgets is to support more people to live 
at home for longer, thereby reducing the need for residential care.  Year on year, 
Adult Services has reduced its reliance on residential care, including for older people 
and people with learning disabilities (refer tables 3.3.1 and 3.3.3 below.   
 
However where the assessed need of the individual is such that residential care is 
considered the most appropriate option for them, this will be arranged for them.  
Should the proposals to close the Council run residential care homes for older people 
be agreed by Cabinet, a full assessment of their current level of care need will be 
arranged, involving the service user/resident and their families, as well as access to 
independent advocacy where necessary.  Where appropriate, a referral to 
Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA) service will be undertaken, in 
situations where the individual care home resident lacks the capacity to participate in 
the assessment process, and make an informed decision about where they might 
want to move to, and they do not have any other individual (such as a family 
member) to provide this support.  
 
Through self-directed-support and the wider transformation of social care individuals, 
with the help of those that support them will have the opportunity to manage their 
own care arrangements and achieve a better quality of life. Although there is likely to 
be an increase in the population of older people in Haringey over the next 20 years, 
access to effective, efficient and personalised enablement services will reduce the 
need for residential care in the future.  This is especially so for people who are 
physically frail but want to live in their own homes. We have also been in the forefront 
of putting in place efficient personalised services that support people to live 
independently, with an improved quality of life, for longer.    
   
In the long-run, these barriers will be removed by the following: 
 

§ A move toward community-based services including service available at 
community hubs  

§ Commissioning services – working with the current and future provider market 
to ensure the right levels of capacity and at the right quality are available to 
support people’s needs – both community based and residential care based 
services. 

Page 194



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

19 

§ Enabling more personalised care through increasing use of personal budgets 
which gives increased choice and control for clients assessed as being in need 
of care and support. 

§ Robust assessment, person-centred care management and safeguarding. 
§ Developing a ‘universal offer’ based on volunteering and social responsibility. 
§ Development of new focused occupational therapy driven Re-ablement service. 

 
It should be noted that residential care homes managed by the Council are provided 
alongside a well developed independent sector care home market. Haringey Adult 
Services has strong commissioning practice and we only buy residential care beds 
that offer the highest quality of care; in early 2011, the Care Quality Commission 
judged Haringey’s commissioning practice, in terms of the quality of residential care 
for adults, to be the best in London and we have performed in the top national 
quartile nationally for the quality of residential care that we commission for the last 
two years.  
 
There is no planned ‘shift’ from this robust approach to the quality of care that 
Haringey commissions; Haringey is moving from a model of directly provided adult 
care services to one where such services are commissioned from a wide range of 
providers in the independent sector. This proposal is consistent with that strategic 
approach and the wider requirements of “Putting People First” and “Think Local, Act 
Personal”.  In addition and in line with the national direction of travel, Adult Services 
has looked to reduce reliance on residential care, with more people supported to live 
at home with support where needed, to remain as independent as possible. Our 
performance in this area has been acknowledged by the Care Quality Commission as 
excellent over the past three performance years.   This is demonstrated in the table 
below: 
 
3.3.1  – Admissions to residential care (all adults) 

Performance Year Outturn* 

2007/08 157 

2008/09 148 

2009/10 127 

2010/11 126 

 
3.3.2  – Helped to live at home (all adults) 

Performance Year Outturn 

2007/08 2355 

2008/09 3141 

2009/10 3944 

2010/11 Information available end 
July 2011 

 
The Council has a statutory obligation under Section 21 of the National Assistance 
Act 1948 to make arrangements for the provision of accommodation for people who 
require it. However, there is no obligation for the Council to run care homes. In terms 
of the care home market for older people, there are 9 residential care home services 
in the independent sector in the borough offering a total of 231 beds. There are also 
a significant number of residential care homes close to the borough boundary.  The 
Council currently commissions approximately 75% of all older people’s residential 
care in the private sector, both within the borough and out of borough (for example 
where an older person prefers to live in another area to be closer to family). In 
Learning Disabilities services, there are 28 care homes with 139 beds in the borough 
as well as the Council’s Linden House with 6 beds.  The Council currently 

Page 195



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

20

commissions over 90% of learning disabilities placements from the independent 
sector.   
 
Therefore there is considered to be sufficient care home bed capacity both in 
Haringey and in the immediate surrounding boroughs for older people and people 
with learning disabilities, ensuring that where permanent residential care is required, 
there will be availability of suitable placements.  
 
In addition, the Council has worked in close partnership with the new extracare 
sheltered housing provider (Hill Homes), to ensure an appropriate level of access to 
the new scheme, The Trees, in Highgate.  The Trees is a new 40 unit extracare 
scheme, for people over the age of 55, and can be accessed by all client groups, 
including older people and people with learning disabilities.  The Council has 
nomination rights to 30 of the 40 units.   We are also working in partnership with One 
Housing (another registered social landlord), over their planned scheme in Hornsey 
(Roden Court), which is currently set to open in Summer 2012.  The Council will have 
appropriate nomination rights for this scheme also, and should Cabinet agree the 
proposal to close Council-run older people’s residential care homes, it is anticipated, 
the opening of this scheme will be ideally timed to accept appropriate transfer of 
residents from the Council’s residential care homes. 
 
At present there are a reduced number of people living permanently in the older 
people’s residential care homes (The Redhouse, Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood), 
with the available capacity being made available for step-down from hospital as well 
as respite.  The total number of available beds is 113, whilst the current number of 
permanent residents is 82.  By using the bed capacity more flexibly for step-down 
and respite, this has meant there will be a smaller number of people permanently 
placed that will need to be moved in these care homes 
 
For those already in the service as permanent residents, officers are confident that 
the proposed long lead-in period to closure of the three older people’s care homes 
(The Redhouse, Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood) by 31st March 2013 will enable 
sensitive, careful and  holistic assessments and reviews of need to be undertaken 
and sufficient time will be taken to plan an alternative care home placement with the 
resident and her/his carer(s) both in terms of appropriateness of the new home and 
its location; any remaining residents who need to move will therefore be assisted to 
do so in a manner consistent with best practice and the need to minimise the 
transition shock for the residents concerned. 
 
With reference to respite provision at Whitehall Street, there is currently a review of 
respite provision for people with a learning disability underway with the aim of 
providing more person-centred respite in Haringey; There are a number of existing 
providers of care who have the capacity to provide this service, based on individual 
assessed need and the wishes of service users. All service users who are currently 
provided with a bed based respite service are encouraged to go on individualised 
budgets (IBs) and buy in alternative services. Each service user who has been 
assessed as needing bed based respite due to complex needs will have an individual 
needs based package of respite. These bed based respite options are currently 
being developed with independent and voluntary sector providers to support the 
implementation of personalisation.  In addition the “shared lives” scheme in Haringey 
where people spend time in family settings is being extended. This adult placement 
scheme in Haringey has recently last year drawn national acclaim.  
 

Page 196



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

21 

A range of respite / short break options are also envisaged which individuals can 
purchase with their personal budget. These include sitting service/ sleep in service/ 
accompanying service users to activities/outings/ holidays. 
 
The needs of the protected groups identified to be adversely affected by these 
proposals (i.e. black British people and older carers in 3.2.1). will be addressed 
through a  person centred approach to planning with individuals. This approach will 
focus on an holistic assessment of needs which will inform commissioning outcomes. 
All carers as well as users will have individual person centred assessments. An 
approach will be taken with older carers that will include a focus on “future planning”  
and  planning in case of emergency that may arise due to ill health /hospitalisation of 
carers. For Black British people a person centred approach and holistic support plan 
which includes cultural needs will also be undertaken.  
 
In terms of Health needs all people with learning disabilities are supported within a 
Health plan managed by the Learning Disabilities Partnership. This framework has an 
emphasis on strategy and practice which supports a response to current and future 
health needs of individuals. Thus for example all individuals with LD  have up to date 
Health Action plans. Our health and social care professionals also work closely with 
providers of alternative respite and residential services This work is based on a 
“community outreach” models which support people’s health needs being met as far 
as possible  in community settings. We have a database of proven providers who are 
experienced and attend regular provider forums organised by commissioning and 
which support the attainment of identified quality assurance outcomes In addition all 
placements are subject to regular review and monitoring , at least annual and more 
frequently according to individual circumstances. Commissioning will respond to the 
outcomes of individual assessments to enable matching within a range of options for 
residents.   
 
In respect of the 10 permanent residents with learning disabilities who are living at 
Whitehall Street, it is worth noting that four of these individuals have long established 
support plans that include planning for them moving back into the community with 
appropriate personal budgets and support services.  This planning pre-dated 
Cabinet’s original decision in December 2010 to go out to consultation on the 
proposed closures, and work with the individuals and their families is now well 
underway.     
 
3c) If there are barriers that cannot be removed, what groups will be most 
affected and what Positive Actions are you proposing in order to reduce the 
adverse impact on those groups?  
 
We do not envisage that there are barriers arising from existing delivery model that 
would not be addressed by a move to the delivery model in 3(b) above. However, 
there will be continuous monitoring through contact with social workers, consultation 
with service users via organisations such as the Haringey LINk and the Older 
Peoples Forum, Learning Disabilities Carers Sub-groups and other stakeholder 
groups on how the new model is working. We will use the feedback from these in the 
years to come to identify areas that will need market development, and where 
necessary, corrective measures will be put in place. 
 

 
 
 

Step 4 - Consult on the proposal 
 

Page 197



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

22

4a) Who have you consulted on your proposal and what were the main issues 
and concerns from the consultation?   

 
When we consulted 
The consultation ran for the best practice period of three months from 31st January to 
30th April 2011 to enable sufficient time to talk to people about the proposals and give 
them time to respond   
 
How we consulted 
There were several main channels for the consultation, as set out below:    
 
Pre-consultation activity  
Emails and letters were sent to users, relatives, carers and staff in all of the homes 
and centres affected by the proposed budget cuts as well as providers, health, 
voluntary sector colleagues and others once it was clear Cabinet would be 
considering proposed changes to the delivery of adult care services when it met on 
21st December 2011. This correspondence was sent out on 20th, 22nd and 23rd 
December to coincide with information about these proposals being published on the 
Councils website and Cabinet’s decision to consult.    
These e-mails and letters were followed up with face-to-face meetings were with 
users of services, relatives and carers as well as staff at each of the affected 
locations either immediately before and after Christmas 2010 or at the start of the 
New Year 2011 to alert them to the proposed budget cuts (if they’d not already 
heard) and that we would be consulting on the proposal.  The opportunity was taken 
to explain what was happening and why and what the next steps would be. 
Details as follows:  

Date  Location 

Staff – 20th, 21st and 22nd December 
2011 

Alex House and Civic Centre 

Users, relatives, carers – 4th January 
through 13th January 2012 

Various homes and centres 

 
Consultation web page, email address and telephone helpline 
A comprehensive web page (www.haringey.gov/ budgetconsultation) was created to 
ensure people were able to read about the proposals and were kept informed of the 
consultation and what people were saying in feedback.  The web pages have 
regularly been updated since their launch; this has received over 2100 viewings as 
follows: 

Page Page views 

Budgetconsultation/general 995 

budgetconsultation/daycarecentres 428 

budgetconsultation/residentialhomes 272 

budgetconsultation/alexroad 263 

budgetconsultation/dropincentres 177 

 
We didn’t, however, rely on this electronic means of communication, especially for 
those without access to the internet.  All information was also supplied in har copy for 
those who were unable to access it otherwise 
 
Consultation Questions  
We produced a series of surveys where participants could separately complete 
questionnaires for day care centres, drop-ins, residential care homes/bed based 

Page 198



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

23 

respite care or the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit and, in doing so, respond to specific 
questions and/or add comments of their own. 
 
This was done in recognition of the fact that the meetings would only capture the 
views of those users, relatives and carers who attended one of more of the monthly 
meetings in the homes and centres.  We needed to be able to capture the views of 
those who would be unable to attend such as relatives who lived some distance 
away as well as hear from members of the public, voluntary sector colleagues and 
others who either did not chose to write-in or provide a formal response to the 
consultation. 
 
It was also a way of capturing equalities data that would help us to determine 
alongside the other information we had collated, the Equalities Impact of our 
proposals and allowed people who wanted to, to have their say anonymously.    
The other reason for the questionnaire was that we not only wanted to know what 
people thought of the proposal but for people to help commissioners of services and 
others shape future services in the Borough if the proposed changes went ahead.  
 
We identified the need for separate questionnaires: one for residential/bed-based 
respite care services, one for drop-ins, one for day centres and one for the Alexandra 
Road Crisis Unit to reflect the differences between the services and the very different 
nature of the provision (preventative services versus statutory ones and day 
opportunities versus residential care).  We also have further distinguished in some 
case between services in the same questionnaire – i.e.  older people’s residential 
care (The Red House, Broadwater Lodge and Cranwood) and respite-based care 
(Whitehall Street).    Doing so will allow decision-makers to analyse the results in 
more detail and provide commissioners and others with more specific information 
tailored to different users of services needs. 
 
Overall structure of the questionnaires    
 
The questionnaires followed a similar format inviting respondents to indicate: 

1. Their support or opposition to the proposal 
2. Say what’s important to them 
3. Say what they wanted future services to provide  
4. Provide details about themselves 

 
This amounted to between 20-25 questions in all, including several free-text boxes to 
enable people to have their say.  
 
In total, some 3000 questionnaires were produced in all according to the perceived 
needs of each service user group.  These were produced in both printed and 
electronic forms with copies made available for completion via the web page, handed 
out at the monthly meetings, made available in the homes and centres or sent out on 
request.  The availability of these questionnaires was communicated via the fact 
sheet, webpage, mentioned at the monthly meetings and highlighted in 
correspondence (posters, updates etc).  Freepost envelopes were made available so 
that people could return completed questionnaires ‘free of charge’. 
 
Press notices  
We prepared an initial briefing for the press, and have answered individual press 
enquiries throughout the consultation process, and subsequently to the consultation 
closing at the end of April 2011. 
 

Page 199



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

24

Letters and e-mails  
The Council recognised the anxiety caused by the proposals and the need to keep 
people informed as a way of minimising this.    
A total of 1200 inaugural letters were sent to users, carers, relatives, providers, faith 
groups, churches followed by a similar number of others during various stages of the 
consultation:  

• January 2011 – letters were sent to users, relatives and carers setting out 
details of the consultation and timetable of meetings with senior council 
officers and Cabinet members including a fact sheet; 

• February 2011 – letters were sent to providers, health and voluntary sector 
colleagues setting out the consultation, inviting organisations and individuals 
to have their say and explaining potential impact of any proposed changes 
and the steps we would be taking to mitigate the effect; 

• March 2011 – letters were sent to users, relatives and carers as well as others 
providing feedback and reminding them that the consultation had reached the 
halfway point; 

• June 2011 – letters to users, relatives, carers and others notifying them of the 
timetable residential homes, day centres and the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit 
and pointing to where full details of the consultation could be found. 

 
Other correspondence included acknowledgements/responses to several hundred 
emails and letters received from people directly or via a councillor or local member of 
parliament about the proposed cuts. 
 
These formed part of an ongoing communications plan designed to keep all those 
affected updated on progress and to minimise anxiety following consultation by 
keeping people informed, as necessary, until decisions are made. They were also 
one of a wide range of ways/channels for people to have their say:   
 
Meetings   
A significant number of events (56 in all) were held with users, relatives and carers 
where individuals were presented with information about the proposals and the 
consultation and then given the opportunity to discuss and comment upon the 
various aspects including the potential impact upon them and to put forward their 
case or alternative propositions.    
 
In addition, in response to requests received, we met with a number of individuals or 
groups to discuss a number of alternative proposals.  Users and other interested 
parties were also encouraged to begin their own consultation with officers attending 
or facilitating meetings.  Details as follows: 
 

16/02/2011 Muswell Hill Pensioners Action Group 

9/03/2011 Cranwood Community Group 

09/02/2011 Tom's Club 

18/02/2011 Clarendon Centre 

21/03/2011 Haringey Local Improvement Network (LINK) 

21/03/2011 Older People’s Drop-in Centres workshop 

15/04/2011 Meet with Cllr Schmitz Options for Willoughby Rd 

19/05/2011 Mental Health Carers Association Carers Support Group 

14/06/2011 Hill Homes ‘Extra care’ scheme 

20/06/2011 Meeting with Cllr Winskill and a Carer 

 
 

Page 200



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

25 

Reminders 
We also issued a reminder about the consultation (and the time remaining for people 
to have their say) midway through the consultation and have advised that, though, 
our three-month consultation, launched in January 2011, has now ended, 
consultation is an ongoing process and people can make further representation to 
Councillors when they are making their final decisions.    
 
Partnership working  
 
Community and voluntary sector 
A local network of the independent and voluntary sector, the local online community 
and NHS colleagues were also engaged to promote the consultation with the likes of 
Haringey Association of Voluntary and  Community Organisations  (HAVCO) 
reaching a membership of over 1400 and Harringay Online, the Haringey Health and 
Social Care Local Involvement Network (LINK) and local NHS reaching a wide range 
of others, including GPs, members of the online community and individuals and 
community group representatives in Haringey working to improve the way Health and 
Social Care Services are delivered. 
 
Adult Partnership Boards 
The consultation was raised, discussed and promoted via the five Adult Partnership 
Boards so that the message could be cascaded to as wide as possible an audience. 
 See below for the dates on which these meetings took place.  The consultation 
around the proposed closure of the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit was moreover 
conducted with NHS Haringey.   
 
There were also opportunities for the five established partnership boards, reference 
groups, forums and other networks to consider formally the proposal and to respond 
to the consultation so that carers, older people’s representatives, those representing 
people with learning and other disabilities, mental health issues, the BME community 
etc could have their say.  Several, such as the Older Peoples and Learning 
Disabilities Partnership Boards, CASCH, a residents association in Crouch End, 
Haringey User Network and the Mental Health Carers Support Association Carers 
Support Group in Haringey taking the opportunity to do so  

16 Feb, 13 
Apr 2011 

Older People’s Partnership Board  

19 Jan, 31 
Mar 2011 

Carers Partnership Board 

2 Feb, 23 
Mar and 18 
May 2011 

Learning Disabilities Partnership Board  

13 Jan, 14 
Apr 2011 

Mental Health Partnership Board  

24 Jan, 16 
May 2011 

Autism Disorder Spectrum Group 

 
We made sure that details of the web page as well as other details, including how 
people could contact a single point of contact within the council 
(FeedbackandSupport@haringey.gov.uk and telephone query line: 020 8489 1400) 
should they wish to, for more information or in order to have their say were also made 
widely available and ensured that this information was included in fact sheets, 
posters and other forms of correspondence. 
 

Page 201



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

26

Consultation – Summary of what people said 
 
Impact for users, relatives and carers 
Those who attended meetings or who wrote in have understandably expressed a 
range of emotions and strengths of feeling.   Many people who participated in the 
consultation did so with personal stories and explained the impact of the cuts for 
them and/or their loved ones or the groups and individuals whose interests they 
represented.  Many said that they looked forward to coming to centres, drop-ins etc. 
 It was said that these preventative services provided a ‘life line’ for those who used 
them and that many people would be isolated or lose the only significant social 
contact they had without them. For those in residential care, this was “their home” 
and the staff “their family”.  For others, services were ‘invaluable in a crisis’. Closure 
of services was also thought to increase the likelihood of a more serious intervention 
by the Council or NHS.    
 
Understandably some queried what would happen to users of services should the 
proposed closures go ahead, worried as they were about not having enough time to 
make alternative arrangements or where else their loved ones would go to receive a 
service.  
 
Impact for the future and the wider community 
Some respondents worried that these savings would have lasting consequences for 
the community and those groups and individuals they supported and cared for.  
Others pointed to a potential extra demand for statutory and non-statutory services 
across the Borough and as they saw it the wider social impact of the proposals.  
There were worries too about current and future capacity if services closed or 
amalgamated or that the quality could not or would not be replicated in the 
independent sector or that prices would rise.  The prevailing view was that every 
effort should be made to find suitable community based groups and organisations to 
take them over and they be offered practical support in doing so. 
 
Comments on the proposal 
The general view was that these organisations provided vital, much-needed services 
and support.  People overwhelmingly would prefer it if they remained as they were 
and ‘strongly opposed’ or ‘opposed’ the proposal.  Several respondents, including 
leading charities, expressed their opposition to any cuts in funding that threatened 
services for vulnerable people within the community and felt that savings could and 
should be found elsewhere even if they largely accepted and understood that funding 
shortages lay behind the proposal.  Some people said that the proposed savings 
were a false economy and/or that it would cost more in the long run.  Those in favour 
of the proposals said that the needs of all Haringey residents must be put ahead of 
the few and suggested a range of alternatives.   
 
Many extended offers of help, including a Community Group asking to be allowed to 
tender to run Cranwood residential care home on the proviso that the current home 
was demolished and replaced by 4 x 12-bed homes; and/or suggested steps the 
Council should and could take to mitigate and/or monitor the impact were the cuts to 
go ahead.  Some were pleased to see the personalisation programme moving 
forward and were keen to work with the Council in developing a diverse market in 
services.  Others like the Unions were concerned that the personalisation agenda 
was being used to justify the proposal.   
 
 
 

Page 202



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

27 

Comments on the consultation 
Direct feedback would indicate that the meetings we held were sensitively run and 
generally positively received and that the Council had fulfilled its responsibility of 
keeping those who attended informed.  Others we have heard from said they had 
struggled to comprehend or hear what was being said, felt the meeting has been 
dominated by others or that they lacked detailed enough feedback on which to 
participate effectively.  
 
There were moreover views that the consultation was “seriously flawed, claims that 
users of services and others have found it difficult to challenge the Council’s figures 
or offer alternatives because of a lack of a detailed costs or that 
substitutes/replacements had not been properly costed.  It was also stated that there 
appeared to be no transitional arrangements even though, as was explained, no 
decision has been taken.  
 
Others suggested that proposals had been hastily arranged or that decisions had 
already been made, that the questionnaires were biased, queried the levels of 
advocacy or other support and/or asserted that the consultation was a formality, 
foregone conclusion or was even a ‘sham’.   There was frustration at how long the 
consultation was lasting, and in the absence of a decision, the ‘lack of progress’ from 
one meeting to the next or that we’d not listened to specialists or taken account of 
their views as service users, relatives or professionals from the outset.  
 
Frequently asked questions 
People frequently asked about the reason for the savings and wanted to discuss 
other ways of saving money, asked what would happen to the buildings or to other 
groups using the buildings, asked about the consultation, and for more information to 
enable them to propose alternative courses of action for consideration as part of the 
consultation.  Understandably some queried what would happen to users of services 
should the proposed closures go ahead, worried as they were about not having 
enough time to make alternative arrangements. 
 
Consultation on the proposals for Residential and Respite Care for Older 
People and People with Learning Disabilities 
Some had no objections in principle to outsourcing of residential home care services 
to the independent and voluntary sectors and recognised the Council’s policy to use 
only those providers rated ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ by the Care Quality Commission.  
Others were concerned about standards in the private sector and what would replace 
residential and respite services if the homes closed.  There was concern about the 
self-assessment procedures used by providers and that there should be robust 
monitoring arrangements in place. Loss of continuity and consistency of service and 
moving residents out of the borough would make visiting loved ones more difficult 
were also raised as concerns.  
 
Respite facilities save the Council money, it was said, ‘by providing the bulk of the 
care’.   They also it was argued gave users of services a regular experience of being 
away from home and their carer for when the carer was no longer able to care for 
them. 
 
Consultation on the specific proposal for Broadwater Lodge 
 
Residents and their families of Broadwater Lodge raised the following points: 

Page 203



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

28

• People wanted to know why Adult Services had to make the level of savings 
proposed, and expressed concern that older people’s services were being 
considered. 

• People were concerned about what would happen to them (or their loved 
ones) if they had to move. 

• People did not want to have to move out of borough, and were concerned to 
be able to move if possible, with people they lived with in the home – their 
friends who were also resident. 

• People were worried that the private sector were only about making profit 

• People expressed concern about what the Government was prioritising in 
terms of public sector spending. 

 
Consultation on the specific proposal for Cranwood 
 
Residents and their families of Broadwater Lodge raised the following points: 

• People where concerned as to why the Council was considering closing a 
home with a ‘good reputation’, especially as it is their ‘home’, and they didn’t 
have anywhere else to go.   

• People were concerned that they would lose contact with friends they had 
made in the home. 

• People were worried that the private sector were only about making profit, and 
whether the quality of care would be as good as at Cranwood. 

• People expressed concern about what the Government was prioritising in 
terms of public sector spending. 

• People wanted to know why Council-run provision was so much more 
expensive that private or voluntary sector run residential care. 

• People wanted to know what else was being looked at within the Council to 
find the savings, such as libraries, Councillor expenses, salaries of staff. 

• People expressed concern about the proposal, in view of for example, an 
aging population, and felt that other areas of Council spending should be 
looked at first ahead of closure of Cranwood. 

 
Consultation on the specific proposal for The Red House 
 
Residents and their families of The Red House raised the following points: 

• People expressed strongly that the quality of care was very good at The Red 
House, and where worried about what would happen to them, if the home was 
closed.  They expressed that they didn’t deserve to be in a position of possibly 
having to move from what is their ‘home’. 

• People wanted to know why Council-run provision was so much more 
expensive that private or voluntary sector run residential care. 

• People recognised that the home at the moment doesn’t have ensuite 
bathrooms for every bedroom, a Care Quality Commission standard. 

• People were worried about the impact on current residents, in terms of 
affecting their health, in terms of the worry about the proposals and then how 
soon things would happen, if the proposals were agreed. 

• People expressed concern about what the Government was prioritising in 
terms of public sector spending, including other proposed changes for 
example to the benefits system. 

• People wanted to know about changes they’d heard about to the way care 
homes are inspected [by Care Quality Commission] 

 
 

Page 204



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

29 

Consultation on the specific proposal for Whitehall Street 
 
Residents (via and advocate) and their families of Whitehall Street raised the 
following points: 

• People where worried about where they would go, and where they would then 
get their respite service. People were worried that there might not be enough 
other places where they could get respite. 

• Most people said they liked Whitehall Street and the staff there are very good. 
A couple of people said they didn’t mind if the home were to close, as they 
weren’t attached to it, and did not find it particularly stimulating. 

• People felt it was not fair on parents of people with learning disabilities who 
rely on the respite service. Informal carers stated how much they rely on the 
service to get a break. 

• People who lived there permanently, were worried about whether or not they 
could move with their friends who live there. 

• People were worried about whether personal budgets would be cut in the 
future. 

• People didn’t want to use homes in the private sector, they felt Council run 
provision was better. 

• People wanted to know what else was being looked at in the Council, whether 
new jobs were being created meaning places like Whitehall had to close. Or 
whether other services were being cut, such as libraries, parks and reducing 
manager in the Council. 

 
Looking to the Future  
 
Asked what factor(s) councillors should take into account when making their final 
decision, two-thirds to three quarters thought continuity of care and quality of care the 
most important factors - significantly higher (80-90%) in case of day centres and 
residential care homes.  A safe secure environment, help and support when they 
needed it and being able to maintain links with family and friends were the 
services/support that care home respondents wanted most (60-80%) going forward.   
 
The respite options people most wanted into the future were short breaks and bed-
based respite (around 60% apiece); close to half wanted holidays, support day 
activities and week-ends away.  Just over 30% wanted a sleep-in service.   
 
4b) How, in your proposal have you responded to the issues and 
concerns from consultation?   
 
Residential Homes (Cranwood, Broadwater Lodge, The Redhouse) - We have 
sought to reassure people of the mitigations in place.  There is no change to 
Haringey Council’s eligibility criteria to access adult social care services, so if a 
vulnerable adult is assessed as needing services s/he will continue to receive 
services. 
 
We will do all that we can to help and support users, relatives and carers to find 
suitable alternatives should the decision be taken to close the homes.  People will not 
therefore be on their own.  People’s choices would be taken into consideration and of 
course we would look to maintain friendship groups.  Transitional arrangements 
would therefore include, where possible, moving groups of residents together to a 
new home (where appropriate to do so), so that social networks could be maintained 
and continued. 
 

Page 205



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

30

Moreover, we have allowed sufficient time after any decision to ensure that, if the 
decision is taken to close a home or centre, we work with users, relatives and carers 
to arrange alternative outcomes that best meet their needs and provide them with the 
support they need. 
 
Any proposed changes will be carried out in accordance with the highest of 
professional standards affording dignity, respect and humanity to our service users, 
by conducting review and assessments and choosing the most appropriate 
alternative care option. 
 
Social workers will carry out an assessment and review of each resident’s needs and 
an alternative home (if appropriate) found based on (i) the appropriate type of 
residential care, (ii) the same or even better quality and one that geographically 
meets the needs of a close family member, or friend who visits regularly and is 
involved in the person's day to day care.   
 
We do not anticipate difficulties in finding places for those who wish them elsewhere 
in the Borough and will support anyone who wishes to be relocated closer to a family 
member or friend with whom they are in regular contact.  
 
It is worth noting that two thirds of all our home care and residential care is already 
purchased from the independent sector. On residential care, Haringey was recently 
assessed by the Care Quality Commission as the best London council for placing 
people in homes which were rated as Excellent quality (3-star) and Good (2-star).  
Where placements of this nature remain appropriate, we will be looking to maintain 
this approach. 
 
Respite (Whitehall St) 
 
Changes to respite will involve access to a range of respite options which will include 
short breaks, bed based respite, personal support in the home and in the community; 
for example a possible development could be a Floating Short Breaks Service to 
provide service users with: a sitting service/ sleep in service/ accompanying service 
users to activities/ outings/ weekends away/ holidays/ appointments etc. We will 
continue to work very hard to achieve the very best standard of care for our 
vulnerable residents and will continue to plan and buy care which meets these high 
care standards. 
 
We will still offer respite care options either in a person’s own home, or in an 
alternative care home, as appropriate to their needs. The right care in terms of quality 
and cost. 
 
Cranwood 
 
As part of the consultation, we met on several occasions with a community group 
interested in discussing the future of Cranwood.   The main thrust of their report 
proposal was that the existing home, which the group have acknowledged is 
uneconomic to run, is demolished and replaced by 4 12-bed care homes run by a 
not-for-profit organisation and that they and a possible partner to be identified be 
invited to bid to run the redeveloped site. 
 
We gave serious consideration to the content and recommendation(s) of their report 
and have treated it as part of the overall consultation.   However, both on care and 

Page 206



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

31 

economic grounds we did not consider that we could take forward the proposal.  The 
principal reasons why this is the case are as follows: 

• With the need for planning, design, competition and build to factor in, as a 
Council, we estimate that we would have to find the extra revenue to cover the 
anticipated period that the existing facility would remain in operation beyond 
our proposed date of closure (31st March 2013)  

• The costs associated with the proposal, when considered against the reason 
behind our original proposal being very much to reduce the council’s costs to 
meet the unprecedented cuts placed on local authorities by the Coalition 
government.  Such costs might include - commissioning our own feasibility 
report, design costs, the cost of advertising and running the competitive 
procurement process, as well as legal fees and other issues  

• As we see it, the proposal also did not avoid one of the principal concerns 
raised by users, relatives and carers during the consultation (and which we are 
very much alive to) which is that they are concerned about the impact that a 
move would have on their or their loved ones physical and mental well-being.  
Neither of our plans would avoid us having to move users of services out of 
the existing home or endeavouring to maintain friendship groups should the 
home close.  Our plans however only involve moving people once.  We would 
be most reluctant to contemplate a second move (which the proposal 
potentially involves) for current residents once the home they’d been moved 
out of was demolished and before it was replaced with new accommodation.  
The Community Group has since stated that this could be avoided as plans 
are for work to be undertaken with the residents in situ.  This is something we 
would be unable to verify until we conducted our own feasibility report.  
 

4c) How have you informed the public and the people you consulted about the 
results of the consultation and what actions you are proposing in order to 
address the concerns raised? 
 
An update of the consultation (to date) was widely provided in March 2011 along with 
responses to Frequently Asked Questions. 
 
June 2011 – letters were sent to users, relatives and carers and others of drop-ins 
advising them of the position of the Cabinet decision on drop-in services and 
separate letter to uses, relatives, carers and others notifying them of the timetable 
residential homes, centres and the Alexandra Road Crisis Unit and pointing to where 
full details of the consultation could be found. 
 
Full details of the consultation are contained in a separate more detailed consultation 
report which accompany the report to Cabinet.  This has been widely made available 
beforehand.    
 

 

 
 
 

 Do you envisage the need to train staff or raise awareness of the issues arising 
from any aspects of your proposal and as a result of the impact assessment, 
and if so, what plans have you made?  
 

It is important that all Officers involved in commissioning of services directly, or 
through the market development function and, where appropriate, some private 

Step 5 - Addressing Training  
 

Page 207



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

32

organisations, must have received up to date, full, equalities training. This will be 
identified as a key action in section 8.  
 
 
 
 
What arrangements do you have or will put in place to monitor, report, publish 
and disseminate information on how your proposal is working and whether or 
not it is producing the intended equalities outcomes? 
 
We will be using the Council’s equalities monitoring form and reporting procedures to 
track the actual effects of the new delivery model when implemented and where 
adverse impacts are identified steps will be taken to address them. The form has 
been recently updated to include the new equalities protected characteristics 
identified by the Equality Act 2010. 
 
Monitoring arrangements will include: 

• Formal contract monitoring (as now), where formal contracts are in place. 

• Quality assurance through Adult and Community Services new Accreditation 
Framework, which is currently being rolled out across all provider services 

• Analysis of complaints 
 
Engagement with providers will include: 

• Monthly provider forums 

• Ongoing work by Market Development. 
 

§  Who will be responsible for monitoring? 
 

The relevant Heads of Service will be responsible for monitoring the equalities 
impacts of the proposals.  Commissioning will need to continue to ensure that 
providers are meeting the needs of their users, including those protected groups 
highlighted through this Equalities Impact Assessment are protected from any 
potential discriminatory practice, including ensuring an appropriately balanced 
staff group in terms of equalities strands.   

 
§ What indicators and targets will be used to monitor and evaluate the 

effectiveness of the policy/service/function and its equalities impact? 
 

The ‘personalisation’ of social care process has built in systems for review, risk 
assessment and quality assurance for those clients who require an assessed service 
as a result of the proposals. Data relating to those clients will be collected and 
analysed by equalities strands.  
 

§ Are there monitoring procedures already in place which will generate this 
information? 

 
Standard equalities monitoring documentation already exists and will be used. 
This includes contract monitoring and performance management arrangements of 
external organisations 

 
§    Where will this information be reported and how often? 

 
This information will be reported quarterly to Adult and Community Services DMT.     
 

 Step 6 - Monitoring Arrangements 
 

Page 208



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

33

 
 
Unit Age Ethnicity Disability Gender 

Broadwater No disproportionate 
Impact identified* 

Disproportionate number of 
Black British users (46% V 
28.6% across all Council 
Inhouse provision and 15.5% 
in Borough profile of all older 
people in Council funded 
residential care) 

All users are 
disabled 

No disproportionate Impact 
identified* 

Cranwood No disproportionate 
Impact identified* 

Disproportionate number of 
White Irish users (21.7% V 
12.2% in all Council Inhouse 
provision) 

All users are 
disabled 

No disproportionate Impact 
identified* 

Redhouse No disproportionate 
Impact identified* 

No disproportionate Impact 
identified* 

All users are 
disabled 

No disproportionate Impact 
identified* 

Whitehall permanent 8 out of 10 residents 
(80%) are between 30-
49 compared to 
Borough profile of 
people with LD in 
residential care of 57% 

No disproportionate Impact 
identified* 

All users are 
disabled 

70% of users are female 
compared to Borough 
profile of people with LD in 
residential care of 34% 

Whitehall respite No disproportionate 
Impact identified* 

Disproportionate number of 
Black British users (53% vs 
27% in Borough profile with LD 
in all Council funded 
residential care) 

All users are 
disabled 

Disproportionate number 
of female users (53% vs 
34% in Borough profile 
with LD in all Council 
funded residential care) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
No 
disproportionate 
Impact identified 
with regard to 
religion, sexual 
orientation and the 
other protected 
categories  

* ‘No disproportionate Impact identified’ signifies that the percentage of people using the particular service is not significantly different to the overall 
Borough profile of all users of the service. All settings have been compared individually against Borough overall figures in the summary spreadsheet

 Step 7 - Summarise impacts identified 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
9



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

34

 

Please list below any recommendations for action that you plan to take as a result of this impact assessment. 

Issue Action required Lead person Timescale Resource 
implications 
 

Black and Black 
British older people 
accessing appropriate 
residential care and 
respite services 

• Ensure care management staff plan with 
service users, families/carers and 
providers that the specific cultural needs 
of user can be met when making 
placements. 

Head of 
Assessment and 
Personalisation 
 
Head of Learning 
Disabilities 
Partnership  

Ongoing  

•  

 
Existing resources 
 

Risks of higher 
need for other forms 
of support and care 
services in future 
 

• Identifying non-traditional respite options 
and improving take-up of personal 
budgets  

 

• Commissioning more services in the 
independent sector 

• Developing a diverse market in services  

Head of 
Assessment and 
Personalisation 
 
Head of Adult 
Commissioning  

Ongoing  
 
 
 
July 2011-March 2012 

 
Existing resources 
 
 

Risk of insufficient 
capacity in care home 
market to meet 
demand 

• Commissioning and Market 
development work with existing and 
potential new providers in ensuring the 
right level of capacity (of the right 
quality) 

• Ensure capacity for specific disabilities 
requirements – dementia care, and 
learning disabiltiies  

Head of Adult 
Commissioning 

July 2011-March 2013 and ongoing  
Existing resources 
 

Improve equality 
monitoring in relation 
to transformed 
services  

• Ensure that all services users in 
transformed services are fully equality 
monitored against the Equality Act 2010 
categories  

Heads of Services  Ongoing Existing resources 
 

 
 

 Step 8 - Summarise the actions to be implemented 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
0



Appendix 2 

EQIA – Version 5 6.7.11 

 

35 

 
 
 
There is a legal duty to publish the results of impact assessments. The reason is not 
simply to comply with the law but also to make the whole process and its outcome 
transparent and have a wider community ownership. You should summarise the 
results of the assessment and intended actions and publish them. You should 
consider in what formats you will publish in order to ensure that you reach all 
sections of the community. 
 
When and where do you intend to publish the results of your assessment, and 
in what formats? 
 
On the Council’s website after all the EqIAs has been approved and signed off. 
 
 
 
Assessed by (Author of the proposal):  
 
Name:    Lisa Redfern                     
 
Designation:      Deputy Director              
 
Signature:                   
 
Date:        
   
Quality checked by (Equality Team):  
Name:        Arleen Brown                
Designation:   Senior Policy Officer                        
Signature:     A.J.BrownA.J.BrownA.J.BrownA.J.Brown    
Date:   5th July 2011     
 
 
 
Sign off by Directorate Management Team:   
 
Name:                        
 
Designation:                          
 
Signature:                    
 
Date:        

Step 9 - Publication and sign off 
 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

 
THE NEW DUTY – THE SINGLE EQUALITY DUTY 

 
EQUALITY ACT 2010  

  

Introduces the Single Equality Duty which covers all eight strands, namely race, 
disability, sex, gender identity, pregnancy and maternity, religion/belief, age and 

sexual orientation and which came into force on 06 April 2011.  

  

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty states 

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to – 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

(2) – A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the 

exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned in subsection (1). 

(3) – Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due 

regard, in particular, to the need to – 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 

disproportionately low. 

(4) – The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from the 

needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account of disabled 
persons’ disabilities. 

(5) – Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, 

in particular, to the need to – 

(a) tackle prejudice, and 
(b) promote understanding. 

(6) – Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would 

otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. 

(7) – The relevant protected characteristics are – age; disability; gender reassignment; 

pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation. 

(8) – A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to – 

Page 213



(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule; 

(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule. 
 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES SCHEME 2010-2013 AND DELIVERY PLAN 

The Council’s current Equality Scheme includes the three existing equality duties, namely 
race, disability and gender as well as the additional equality strands, namely religion or belief, 

age and sexual orientation, introduced by the Equality Act 2006, The Employment Equality 
(Age) Regulations 2006 and The Equality Act (Sexual Orientation) Regulations 2007. 

 

TYPES OF DISCRIMINATION 
Types of discrimination by way of an overview only include 

- direct discrimination that is when someone (falling within one or more of the equality 
strands) is treated less favourably than others in the same circumstances  

- indirect discrimination is when a provision, criterion or practice is applied to all but 
which puts a person (falling within one or more of the equality strands) at a 

disadvantage 

- victimisation is when a person (falling within one or more of the equality strands) is 
treated less favourably than others having complained about discrimination in some 

way whether by way of proceedings or providing information or the making of 
allegations 

- harassment is where there is unwanted conduct which has the purpose or effect of 

violating the person’s (falling within one or more of the equality strands) dignity or 
creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment.  

 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

STATUTORY CODES OF PRACTICE   

These are statutory codes relevant to each of the duties and whilst a breach of the code does 
not of itself make a person liable in any proceedings it will be taken into account by a court in 

certain types of proceedings. This means that they are admissible in evidence and if any 
provision of one of the codes appears to a court or a tribunal to be relevant to any question 

arising in the proceedings it has to be taken into account.  

  
The existing codes continue to have effect until revoked by the Secretary of State at the 

request of the Equality and Human Rights Commission. The Commission has the power to 
issue new codes.  

 

The draft code of practice on the Public Sector Equality Duty is scheduled to be laid before 
Parliament in Summer 2011. 

 
GUIDANCE 

The Commission has also produced non statutory guidance which includes the guidance on 
how to complete the assessments 

 

Page 214



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 –
 L
is
t 
o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
ru
n
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
T
y
p
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 

T
y
p
e
 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

a
s
 a
t 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
0
 

A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
rk
 H
o
m
e
  

1
5
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 +
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

B
ro
w
n
lo
w
 H
o
u
s
e
  

2
4
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 

a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

F
e
r 
V
ie
w
, 
T
h
e
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 

a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

M
a
ry
 F
e
ild
in
g
 G
u
ild
  

4
3
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
*
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
, 
T
h
e
  

4
0
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 

o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
 

M
o
rr
is
s
 H
o
u
s
e
  

2
5
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 

o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
*
 

N
ig
h
ti
n
g
a
le
 H
o
u
s
e
  

9
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 

a
g
e
 +
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 +
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

Page 215



S
p
ri
n
g
 L
a
n
e
 C
a
re
 

H
o
m
e
  

6
3
 

p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 

w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

S
ti
rl
in
g
 P
a
rk
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 -
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 o
ld
 a
g
e
, 
n
o
t 
fa
lli
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

c
a
te
g
o
ry
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

  R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
T
y
p
e
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 

T
y
p
e
 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

a
s
 a
t 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
0
 

A
c
a
s
h
 L
o
d
g
e
 I
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

B
e
d
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
 7
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

B
u
rg
h
le
y
 R
o
a
d
 7
7
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

C
a
rl
in
g
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
, 

1
8
1
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

C
h
a
ri
ty
 
*
*
*
 

C
a
s
s
in
i 
H
o
u
s
e
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

C
h
e
ls
e
a
 H
o
u
s
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

C
o
le
ra
in
e
 R
o
a
d
 3
0
 &
 

3
7
  

8
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

E
n
d
y
m
io
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
2
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

Page 216



E
v
e
ly
n
 H
o
u
s
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 

*
*
 

G
ra
n
v
ill
e
 R
o
a
d
 7
5
-7
7
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

G
re
a
t 
N
o
rt
h
 R
o
a
d
 6
8
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

G
re
e
n
 L
a
n
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
ts
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld
 R
o
a
d
 9
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

H
ill
g
re
e
n
 C
a
re
 

(D
o
w
n
h
ill
s
 P
a
rk
 

R
o
a
d
) 
 

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

H
ill
g
re
e
n
 C
a
re
 

(R
u
s
k
in
 R
o
a
d
) 
 

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

H
ill
g
re
e
n
 C
a
re
 

L
im
it
e
d
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

K
it
c
h
e
n
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 8
3
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
*
 

L
a
n
s
d
o
w
n
e
 C
a
re
 

H
o
m
e
 

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 H
o
u
s
e
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

M
e
ri
d
ia
n
 W
a
lk
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
 

M
I 
C
A
S
A
  

5
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

P
a
rk
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 4
  

6
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
*
 

Page 217



P
in
e
 H
o
u
s
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

R
o
s
e
b
e
rr
y
 G
a
rd
e
n
s
 

3
6
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 +
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 +
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

S
h
e
rr
in
g
h
a
m
 L
o
d
g
e
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

S
t 
R
a
p
h
a
e
l`
s
 I
n
te
g
ri
ty
 

C
a
re
 H
o
m
e
  

8
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

V
a
rt
ry
 R
o
a
d
, 
1
8
  

4
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
*
*
 

W
h
it
e
 M
o
o
n
 L
o
d
g
e
  

3
 p
la
c
e
s
 

C
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 o
n
ly
 (
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 )
 

P
ri
v
a
te
 
*
*
 

 

Page 218


	Agenda
	3 Decision of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 15 August 2011 Regarding Minute CAB.20 - Proposed Closure of Three Older People's Residential Care Homes and One Learning Disabilities Residential and Respite Home
	2011.08.18_Item 3(b) _DAHS Response
	2011.08.18_Item 3(b)_ DAHS Response (App.1)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(b)_ DAHS Response (App.2)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(b)_ DAHS Response (App.3)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(b)_ DAHS Response (App.4)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(c)_ Bindmans Submission
	2011.08.18_Item 3d _Call-in request
	2011.08.18_Item 3(e)_Cabinet Minutes Extract
	2011.08.18_Item 3(f)_DAHS Report to Cabinet
	2011.08.18_Item 3 (f) _DAHS Report to Cabinet (App.1)
	2011.08.18_Item 3 (f) _DAHS Report to Cabinet (App.1 - Addendum)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(f)_DAHS Report to Cabinet (App.2)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(f)_DAHS Report to Cabinet (App.3)
	2011.08.18_Item 3(f)_DAHS Report to Cabinet (App.4)


